NOTICE OF CONTRACT RENEWAL

State Of Missouri
OfTice Of Administration
Division Of Purchasing And Materials Management

PO Box 809

Jefferson City, MO 65102-0809
http://content.oa. mo.gov/purchasing-materials-management

CONTRACT NUMBER CONTRACT TITLE

C311185001 Re-Entry Services in Kansas City
AMENDMENT NUMBER CONTRACT PERIOD

Amendment #003 July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015
REQUISITION NUMBER VENDOR NUMBER

NR 931 YYY14708193 4405401760 0

CONTRACTOR NAME AND ADDRESS

KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME
COMMISSION

3100 BROADWAY STE 226

KANSAS CITY MO 64111

STATE AGENCY'’S NAME AND ADDRESS

Missouri Department of Corrections
2729 Plaza Drive

Jefferson City, MO 65109

ACCEPTED BY THE STATE OF MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

the above contract period and apply hereto.

The State of Missouri hereby exercises its option to renew the contract.

All other terms, conditions and provisions of the contract, including all prices, shall remain the same throughout

SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR IS NOT REQUIRED ON THIS DOCUMENT.

BUYER

Julie Kleffner

BUYER CONTACT INFORMATION

Email: Julie.kleffner@oa.mo.gov
Phone: (573) 751- 7656 Fax: (573) 526-9816

James Miluski

3l
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NOTICE OF CONTRACT RENEWAL

State Of Missouri
Office Of Administration
Division Of Purchasing And Materials Management
PO Box 809
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0809
~ http://www.oa.mo.gov/purch

CONTRACT NUMBER CONTRACT TITLE
C311185001 Re-Entry Services in Kansas City
AMENDMENT NUMBER CONTRACT PERIOD
Amendment #002 July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014
REQUISITION NUMBER VENDOR NUMBER
NR 931 YYY13708290 4405401760 0
CONTRACTOR NAME AND ADDRESS STATE AGENCY’S NAME AND ADDRESS
KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME Missouri Department of Corrections
COMMISSION 2729 Plaza Drive
3100 BROADWAY STE 226 Jefferson City, MO 65109
KANSAS CITY MO 64111

ACCEPTED BY THE STATE OF MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

The State of Missouri hereby exercises its option to renew the contract.

All other terms, conditions and provisions of the contract, including all prices, shall remain the same throughout
the above contract period and apply hereto.

SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR IS NOT REQUIRED ON THIS DOCUMENT.

BUYER BUYER CONTACT INFORMATION
. Email: Julie kleffner(@oa.mo.gov
Julie Kleffner Phone: (573) 751- 7656 Fax: (573) 526-9816

SIGN@E:/ ‘% W DATE
~ 5] (?:I@

DIRECTOR OF PURCHASING AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT

d)mbm“@ James Miluski




- c 3] S5500] w02

DIVISION OF PURCHASING AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT

CONTRACT RENEWAL/AMENDMENT -
R q 3 ROUTING GUIDE
Jv. [ Y\Y 13708290 |
” Action Performed Route Initials Date
1.  Initiate Preparation Instructions (If applicable) Buyer 22 _( s/ 7/ / 3
Renewal Amendment Admin,
(1a) % Increase with Signature Required " | Increase/Decrease Description
(1b) $ Increase with Signature Required .
(2) Asking to Extend (—& renewal period 9;3_.)
(3) No Increase, Signature not Required . :
(43) % Increase, Bond Required, Signature Required $___%
(4b) $ Increase, Bond Required, Signature Required .
{4c) No Increase, Bond Required, Signature Required $ %
PerBond § SurBond § .
Other -- See Attached §___ %

2. Prepare Renewal/Amendment Section Support _@_’ SZZ@

HB6 Blind/Shelter Participation M/WBFE Participation
Follow Up (I No Follow Follow Up 0 Follow up oliow Up / No Follow up

Date: v:;r ? <
Contractor’s Email Address: qu Ql-er @ lg (' ~{ s !‘l!)e. 06
3.  Approve Renewal/Amendment Buyer - -
qu: Cl' SQM@{G" Purch Mgr. - —_—
Section Mgr. A - ~
Assist. Dir. o -
4.  Reproduce and Mail Amendment if signature is required Section Support _'~£ _f

5. Prepare Award of Renewal/Amendment & Statewide Notice Buyer

6. Type Acceptance Language & Statewide Notice Section Support
7.  Approve, Sign Award & Statewide Notice Buyer 5 . -13
) Purch Mgr. -
Section Mgt. _.__
Assist. Dir. _
8. ir;\){cess in SA{%A\ g\ma (.00 Oq,] Section Support o oy

(82) Advise MBE/WBE Report Coordinator of Completed Section Support
Renewal/Updated Subcontractor Information

9. Process (Copy and Distribute) Renewal/Amendment Section Support

% | &l
;

10. Image Document Central Support




NOTICE OF CONTRACT RENEWAL

State Of Missouri
Office Of Administration
Division Of Purchasing And Materials Management
PO Box 809
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0809
hitp:// www.oa.mo.gov/purch

CONTRACT NUMBER

C311185001

CONTRACT TITLE

Re-Entry Services in Kansas City

AMENDMENT NUMBER CONTRACT PERIOD

Amendment #001 July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013
REQUISITION NUMBER VENDOR NUMBER

NR 931 YYY12708239 4405401760 0

CONTRACTOR NAME AND ADDRESS

KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME
COMMISSION

3100 BROADWAY STE 226

KANSAS CITY MO 64111

STATE AGENCY’S NAME AND ADDRESS

Missouri Department of Corrections
2729 Plaza Drive
Jefferson City, MO 65109

ACCEPTED BY THE STATE OF MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

The State of Missouri hereby exercises its option to renew the contract.

All other terins, conditions and provisions of the contract, including all prices, shall remain the same throughout

the above contract period and apply hereto. .

SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR IS NOT REQUIRED ON THIS DOCUMENT.

BUYER

Julie Klefther

BUYER CONTACT INFORMATION
Email: Julie.kleffner@oa.mo.gov
Phone: (573) 751- 7656 Fax: (573) 526-9816

SIGNAFURE. OF BUYER Y
a/T [j MQ{/&J 4<} W%m/

DIRECTOR OF PURCHASING AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT

James Miluski




NOTICE OF AWARD

State Of Missouvri
Office Of Administration
Division Of Purchasing And Materials Management
PO Box 809
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0809
http://www.oa.mo.gov/purch

SOLICITATION NUMBER CONTRACT TITLE

B3Z11185 Re-Entry Services in Kansas City
CONTRACT NUMBER CONTRACT PERIOD

C311185001 October 17, 2011 through June 30, 2012
REQUISITION NUMBER VENDOR NUMBER

NR 931 YYY11708315

44054017600

CONTRACTOR NAME AND ADDRESS

KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION
3100 BROADWAY STE 226
KANSAS CITY MO 64111

STATE AGENCY’S NAME AND ADDRESS

Missouri Department of Corrections
2729 Plaza Drive
Jefferson City, MO 65109

ACCEPTED BY THE STATE OF MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

The proposal submitted by Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission in response to RFP B3Z11185 is

accepted in its entirety.

BUYER

Julie Kleffner

BUYER CONTACT INFORMATION
Email: Julie Kleffner@oa.mo.gov
Phone: (573) 751- 7656 Fax: (573) 526-9816

SIGNAZBj: BUYER y wﬂa

DATE
10-17- 11

DIRECTOR 01? FURC}{AS]NG AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT

Choie
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STATE OF MISSOURI

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

DIVISION OF PURCHASING AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT (DPMM)
REQUEST FOR BEST AND FINAL OFFER (BAFO)

FOR REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

BAFO REQUEST NO.: 001 REQ NO.: NR 931 YYY11708315
RFP NO.: B3Z11185 BUYER: Julie Kleffner

TITLE: Re-Entry Services in Kansas City PHONE NO.: (573) 751-7656
ISSUE DATE: 08/30/11 E-MAIL: Julie.Kleffner@oa.mo.gov

BAFO RESPONSE SHOULD BE RETURNED BY: September 7, 2011 AT 5:00 PM CENTRAL TIME

MAILING INSTRUCTIONS:  Print or type RFP Number and Return Due Date on the lower left hand comer of the
envelope or package. Sealed BAFOs should be in DPMM office (301 W High Street,
Room 630) by the return date and time.

(U.S. Mail) (Courier Service)

RETURN BAFO RESPONSE TO;: DPMM or DPMM
PO BOX 809 301 WEST HIGH STREET, RM 630
JEFFERSON CITY MO 65102-0809 JEFFERSON CITY MO 65101-1517

CONTRACT PERIOD: Date of Award through June 30, 2012
DELIVER SUPPLIES/SERVICES FOB (Frec On Board) DESTINATION TO THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

Department of Corrections
2729 Plaza Drive
Jefferson City MO 65109

The offeror hereby declares understanding, agreement and certification of compliance to provide the items and/or services, at the prices
quoted, in accordance with all terms and conditions, requirements, and specifications of the original RFP as modified by any previously
issued RFP amendments and by this and any previously issued BAFO requests. The offeror agrees that the language of the original RFP as
modified by any previously issued RFP amendments and by this and any previously issued BAFQ requests shall govern in the event of a
conflict with histher proposal. The offeror further agrees that upon receipt of an authorized purchase order from the Division of Purchasing
and Materials Management or when a Notice of Award is signed and issued by an authorized official of the State of Missouri, a binding
contract shall exist between the offeror and the State of Missouri.

SIGNATURE REQUIRED
DOING BUSINESS AS (DBA} NAME LEGAL NAME OF ENTITVANBIVIDUAL FILED WITH RS FOR THIS TAX D NO.
Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission
MAILING ADDRESS IRS FORM 1099 MAILING ADDRESS
3100 Broadway, Suite 226 3100 Broadway, Suite 226
CITY, STATE, ZIF CODE CITY, STATE, Z1F CODE
Kansas City, MO 64111 Kansas City, MO 64111
CONTACT PERSON EMAIL ADDRESS
Barry C. Mayer bmayer@kc-crime.org
PRONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER
816-960-6814 816-960-6808
TAXPAYER ID NUMBER (TIN) TAXPAYER ID (TIN) TYPE (CHECK ONE) VENDOR NUMBER (IF KNOWN)
44-0540176 x. FEN - __SSN 4405401760 0
YENDOR TAX FILING TYPE WITH IRS (CHECK ONE)
_ _Corporation _ _ Individual _ State/Local Govenment  Partnership __ Sole Proprietor _ x_IRS Tax-Exempt
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE
Tarsy C Y emeh 9/2/2012
PRINTED NAME d TITLE
Barry C. Mayer Vice-President




B3Z11185 BAFO No. 001 Page 2

BEST AND FINAL OFFER (BAFO) #001 to RFP B3Z11185

TITLE: Re-Entry Services in Kansas City

CONTRACT PERIOD: Date of Award through June 30, 2012

The following paragraphs and exhibit in RFP B3Z11185 have been amended:

3.63c
3.6.3 d. and its subparagraphs
Exhibit G




| Exhibit Revised by BAFO #001

EXHIBIT G
BUDGET/PRICE ANALYSIS

on an annual basis (assuming

Budget Categories

Annual Salary

The offeror should complete the following table in sufficient detail for information regarding the services proposed
no more than a $172,660 annual budget).

SECTION | — Administrative Services

Total

Professional Personnel (list name or ftitle)

1. Resource Specialist incl 12% Fringe 1 $35,700.00 $39,984.00

2.Resource Specialist incl 12% Fringe 1 $35,700.00 $39,984.00

3 Mentoring/Job Services Coordinator PTE $19.968.00 $21,496.00

PTE @ $16 x 24 hrs wkly x 52 wks + 7.65% 3 $

FICA

5. $ $

6. 3 $

7. $ $

8. $ b

Total Professional Personnel $101,464.00

Support Personne! (list)

1.LE/Corrections Liaison/Project Coordinator 20FTE $65,978.00 $14,779.00

(above inc! 12% fringe in total) 3 $

2.Administrative Assistant (Sarah Matthes) PTE $10,400.00 $11,195.00

(PTE @ $25hr x8hrs wkly x 52 wks +7.65%) $ 3

Total Support Personnel $127,438.00
Budget Catggﬂ'ies Quantity Unit Price Total

Travel Expenses (list) ’

1.Veh Mileage 25mi x 52wks x .37 (Res.Spec) 2 $962.00 $962.00

2.Vch Mileage 50mi x52wks x.37(Mentor Co) 1 $962.00 $962.00

3. $ $

4. $ 5

Total Travel Expenses $

Materials and Supplies (list)

1.Postage & Mailing $1,600.00 $1,600.00

2.0Office Supplies $998.00 $998.00

3. $ b

4, 3 3

Total Materials and Supplies $2,598.00

Total SECTION I (Annual): $131,960.00




SECTION I

—Services - Breakdown for array of services

Budget Categories Eg::::itt? Unit Price Total
Services
1.  Housing/Utilities 30 $500.00 $15,000.00
2. Employment Services/Activities 100 $100.00 $10,000.00
3.  Transportation bus passes-40 monthly & 240 $50x 40 $5,000.00
2000 one ride passes $1.50 x 2000
4. Food Assistance $ $
5. Clothing-work clothes(boots) for 100 $26.00 $2,600.00
employment services program
6. Family Services $ 3
7.  Personal ldentification 30 $15.00 $450.00
9. Financial Assistance $ $
9. Health Services 100 $50.00 $5,000.00
10. Mentoring Services 25 $80.00 $2,000.00
11. Other Services (list) 10 $65.00 $650.00
12. $ $
13. b $
14. $ $
15. $ $
16. $ $
17. $ $
18. $ $
19. $ $
20. $ $
Total Services $40,700.00
Other (list)
1. $ $
2. ¥ $
3. b $
4. 3 $
5. $ B
Total Other $0
Total SECTION I {Annual): $40,700.00
Total Annual Amount (Section I + Section IT) (not to exceed $172,660) $172,660.00




Assumptions used in above analysis:

v Annual number of participants 160

v" Number of days of services in program receiving services 365

NOTE:Payment to the contractor shall be made in arrears. The payment shall be in accordance with the
price stated on the pricing page as identified in the Invoicing and Payments Requirements.




Budget Narrative for SECTION JI- Services- Breakdown for array of services

In grant year 2010-2011, the Second Chance Center served 708 individuals with 151 enrolled in
intensive case management services for high risk, also known as “level 1II” offenders.
Projections in this application’s budget were made based upon last year’s round of services and
estimations of need, both for items that were offered in 2010-2011 and those items that were not
offered. Estimates were made based on expenditures, goals and needs for those served in the
past year with consideration for the target enrollment number of 160 individuals for this year’s
application.

Housing/ Utilities- It is estimated that this proposal could assist 30 individuals with housing
based, again, on last year’s numbers and gaps. The average spent last year was $540 per person
for 37 people. Five percent of the 708 participants received housing assistance dollars, yet
approximately 10% of all center participants attained a housing goal that they set with their
center specialist. Approximately one out of five participants served by this application may have
a housing goal; further, it is estimated that 18% of the total number of participants could benefit
from first month’s rent or deposit assistance. Some participants will be housed in transitional
facilities that require no rent/ deposit, which accounts for the 2% discrepancy. If additional
participants do need rent assistance, the resource specialist and program director are experienced
at working with all the area non-profits, including the faith community and HUD funded
services, offering rent assistance to the general public or those who are facing homelessness.
Additional resources will be leveraged as needed to support the housing goals of all participants.
The Second Chance Program already offers housing assistance through another Community
Reentry Process Grant. Those with severe housing needs are likely to be referred first to that
grant application rather than this one, It targets 50 individuals at KCCRC or who are homeless,
high risk and on supervision, including sex offenders.

Employment Services/ Activities- this $100 per person fee for 100 people is based on at least
knowing that that many clients will need employment assistance and are capable of taking
advantage of the Metropolitan Community Service Program Adopt Prospect employment
assistance project that incorporates job readiness/situational appropriateness classes, followed by
supervised work projects where work performance can be observed and job performance
feedback can be provided concluding with job placement assistance and job club options. Often
time Level 111 clients on probation have been court ordered to perform community service and
this program also covers that requirement.

Transportation/ Bus passes- Less than half of the center case management participants were bus
riders, estimated by last year’s services. No bus passes were offered by the center last year.
However, many were referred out to other organizations offering bus passes. Witha
conservative estimate, it is assumed that 200 people will get an average of 10 one ride passes
each (from this budget); upon earning full time employment, approximately 40 individuals will
get a monthly bus pass to help them sustain transportation until their first pay check. Again, the




center has access to other funds that were raised through monthly luncheons to support the costs
of bus passes. Ideally, the center will qualify in the coming year to receive bus passes at half
price or a reduced cost, which would double the amount that can be offered to participants.
Having not offered bus passes through the past grant, this item was slightly more difficult to
proiect than others.

Food Assistance- no food assistance was budgeted in this grant; participants, if qualified, will be
encouraged to apply for SNAP benefits. Further, there are hundreds of food pantries in the
KCMO area available on a regular basis. In order to be good stewards of Missouri DOC
funding, it was decided that there was no need to supplement the already abundant area food
programs through this funding.

Clothing- boots for the work program- boots have been priced at $26 per person for 100 people
expected to participate in the work experience offered by the MCSP employment assistance
project. If an individual is assigned to the program, boots will be purchased on their behalf. If
any individuals already have boots, this money will be re-allocated to cover costs of other items
related to permanent employment.

Family Services- there are numerous resources for family related services and activities in the
area and it was estimated there was no need to offer any items in this category.

Identification- like transportation, this program has not had funds in the past to offer ID or Birth
Certificates. Since MRP has advanced the ability of prisons to ensure those who are paroled in
Missouri DOC to community are able to leave facilities with Identification, it is assumed that
most will come to the program with birth certificates and identification cards. However, to be
work ready everyone must have an 1D and certainly a number of those served, estimated at less
than 20% will be in need of a replacement ID and/ or a Birth Certificate to acquire a Social
Security Card and/ or ID. If anyone in the program beyond the budgeted number needs funds for
ID’s, they will be referred to Catholic Charities, Gold Dome, Metro Lutheran Ministry or one of
the other many area agencies offering assistance with these needs.

Financial Assistance- no offenders will be assisted personally with finances under this award.

Health Services- this covers the fee for service for participants to enroll in the services offered by
Black Health Care Coalition. The number estimated that BHCC could serve in this initial year
was based on that organization’s current capacity; BHCC estimated that they could
accommodate 100 persons through this application at a rate of $50.00 per person. BHCC offers
a menu of free screening services, assists their clients in navigating through the myriad of
medical services in metro Kansas City, assists in signing up for free medications (doctor’s
approval needed), accesses treatment (substance abuse, mental health, and family counseling)
and much more. This service is supplemented by BHCC’s other funding and is a true bargain at
a rate of $50 per participant.




Mentoring Services- It is estimated that there will be two monthly events and one annual event
for mentors and their protégé. It is estimated that food and any other items for these events will
be covered at a cost of $80 per event, for a total of $2,000.

Other- GED Testing currently costs $65 per test in Missouri. This testing cost will increase in
the 2012-2013 school year. Based on the current rate, it is estimated that 10 participants may be
ready for their GED test in this grant year and not have another source to cover it’s cost. Many
area GED training centers cover their participants testing costs, including Literacy KC (a partner
of the KC Metro Reentry Coalition) therefore participants will be referred out if they need tests
that cannot be covered by this line item.




Jeremiah W. (Jay) Nixon

Governor
State of Missouri
Kelvin Simmons OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION James Miluski
Commissioner Division of Purchasing and Materials Management Director
301 West High Street, Room 630
Post Office Box 809

Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0809
(573) 751-2387 Tax: (573) 526-9816
TTD: (B00) 735-2966 Voice: (800) 735-2466
htep:/ / WWww.0a.mo.gov/ purch

August 30, 2011

Dear Offeror for B3211185:

In accordance with paragraph 3.2 of RFP B3Z11185 for re-entry services in Kansas City, this
letter shall constitute an official request by the State of Missouri to enter into competitive
negotiations with your company.

Included with this letter is a complete copy of the RFP, including revisions to the RFP as a result
of this request for negotiations. The cover page of the attached RFP is the Best and Final Offer
#001 form. This BAFO #001 form must be completed, signed by an authorized representative
of your organization, and returned with your BAFO response. Signing the BAFO #001 form
cover page confirms your understanding and agreement to comply with the provisions and
requirements of the RFP as modified by any previously issued RFP amendments by this request
for a BAFO.

Since the Budget/Price Analysis, Exhibit G, and related instructions have been revised via this
BAFO, your BAFO response must include a revised Exhibit G and budget justification. In
addition, the proposed number of participants needing services as identified in the services
budget category of Exhibit G appears small in comparison to the total number of participants
proposing to serve. Please explain.

In your response to this Best and Final Offer, you may make any maodification, addition, or
deletion deemed necessary to your proposal. However, please be advised that it is not
necessary for you to resubmit your entire proposal. Only the signed BAFO #001 form and any
portions of your proposal that are being revised as a result of this request for a Best and Final
Offer need be submitted.

Your BAFO response is your final opportunity to ensure that (1) all mandatory requirements of
the RFP have been met, (2) all RFP requirements are adequately described since all areas of the
proposal are subject to evaluation, and (3) this is your best offer, including a reduction or other
change to pricing.




You are requested to respond to this request for a BAFO by submitting a written, sealed “Best
and Final Offer” BY 5:00 p.m. Central Time on September 7, 2011 to:

Attention: Jjulie Kleffner
Division of Purchasing and Materials Management
301 West High Street, Truman Building, Room 630
Jefferson City, MO 65101-1517

The outside of the packet containing the BAFO response needs to state, “BAFO for B3Z211185”
on the lower left corner. Please include the original plus four (4) copies {for a total of five (5)
documents) of your response. Faxed or e-mailed responses are not acceptable.

You are reminded that pursuant to section 610.021, RSMo, proposal documents including any
best and final offer documents are considered closed records and shall not be divulged in any
manner until after a contract is executed or all proposals are rejected. Furthermore, you and
your agents (including subcontractors, employees, consultants, or anyone else acting on their
behalf} must direct all questions or comments regarding the RFP, the evaluation, etc. to me, as
the buyer of record. Neither you nor your agents may contact any other state employee
regarding any of these matters during the negotiation and evaluation process. Inappropriate
contacts or release of information about your proposal or BAFO are grounds for suspension
and/or exclusion from specific procurements.

If you have any questions regarding this BAFO request, please contact me at (573} 751-7656 or
e-mail me at Julie.Kleffner@oa.mo.gov. Your efforts in working with the State of Missouri to

ensure a thorough evaluation of your proposal are sincerely appreciated.

Sincerely,

Julie Kleffner

c: Evaluation Team
RFP B3711185

Attachment: RFP including BAFO #001 form



ORIGINAL

STATE OF MISSOURI

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

DIVISION OF PURCHASING AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT (DPMM)
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

AMENDMENT NO.: 1 REQ NO.: NR 931 YYY11708315
RFP NO.: B3Z11185 BUYER: Julie KiefToer

TITLE: Re-entry Services in Kansas City PHONE NO.: (573) 751-7656
ISSUE DATE: 08/01/11 E-MAIL: Julie.Kleffner@oa.mo.gov

RETURN PROPOSAL NO LATER THAN: August 16,2011 AT 2:00 PM CENTRAL TIME

MAILING INSTRUCTIONS:  Print or type RFP Number and Return Due Date on the lower left hand corner of the
envelope or package. Delivered seaied J)rpposals must be in DPMM office (301 W High
Street, Room 630) by the return date and time.

RETURN PROPOSAL AND AMENDMENT(S) TO:

(U.S. Mail) {Courier Service)

DPMM or DPMM

PO BOX 809 301 WEST HIGH STREET, ROOM 630
JEFFERSON CITY MO 65102-0809 JEFFERSON CITY MO 65101-1517

CONTRACT PERIOD: Date of Award through June 30, 2012
DELIVER SUPPLIES/SERVICES FOB (Free On Board) DESTINATION TO THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

Department of Corrections
2729 Plaza Drive
Jefferson City MO 65109

The offeror hereby declares understanding, agreement and certification of compliance to provide the items and/or services, at the prices
quoted, in accordance with all terms and conditions, requirements, and specifications of the original RFP as modified by this and any
previously issued RFP amendments. The offeror should, as a matter of clarity and assurance, also sign and return all previously issued RFP
amendment(s) and the original RFP document. The offeror agrees that the language of the original RFP as modified by this and any
previously issued RFP amendments shall govern in the event of a conflict with hisher proposal. The offerar further agrees that upon
receipt of an authorized purchase order from the Division of Purchasing and Materials Management or when a Notice of Award is signed
and issued by an authorized official of the State of Missouri, a binding contract shall exist between the offeror and the State of Missouri.

SIGNATURE REQUIRED

DOING BUSINESS AS (DBA) NAME LEGAL NAME OF ERTITY/INPIVIDUAL FILED WITH IRS FOR THIS TAX ID NO.
Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission Kansas City Metvopolitan Crime Commission
MAILING ADDRESS IRS FORM 1099 MAILING ADDRESS
3100 Broadway, Suite 226 3100 Broadway, Suite 226
CITY, STATE, ZIF CODE CITY, STATE, ZIF CODE
Kansas City, Missouri 64111 Kansas City, MO 64111
CONTACT PERSON EMAIL ADDRESS
Barry Mayer, Vice President bmaver@ke-crime.org
PHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER
(816)960-6814 {816)960-6808
TAXPAYER ID NUMBER (TIN) TAXPAYER 1D (TIN) TYPE (CHECK ONE) VENDOR NUMBER (IF KNOWN)
44-0540176 X FEIN - __SSN 4405401760-0
VENDOR TAX FILING TYPE WITH IRS (CHECK GNE)
___Cormporation ___Individwal ___ State/Local Government _ Partnership __ Sole Proprietor _X _IRS Tax-Exempt
AUTHORJIZED SHCNATURE DATE

y &7 C/)’ﬂw;gxa S5 [t
PRINTED NAME TITLE
Barry C. Mayer Vice President




ORIGINA L

STATE OF MISSOURI

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

DIVISION OF PURCHASING AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT (DPMM)
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

RFP NO.: B3Z11185 REQ NO.: NR 931 YYY11708315
TITLE:  Re-entry Services in Kaasas City BUYER: Julie Kleffner
ISSUE DATE: 07/11/11 PHONE NO.: (573) 751-7656

E-MAIL: Julie. Klefiner@oa.mo.gov

RETURN PROPOSAL NO LATER THAN: Avgust 16,2011 AT 2:00 PM CENTRAL TIME

MAILING INSTRUCTIONS:  Print or type RFP Number and Return Due Date on the lower left hand comner of the
envelope or package. Delivered sealed proposals must be in DPMM office (301 W High
Street, Room 630) by the return date and time.

(U.S. Mail) (Courier Service)
RETURN PROPOSAL TO: DPMM or DPMM
PO BOX 809 301 WEST HIGH STREET, RM 630

JEFFERSON CITY MO 65102-0809 JEFFERSON CITY MO 65101-1517
CONTRACT PERIOD: Date of Award through June 39, 2012
DELIVER SUPPLIES/SERVICES FOB (Free On Board) DESTINATION TO THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

Department of Corrections
2729 Plaza Drive
Jefferson City Mo 65109

The offeror hereby declares understanding, agreement and certification of compliance to provide the items and/or services, at the prices
guoted, in accordance with all requirements and specifications contained herein and the Terms and Conditions Request for Proposal
(Revised 01/10/11). The offeror further agrees that the language of this RFP shall govern in the event of a conflict with his/her proposal.
The offeror further agrees that upon receipt of an suthorized purchase order from the Division of Purchasing and Materials Management or
when a Notice of Award is signed and issued by an authorized official of the State of Missouri, a binding contract shall st between the
offeror and the State of Missouri.

SIGNATURE REQUIRED

DOING BUSINESS AS {DBA) NAME LEGAL NAME OF ENTITY/INDIVIDUA L FILED WITH IRS FOR THIS TAX 1D NO,
Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission
MAILING ADDRESS IRS FORM 1099 MAILING ADDRESS

3100 Broadway, Ste. 226 3160 Broadway, Suite 226

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

Kansas City, MO 64111 Kansas City, MO 64111

CONTACT PERSON EMAIL ADDRESS
Barry C. Mayer, Vice President bmayer@kc-crime.org
PHONE NUMBER FAX RUMBER
{816)960-6814 {816)960-6800
TAXPAYER iD NUMRER (TIN) TAXPAYER ID (TIN) TYPE {CHECK ONE) VENDOR NUMBER (TF KNOWN)

X FEIN SSN

44-0540176 — 4405401760 0
VENDOR TAX FILING TYPE WITH IRS (CHECK GNE)

_ Corporation _ _Individual _ State/Local Govemment ___ Partnership __ Sole Proprietor _X_ IRS Tax-Exempt
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE

Z?W c ))’) e sl 8//&7//

PRINTED NAME TITLE

Barry C. Mayer Vice President




COST




B3Z11185

| Pricing Page revised by Amendment #1 ]
4. PRICING PAGE

4.1 Reentry Services - The offeror shall indicated a firm fixed price per day per offender for the original
contract period and a maximum price per day per offender for each renewal option for providing the
services in accordance with the provisions and requirements of this RFP. (Line item 001. Commodity
Code: 92438)

Administration of Offender Re-Entry Services

Contract Period Price Unit
Original Contract Period | $5.91 Firm Fixed Price | Per Day, Per Offender
First Renewal Option $6.21* Maximum Price | Per Day, Per Offender
Second Renewal Option $6.52* Maximum Price Per Day, Per Offender
Third Renewal Option $6.85* Maximum Price | Per Day, Per Offender

In the event the State of Missouri exercises its option to renew the contract for additional
contract periods, all prices for the renewal periods shall remain the same as for the original
contract period unless additional funds are available or funds are reduced. (Refer to Renewal
Periods, paragraph 2.9.3 described herein.)

*Respondent agrees with above statement and offers 5% compounded increased amounts for per day, per offender
only in event renewal opfion increases become available.




Experience, Reliability, & Expertise of Personnel




EXHIBIT A
OFFEROR INFORMATION

History of the Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission

The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission, founded in 1949, has had a mission of
creating a safer Kansas City for over sixty-two years. The organization began as a result of a
Jackson County Grand Jury determining a need for a response to corruption in local government,
using business and civic leaders to create a solution. After processes were put in place to
increase the safety of all Kansas Citians, the Crime Commission leaders decided to continue with
a mission to create a safer community by supporting law enforcement and justice agencies and
their causes.

Overview: Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission

Today, the mission of the Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission is executed through its
four programs. These include Crime Stoppers’ TIPS Hotline, SAFE, Metropolitan Community
Service Program and Second Chance Program. By offering an anonymous hotline and reward,
set up for the community to report crime, Crime Stoppers has been responsible for the
apprehension of over 10,000 individuals and has cleared over 20,000 felony cases, including
solving over 500 homicides, since it’s inception in the 1980s. SAFE is an endowment fund
available to assist the surviving family members when a law enforcement officers, EMTs or
firefighters lose their life in the line of duty. Metropolitan Community Service Program assists
court systems and Probation and Parole officers by brokering over 5,000 community service
workers annually to non-profit worksites throughout the metro and monitoring the completion of
their court ordered community service. Second Chance Program, founded in 2008, was created to
create a metro-wide strategy to decrease prisoner recidivism and increase the success of former
offenders upon their return to the metropolitan Kansas City area. The Kansas City Metropolitan
Crime Commission programs are described in more detail, including staff and board rosters, on
www.kc-crime.org .

Overview: Second Chance Program of the Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission
Second Chance Program established itself as the area leader in prisoner reentry by beginning
with work on a macro level, with the following accomplishments:

e The founding of the Kansas City Metropolitan Reentry Coalition with over 100
organizations acting as official members to reduce barriers and increase opportunities for
offenders throughout our community (established in January 2009).

o The completion of research with University of Missouri-Kansas City, funded by Health
Care Foundation of Greater Kansas City, entitled: Examining Offender Reentry in
Metropolitan Kansas City: A Gaps Analysis (completed April 2010).

¢ Ensuring dissemination of information related to the reentry services in the metropolitan
area, including opportunities and programs for offenders, fundraising events, and options
for collaboration (ongoing, since 2008).

The activities related to the Reentry Coalition have been many and here are a few of the
highlights:
¢ Employment Symposium held in Spring 2010, to encourage small businesses to hire ex-
offenders, attended by over 60 individuals.




e Landlord Forums, to educate landlords on renting responsibly to former offenders,
securing 20 new landlords in Kansas and Missouri, who will consider renting to returning
offenders.

e Training exchange, ensuring coalition members have access to other organizations’ state
of the art trainings. Members logged over 1,250 free professional training hours through
the coalition from 2009 to present.

e Monthly speakers from new and sought after resources present to the coalition monthly,
particularly regarding housing, employment, transportation and resources.

¢ Positive media- the coalition has ensured three positive press pieces about offenders and
employment in the past year.

e Resource Fair (October 2009) offered the opportunity for all Coalition Members to share
their resources with area offenders, in partnership with Black Health Care Coalition.

¢ Public awareness. the work of this committee has ensured a change in the local Liquor
License City Ordinance that some people with felonies can now work in KCMO
restaurants.

¢ Public awareness, has ensured the words “Registered Offender” will be removed from
Kansas Offenders driver’s licenses by October of this year (state statue actually calls for a
“numeric code™).

The research performed by the Crime Commission with the University of Missouri-Kansas City
can serve as the foundation for a metro-wide strategic plan to reduce the overall recidivism rate
in metropolitan Kansas City. This research identifies gaps related to public policies, systemic
practices, services and programs that, if addressed, could reduce area recidivism. Thus far, the
research has been presented to the following audiences:

Board of Police Commissioners

Board of Directors of the KC Metro Crime Commission

Second Chance Advisory Board

City Council of KCMO Public Safety Committee

Kansas City Metropolitan Reentry Coalition (and general public)

Johnson County KS Reentry Task Force

Homeless Task Force of Kansas City (judicial sub-committee)

Overview of Second Chance Center Services Currently Being Offered:
In 2010, the Second Chance Program used information regarding service gaps and evidence
based services to create a program called the Second Chance Center. With funding from
Missouri Reentry Process Grants, Second Chance Center opened in August 2010 at our offices at
the Pioneer Campus of the Metropolitan Community Colleges. The Programming at the Center
currently includes the following:

e Job Readiness Training
Transitional Jobs
Job Club
Job Placement/ Search Assistance
Case Management- includes goal planning and referrals to recovery support, mental
health, physical health, basic needs, etc.




Case Staffings with key partners, including Probation and Parole, Kansas City Police
Department, support systems, offender, mentors, and service providers.

Mentor Recruitment and Matching

Housing Services

Rent/ Deposit Assistance

Tenants” Rights and Responsibility Classes

Database www.secondhcanceke.org to share information, linkages and announcements
about all area resources

Welcome Back Sessions, includes Second Chance and all interested Coalition Members,
twice a month they present their resources to offenders on supervision with MO P/P.
Hotline for Information and Referral- available to all area Missouri supervised offenders
and providers who seek information about resources.

Linkages to hard to secure resources and identification of existing gaps.

Reentry Coalition Members and Relationships:

Through the Reentry Coalition and research with UMKC, the Crime Commission and Second
Chance Program has developed networked working relationships with the following
organizations whose applications for Coalition Membership are on file:

100 Men of Blue Hills

A Second Chance at Learning

AdHoc Group Against Crime

Adult Basic Education

Aim4Peace

American Indian Council

Amethyst Place

Anger Alternatives, Inc.

Ava’s Grace Scholarship Fund

Benilde Hall

Beyond The Conviction

Big Brothers Big Sisters

Bishop Sullivan Center

Black Health Care Coalition

Blue Hills Community Services
Catholic Charities, Turnaround Program
Center for Equitable Education (CEED)
City Union Mission

Coalition of Hispanic Organizations, COHO
COMBAT

Communities Creating Opportunities
Community Christian Church
Community Housing Network
Community Mediation Center
Comprehensive Mental Health Services, Inc.
Connections to Success




Cultivate KC (formerly KCCUA)

Department of Veteran’s Affairs

Dismas House

Don Bosco Centers

Educational Opportunity Center

Era Environmental & Safety, Inc.

Family Conservancy

Federal Bureau of Prisons

First Call (formerly NCADD)

Focus Aftercare Ministries

Footprints, Inc.

Freedom Fire

Full Employment Council

Gentlemen of the Roundtable

Goodwill of Western MO and Eastern KS
Gracious Promise Foundation

Greater Kansas City Local Initiative Support Corporation
Greater Pentecostal Temple Church

Habitat for Humanity (Kansas City)

Hillcrest Transitional Housing

Homeless Services Coalition

Human Relations Department, City of KCMO
Inner Change Freedom Initiative

Jackson County Community Mental Health Fund
Jackson County Department of Corrections
Jackson County Regional Correctional Center
Jackson County Family Court

Johnson County Department of Corrections
Kansas City Community Center

Kansas City Community Release Center, MO DOC
Kansas City Free Health Care Clinic

Kansas City Police Department

Kansas City Rescue Mission

Kansas Dept. of Commerce

Kansas Dept. of Corrections

Kansas Workforce Partnership

Keys are at the Cross Prison Ministries, Inc.
Kim Wilson Housing, Inc.

Legal Aid of Western Missouri

Light of the Whirl

Literacy KC

Local Investment Commission (LINC)
Man2Man

Metropolitan Community College, Business Technology Campus




Metro Lutheran Ministry

Metropolitan Missionary Baptist Church
Metropolitan Organization for Racial and Economic Equity, MORE2
Mirror, Inc.

Missouri Assaciation for Social Welfare

Missouri Dept, of Corrections

Missouri Division of Probation and Parole

Missouri Division of Workforce Development
Missouri Division of Development (Disabled Veterans Outreach Program)
Missouri Reentry Process, MO DOC

National Association of Construction Contractor’s Co-Operation
Neighborhood Housing Services of Kansas City, Inc.
New Reflections

Northland Dependency Services, LLC

Northwest Communities Development Corp.

One Stop Ministries

Pacific Accord, Inc.

P&P Negotiation Services, LLC

Preferred Family Healthcare

Project Mom and Dad

Reaching Out from Within

Reconciliation Services

ReDiscover

ReEngage, Incorporated

Regional Prevention Center Wyandotte County
Resource Development Institute

Salvation Army

Samuel U. Rogers Health Center

Sarita Lynne Ministries

Seton Center Family & Health Services

Shepherd’s Way Ministries, Inc., The

Swope Health Services

Thank You Christ Ministries

Turning Point Recovery Services, LLC

Unified Government of WY/KCK

U.S Probation Office of Eastern MO

U.S Probation Office- KS

U.S Penitentiary Leavenworth

University of Missouri Extension Office

Unity in the Community

University of Missouri-Kansas City, Criminology Dept.
Urban Rangers

Welcome House

Women on a Mission



o Wyandotte Serves/Wyandotte Works

The Crime Commission is the only area organization that has chosen to engage in broad
leadership to ensure an organized community response to prisoner reentry. This organization is
uniquely positioned, with a mission of public safety supported by the broad community,
including law enforcement and corrections organizations, court systems, social service agencies,
and private citizens who support this mission and participate in our work. Having connections
with business and civic leaders, law enforcement entities, and area non-profit organizations has
helped us create and advance partnerships unique to this area.

To date, our partnerships have ensured the development of the Kansas City Metropolitan Reentry
Coalition, including a mission, vision and committees each with goals to remove specific barriers
and advance opportunities for offenders returning to metropolitan Kansas City. The partners
serve as committee chairs with the following organizations serving in leadership roles in our
comrnittees:
e Housing Committee: Chaired by Life Focus, Ron Peckham
e Public Education and Advocacy Committee, Past Chairs Sister Rose McLamey and
Diana Turner (new chair, TBA)
¢ Employment Committee: Chaired by Kansas Workforce Development, John Casner,
retired
e Resources Committee: Chaired by Johnson County Corrections, Adult Rehabilitation
Center Director, Antonio Booker (past chairs, Susan Ray, KC Free and Lisa Honn,
Literacy KC)
e Transportation Committce:  Chaired by Comprehensive Metal Health Services,
Renaissance West, Michael Williams
o Law Enforcement and Corrections Committee, Co-Chaired by KCPD Deputy Chief
Kevin Masters and KCMCC Vice-President Barry Mayer
®
In July 2011, all of the above chairs, past and present, convened with Lora McDonald, Second
Chance Program Director, to begin to establish a “Leadership Team” for the Reentry Coalition,
to further develop a process of making decisions, sharing in both responsibility for and direction
of the Coalition as a whole.

With the launching of the Second Chance Center, Reentry Coalition Members have begun
working together to provide information to all offenders in our area on supervision with Missouri
Department of Corrections. Beginning in August 2010, the Reentry Coalition members were
invited to participate in our Welcome Back Sessions, which are held twice a month at Second
Chance offices. Over 600 individuals have participated in Welcome Back Sessions to date; all
were on supervision with Missouri Probation and Parole and referred by their officer. Each of
our partners has been invited to make presentations to offenders and answer questions about the
availability of resources. To date, the following organizations have presented to participants of
the Welcome Back Sessions:

¢ Beyond the Conviction

¢ Catholic Charities Turnaround Program

o Connections to Success
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Dismas House

Educational Opportunity Center

Episcopal Community Services Culinary Cornerstones Program
Federal Student Aid

Footprints Recovery Station

Goodwil! Industries

Hope Faith Ministries

KC Free Health Clinic

Kansas City Missouri Police Department

Life Focus

Literacy Kansas City

Metropolitan Community Colleges, Business and Technical Campus
Missouri Vocational Rehabilitation

Missouri Division of Employment Development

Reconciliation Services

Serendipity Community Services

Likewise, the Second Chance Center Program Director and staff meet regularly with community
organizations to better identify more “hidden” opportunities and to capture the full spectrum of
each agency’s resources. The data captured through this process is added to
www.secondchancekc.org which is updated on a regular basis. Processes are currently
underdevelopment, which wili formalize relationships with the resource providers. Those
MOU’s developed will be retained on file and available upon request by Missouri Department of
Corrections.

Unique to the Second Chance Center is the relationships Program Director, Lora McDonald has
with the three area Homelessness Coalitions. McDonald currently serves on the Kansas City
Homelessness Task Force Judicial and Law Enforcement Sub-Committee. McDonald has a
history of providing services through local homeless continuums of care. There is tremendous
overlap between the homeless and returning offender/ parolee population, yet prior to leadership
from the Crime Commission, the relationships between the service providers were weak at best.
Now, area providers who view themseclves as working with a homeless or impoverished
population have joined the efforts of the Reentry Coalition. The services provided through these
Homeless Coalitions are far more accessible now to people who are more familiar with the world
of reentry and corrections. We reciprocate, as a coalition, by sharing information about
landlords who are willing to rent to people who have felonies in their background.

Kansas City, Missouri Police Department, Relationships, Roles and Commitment:

The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission has a sixty-two year tradition of working with
the Kansas City, Missouri, Police Department. The current Crime Commission President,
Richard Easley, is a former Chief of Police of the KCPD. Vice President, Barry Mayer, is a
former KCPD Major with over 40 years of public safety service experience. All area law
enforcement agencies, including the KCPD, have contracts with the Crime Commission to
provide for the Crime Stoppers’ TIPS Hotline. The Crime Commission currently has a Detective,
Kevin Boehm, assigned by the KCPD, who provides oversight for the Crime Stoppers’ TIPS
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Hotline. The Crime Commission is a Department of Justice Violent Gang and Gun Crime
Reduction Program (PSN) grant recipient for the past 9 years. Under that program, the Crime
Commission, United States Attorney’s Office, Missouri Probation & Parole and other justice
system partners initiated Operation Ceasefire. Since the program has a heavy suppression
emphasis to prosecute federal firearms violations, including Felons in Possession of firearms
cases, the Operation Ceasefire Committee began a reentry strategy to insure warnings not to
carry firearms be made to felons under supervision by Missouri Probation & Parole and US
Probation Services. Warnings were issued in “town hall” meeting like settings to clients invited
by our MO P&P partners by the United States Attorney’s Office and Chief of Police Office first,
and then representatives from the community were invited in next to dialogue with clients in how
they could support their successful reentry and avoid gun crime violations. Progress in reducing
violent gun crimes of homicide, aggravated assaults and robberies has been made and this project
has contributed to the over 50% reduction in gun crime incidents in the past 5 years. In 2011, a
new project is being coordinated at the Crime Commission with the community, police and
probation & parole that identify crime hot spots and any Level III high risk offenders that live in
the targeted area for Second Chance referral services with the plan to eliminate these offenders
from contributing to the crime problem there.

In 2011, Kansas City Police Department became an official member of the Reentry Coalition.
Deputy Chief Kevin Masters attends monthly Reentry Coalition meetings and extends his
expertise to other members of this group. He has agreed to Co-Chair the newly formed Law
Enforcement and Corrections Sub-Committee with Barry Mayer, V.P. of the Crime Commission
also serving as Co-Chair. Masters attends (or assigns a Major to attend) every Welcome Back
Session held at the center. He addresses the audience and feels their questions. His message can
be found in the attachment on KCPD letterhead.

This project will include, at the mutual desire of Probation and Parole and KCPD, a strong
connection between these departments. The KCPD will have the opportunity to be a liaison to
participate in case team meetings, also known as “staffings”, to be held at Probation and Parole
field offices or community agencies on a monthly basis. Officers have the opportunity to share
information pertinent to the participant, who may also be in attendance, and their community.
Officers can benefit from learning about resources available in the community to assist with
others they may encounter in their work.

Leadership and Governing of the Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission:
The Crime Commission is governed by a stellar Board of Directors of some of Kansas City’s
most recognizable leaders. The Crime Commission Board of Directors is as follows:
Larry Armel, Larry Armel and Associates

Scott Barton, Cerner Corp.

Charles Battey, Sprint

Mike Beal, Balls Food Stores

Merrell Bennekin, Board of Police Commissioners, KCMO

Web Bixby, Kansas City Life Insurance Company

Alvin Brooks, Ad Hoc Group Against Crime

Mike Crawford, Holliday Motors Co.

James Crawford, U.S. Bank



William Dana, Central Bank of Kansas City
Vince Dasta, DST Systems, Inc.

Carl DiCapo, Liberty Memorial

John Dillingham, Dillingham Enterprises

Mark Dunmire, Growth Industries

William Dunn, Sr., J.E. Dunn Construction
Sherri Enright, Blue Cross Blue Shields

Linda Fischer, The Keirnen Companies

Dan Glass, Kansas City Royals Baseball
Wayne Godsey, KMBC-TV & KCWE-TV
William Grojean, riverside Transport

Robert Hack, Missouri Gas Energy

Leon Harden, Positron Public Safety Systems
William Herdegen, KCP&L

Jon Jackson, University of Kansas Hospital
Terry Kilroy, Polsinelli, Shugart, PC

James Kissinger, YRC Worldwide

Mel Laverty, Hallmark Cards

Carol Marinovich, Board Chair, Fleishman Hillard
Karen Phillips, Community Volunteer

Jay Reardon, Commerce Bank

Greg Reintjes, Hi-Tech Industrial Services, Inc.
Robert Reintjes, George P. Reintjes, Co., Inc.
Trey Runnion, Spring Board Financial

CIiff Sargeon, Missouri Mental Health Commission (past)
Williard Snyder, Breidenthal-Snyder Foundation
Brad Sprong, KPMG, LLP

Kent Sunderland, Ash Grove Cement Co.
Bailus Tate, retired, KCP&L

Pat Thetford, AT&T Public Safety Solutions
Mark Thompson, Country Club Bank

Dennis Triplett, UMB Bank

The overall Crime Commission Board is responsible for the governing of the organizations and
makes decisions for the overall welfare of the organization. Audits are conducted by an outside
firm and are provided to the board for their review at the end of the fiscal year. Likewise, the
Board approves the agency’s annual budget.

Each of the Crime Commission’s four programs also has an Advisory Board. Seven of the
current Crime Commission Board Members serve on the Second Chance Advisory Board. These
members participate in fundraising and get more involved in the programmatic decisions than the
governing board of the organizations. The Second Chance Advisory Board Roster follows:

Richard Anderson, Platte County Sheriff
Charles Battey, Sprint
Alvin Brooks, President, Ad Hoc Group Against Crime
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Terry Calaway, President, Johnson County Community College

William Dana, President, Central Bank of Kansas City

Paulette Detillier, Era Environmental and Safety

Carl DiCapo, Liberty Memorial

Jackie Dunn, Missouri Probation and Parole

Peter Dunn, Skylight Financial

William Dunn, Sr. Chairman Emeritus, J.E. Dunn Construction

Anne LaBella, Judge, KCMO Municipal Court

Fernando Gaitan, Jr. Chief U.S. District Judge, Western District of Missouri
Kenneth Gibson, Past President, Donnelly College

Ellen Hanson, Chief, Lenexa Police Department

Wallace Hartsfield, Reverend, Metropolitan Missionary Baptist Church
Robert Lee Hill, Reverend, Community Christian Church

Lisa Honn, Literacy KC

Emie Johnson, Judge, Wyandotte County District Court

Cathy Jolly, Former Councilwoman, City of Kansas City

Chi King, U.S. Probation Office

Nancy Leazer, retired, Municipal Correctional Center

John Modest Miles, Reverend, Morningstar Missionary Baptist Church
Jean Peters-Baker, Prosecutor, Jackson County Prosecutor’s Office

Julie Porter, Executive Director, Local Initiatives Support Corporation
Reverend Kenneth Ray, Baptist Minister’s Union

Albert Riederer, Attorney, Riederer Law Firm

Cliff Sargeon, Alderman, Raytown, MO

Williard Snyder, (Ret. Col.), Breidenthal-Snyder Foundation and Crime Commissioner
Kent Sunderland, CEQ, Ash Grove Cement Company

Bailus Tate, Retired, Former KCP&L President and Crime Commissioner
Myma Trickey, President, Kansas City Community Center

Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission Financial Solvency:

The Crime Commission’s most recent audit has been attached for review to this application to
demonstrate the sound state of the organization’s finances. The Crime Commission continues to
do business and avoid layoffs in this tough economic climate, when many non-profit
organizations have been forced to close their doors. With our current board leadership, reputable
staff, and quality of services, we plan to continue to grow as an organization.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission
Kansas City, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The Kansas City
Metropolitan Crime Commission (a nonprofit organization) as of February 28, 2011, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Commission’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior
year summarized information has been derived from the Commission’s 2010 financial statements
and, in our report dated July 7, 2010, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements. : R

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
~ States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission as of February 28,

2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity
withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

M v Ce . PA

June 14, 2011




THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION

STATEMENT COF FINANCIAL POSITION

February 28, 2011

(with summarized financial Information for February 28, 2010)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Certificates of deposit

Investments

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Promises receivable

Prepaid expenses

Deposits

Property and equipment, less accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and payroll withholdings
Deferred revenue - State of Missouri Department of Corrections grants
Deferred revenue - MCSP city contract

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2011 2010
$ 509,904 308237
368,519 452,524
267,718 264,839
83,657 39,618
47773 7277
4,550 131,070
5.639 4,352
4,434 4434
30,543 29,333
$1322737 1,307,178
$ 10759 3,217
52,164 48,681
45,216 i
7.500 7,500
115,639 59,398
638,291 632,082
568,807 615,698
1207098 1,247,780
$ 1,322,737 1,307,178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended February 28, 2011

(wlth summarized financlal Information for the year ended February 28, 2010)

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Revenues
Municipal contracts
Metropolitan Community Service Program client fees
Contributions
Federal grants/contracts - Project Safe Neighborhood
State of Missouri Department of Corrections grants
Special events
Annual and monthly luncheons
Interest and dividends
Realized loss on investments
Unrealized gain on investments
Designated TIPS contributions
Kansas City’s Most Wanted publication
Other

Net assets released from restrictions

Expenses
Program services

Crime Stoppers program
Metropolitan Community Service Program
Project 8afe Neighborhood program
SAFE program
Sccond Chance program
KCMCC programs

Administrative

Fundraising
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions
DECREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
DECREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

2011 2010
231,200 236,200
248,318 231,140
252,762 184,797

87,276 288,176
143,086 -
126,992 125,328

49,915 53,880

16,026 18,833

(7,841) (27,194)

19,029 44,779

12,101 2,199

34,594 38,782

8,098 621

1,221,556 1,197,541

91,879 174,084

1,313,435 1,371,625
246,310 244,383
296,234 262,545

87,276 288,176

82,427 51,041
229,214 160,947
174,035 186,721

1,115,496 1,193,813

100,785 88,301

90,945 87,238
1,307,226 1,369,352
6,209 2,273
44,988 55,057
(91,879) (174,084)
(46,891) (119,027)
(40,682) (116,754)
1,247,780 1,364,534

$ 1,207,098 1,247,780

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2011

(with summarized financial information for the year ended February 28, 2019)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Net realized loss on investments
Net unrealized gain on investments
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Grants receivable
Accounts receivable
Promises recejvable
Prebaid cxpenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and payroll withholdings
Deferred revenue - State of Missouri Department of Corrections grants
Deferred revenue - MCSP city contract

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Reinvestment of interest on certificates of deposit
Purchase of certificates of deposit
Redemption of certificates of deposit
Sale (purchase) of investments
Reinvestment of investment income
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of property and equipment

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2011 2010

$ (40,682) (116,754)
15,673 18,402
(6,500) -
7,841 27,194
(19,029) (44,779
(44,039)  (39,618)
24,998 35,774
126,520 68,930
(1,287) (1,296)
7,542 (42,132)
3,483 23,665
45216 -
- (8,000)
119,736 (78,614)
@,130)  (16,916)
(86391) (90,000
174,526 .
13,000 (89,432)
(4,691) 6,572)
6,500 -
(16,883) (5,000)
81,931 (207,920
201,667  (286,534)
308,237 594,771
$ 509,904 308237

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIJAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission, a Missouri nonprofit organization, was
incorporated in September 1949, Iis purpose is to make Kansas City a safer and more secure
place to live, do business, and visit. The Commission sponsors four major programs: Crime
Stoppers, the Metropolitan Community Service Program (MCSP), Project Safe Neighborhood
(PSN), and Second Chance, Crime Stoppers helps police solve crimes by paying rewards to
anonymous callers who use the 474-TIPS Hotline. MCSP receives minor offenders sentenced by
the courts and places them at not-for-profit work sites and at neighborhood cleanups instead of
serving jail sentences at taxpayer expense. PSN creatcs a focus by local law enforcement to
federally prosecute felons in possession of firearms. The United State’s Attorney’s Office of the
Western District of Missouri leads a Steering Committee that also features an Anti-Gang
Initiative. Second Chance establishes a metro-wide crime prevention strategy through research,
advocacy, and fundraising to increase opportunities for ex-offenders to lead productive lives
rather than return to prison. A metropolitan Re-entry Coalition is established with membership
from community organizations, agencies, and individuals to address obstacles and barriers that
face ex-offenders.

The Commission also sponsors the Surviving Spouse and Family Endowment Fund (SAFE).
SAFE provides immediate, and possibly long-term, financial assistance to the spouses, children,
and/or dependent parents of sworn police officers, firefighters, and emergency services personnecl
killed in the line of duty in the Missouri counties of Cass, Clay, Jackson, and Platte and the
Kansas counties of Douglas, Johnson, Miami, Shawnee, and Wyandotte.

Property and Equipment

The Commission capitalizes significant acquisitions of property and equipment, which are
recorded at cost. Donated assets are recorded at fair value at the date received. Depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful lives of the related assets using the straight-line method.

Receivables

Grants receivable are recognized when the expenses related to the grant have been incurred.
Accounts receivable are recognized when the customer has been invoiced. Unconditional promises
to give are recognized as revenue in the year the promise is made. Unconditional promises (o give
that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net realizable value. Accounts
outstanding longer than the contractual payment terms are considered past due. The Commission
determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time
receivables are past due, the Commission’s previous loss history, the customer’s current ability to
pay its obligation to the Commission, and the condition of the general economy and the industry
as a whole. The Commission writes off receivables when they become uncollectible, There was
no allowance for uncollectible receivables as of February 28, 2011 or 2010.
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THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2011
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Recognition-of Donor Restrictions

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support i3 recognized. All other donor-
restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
mssets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Expense Allocation

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services. Expenses related
to more than one function are charged to programs and supporting services based on
management’s estimates. Administrative expenses include those expenses that are not directly
identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support and direction of
the Commission.

' Income Taxes

The Commission is generally exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section
501(c)(3) and is not considered a private foundation.

The Commission recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after
determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position
following an andit. For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the amount
recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood
of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant taxing authority.

The Commission is subject to income tax regulations in the U.S, federal jurisdiction and certain
state jurisdictions. Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the
related tax Jaws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply. With few exceptions,
the Commission is no longer subject 10 income tax examinations by the applicable tax authorities

for the years before 2008. If any were to be incurred, the Commission’s policy is to record

penalties and interest assessed by income taxing authorities as operating expenses.

Cash Equivalents

The Commission considers highly liquid investments purchased with maturities of less than three
months to be cash equivalents.
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THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Summarized Information

The financial statements include certain prior year sutnmarized comparative information in total
but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Commission’s
financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2010, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Reclassifications

Certain items in the 2010 summarized comparative information have been reclassified to
conform to the 2011 presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the change in net
assets.

Subseguent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 14, 2011, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB Accounting Standards Codification™ (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, establishes a single authoritative definition of fair value, sets a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires additional disclosures about fair value measurements. In
accordance with ASC 820, the Commission classifies its assets and liabilities into Level 1
(securities valued using quoted market prices from active markets for identical assets), Level 2
(securities not traded on an active market for which observable inputs are readily available), and
Level 3 (securities valued based on significant unobservable inputs). Investments are classified
in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.
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THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2011
NOTE 2 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - Continued
The following are descriptions of the valuation methodologies and inputs for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value, as well as the general classification pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
» Exchange traded funds - Investments in exchange traded funds valued at the quoted

market prices in an active market are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

s Government and agency bonds - Government and agency bonds valued at the quoted
market prices in an active market are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

¢ Mutual funds - Mutual funds are valued at the net asset value of the shares held by the
Commission at the reporting date.

Assets at Fair Value as of February 28, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity mutual funds $ 39,577 - - 39,577
Exchange traded funds
Domestic 17,000 - - 17,000
Intemational 10,796 - - 10,796
Government and agency bonds 200,345 - - 200,345
$ 267718 - - 267718

Assets at Fair Value as of Fe 28, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity mutual funds $ 83294 - - 83,294
Government and agency bonds 181,545 - - 181,545
$_ 264,839 - - 264,839
9
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THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

February 28, 2011

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at:

Office equipment
Computer equipment
Vehicles

Furniture

Accumulated depreciation

NOTE 4 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Net assets were temporarily restricted for:

Crime Stoppers program

MCSP program

Second Chance program
SAFE program

10

February 28, February 28,

2011 2010
$ 29,354 29,354
173,451 156,568
- 28,719
7.688 _7,688
210,493 222,329

(179,950) (192,996)

§ 30543 29,333

February 28, February 28,

2011 2010

$ 4,000 11,101
. 2,000
- 79,778

564,807 522,819

3 568807 __ 615,608
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THE KANSAS CITY METROPOLITAN CRIME COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2011

NOTE S ~ LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Commission operates under an office lease that commenced on June 1, 2008 and ends on
May 31, 2015. The Commission also has an additional lease for satellite office space for the
Second Chance program. Total lease expense for the years ended February 28, 2011 and 2010
was $61,873 and $58,955, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments at February 28, 2011 are as follows:

Fiscal years ending Amount
February 29, 2012 $ 58,734
February 28, 2013 : 60,742
February 28, 2014 62,750 -
February 28, 2015 64,758
February 29, 2016 16,315

$.263,299

NOTE 6 - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Commission invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to
various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with
certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of
investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the
amounts reported in the accompanying stalement of financial position.

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Commission has a 403(b) retirement plan available for its employees. No employer
contributions were made 1o this plan during the years ended February 28, 2011 or 2010.

NOTE 8 - SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS

A significant concentration is defined as revenue from any one source that accounts for 10% or
more of total revenue. For the year ended February 28, 2011, grants from one agency accounted

for 11% of total revenue. There were no significant concentrations for the year ended February
28, 2010,

11




EXHIBIT B
CURRENT/PRIOR EXPERIENCE

Offeror Name or Subcontractor Name: _ Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission

(if reference js for a Subcontracton):
ATy TS v R P Ve T N R :‘N: '.' Cone “"" qi’"' \”r{f K ‘?=-l
b fueiies Performed Fors) - il

Name of Reference Missouri Probation and Parole

Company/Client:

Address of Reference 1828 Walnut, 10” Fioor, Kansas City, MO 64108

Company/Client:

Reference Contact Person Jackie Dunn, Regional Administrator (816)889-7600 or (816)810-2828

NanlC, Pholle #, and E-mail jackie_dm]n(d)doctlno_gov

Address:

Title/Name of Community Reentry Funding, MRP Grants

Service/Contract

Dates of Service/Contract: August 1, 2010 to present

If service/contract has Two of our three awards ended, per the term of the contract, on July 31, 2011.0ne

terminated, specify reason: was funded through this year’s round of applications.

Stze of Service such as: These three applications served over 600 unduplicated individuals in one year. The

¥ Number of Individuals Being vast majority served were considered moderate to high risk of re-offending.

Served

v/ Total Annual Value/Volume

Size of Service/Contract (in The grants originally equaled a sum of $214,000 but were expanded to $300,000.
termy of offeror’s total amount

of business)

Desoription of Services MRP Funded Grants: Second Chance Housing Program; Second Chance Employment

Performed, such as: Program; Second Chance Resources Program and Database. Case management and training

v Population Served programs provided to increase knowledge of all MO DOC Probation/ Parolees, including

Y g;;iii"‘;:’;::ﬁ“’d Welcome Back Sessions, information and referral services, follow up individualized

V' Offeror’s spesific duties and scrvic‘c.fz, Tenant's Rights and Respopsibilitim Class, Job Readiness Trainigg, a_nd
strategic ohjective Transitional Jobs Program. The Housimg and Employment Programs served high risk

offenders with a significant population of people with sex offenses. All programs use
Evidence Based Practices to improve cutcomes and promote success of offenders,

Personnel Assigned to Jamie Hallanv Resource Specialist; Josh Aquino/ Housing Specialist; Henry Wash/

Ser‘_'tif:c/ C_‘:lm)Iact (include Employment Specialist; Lora McDonald/ Program Director; Barry Mayer, VP
position title).

Attach sample of results/work, | Attached is one sample end of the year report. Others can be provided upon
if applicable request.

As the contact person for the company/client provided above, my signature below verifies thet the information presented on this

form is accurate. ] understand that the information provided on this form is for verification purposes and does not address the

quality of the services provided. | am available for contact by the Swate of Missourt for additional discussions regarding my/my
confRany’s association with the offeror refereticed sbove:

oo oy
S re af Gontact Person Verifying Information lDatetoT:gnacure
/". Tack .r‘t’zatnﬂ'. ﬁdgimﬂﬁffwnuﬁ‘r@-h r

24
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RFA SDA 480-003
Community Reentry Funding Statewide
Final Report Form

*Due August 15"

Date: ___August 13, 2011

Name of Organization: __Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission

RFA Award Number:
SDA48000311

Project Reporting Period: August 1%, 2010 —July 31%, 2011

1. Describe some of the accomplishments and/or lessons learned by your organization as a result
of this funding initiative.

This grant was largely successful in the goal of helping offenders, with a strong emphasis on those with
sex offenses, obtain housing. The Housing Specialist, with a real estate background, brought a unique
set of skills and resources to this application. The Specialist was skilled at working with landlords and
finding properties willing to rent to people with a variety of criminal backgrounds. Moreover, he was
able to stretch dollars by negotiating smaller rent payments and getting landlords to credit deposits
from tenants who failed in their housing to other participants of the program. It is rare in social services
for a landlord to continue to work with an organization when a prior placement “fails” and it is truly to
the credit of the Housing Specialist that landlords sought his participants as tenants after things had not
gone well with a prior participant.

While the primary focus was in assisting with the acquisition of housing, which was accomplished, the
program learned to spend more time assessing the readiness of the individual being placed in housing.
Several participants (9} entered housing and promptly returned to jail/ prison or never paid any rent at
all, finding themselves in a situation where they would need housing again. The program enhanced the
assessment at the front end and determined it would be best in most cases to require a larger
contribution to rent and/ or deposits from the participants in hopes that they would have the message
that this is something they are paying for and will be expected to continue to pay for after the assistance
from the grant.

One of the greatest accomplishments of this application was assisting 30 individuals with leaving KCCRC
at the expense of MO Dept. of Corrections and helping them into an apartment where they are now
paying for their own living expenses. Additionally, it is a major accomplishment that sixty-seven percent




of participants are no longer being supervised intensively, with 3 people being discharged from
supervision, 2 at Level | Supervision, and 36 participants at Level Il supervision at the close of this
contract year. These reductions represent a significant cost savings to the state, both in personnel time
and expenses related to KCCRC housing.

2. Please provide total output numbers for the entire award cycle and give an explanation of any
output you did not meet.

A. The project will enroll at least 40 offenders within 6 months of the award.

Thirty-two people were enrclled in the program within the first six months; by the end of the
third quarter, forty-five people had been enrolled. The program continued to enroll new
participants, reaching a total of 61, and there were funds available to spend on their housing.

B. The housing specialist will conduct assessments on at least 40 offenders within 2 weeks of
referral.

All assessments were completed in a timely fashion, usually within one week of referral; none
were conducted more than 2 weeks post referral.

C. Atleast 4 Tenant’s Rights Classes will be conducted at the center during the first 6 months of
award.

Eight tenant’s rights classes were held. Aquino also went over tenant’s rights information with
those who did not attend one of the classes.

D. At least 35 offenders will complete the tenant’s rights class.

Thirty individuals received Tenant’s Rights Class. Aquino went over these rights and
responsibilities with all participants who were housed and otherwise unable to attend a class.
It was a challenge getting individuals to commit to attend the class and/ or show up.
Therefore, it became a requirement that all who would get financial assistance would attend
the class first.

E. The housing specialist with recruit landlords by speaking with a minimum of 3
investment/property owners in the first 6 months of the award.

This goal was met in the second quarter. Josh Aquino, Housing Specialist, has developed a
relationship with dozens of area landlords, transitional opportunities, and has access to
hundreds of metro area housing opportunity through his real estate contacts. Additionally,

Aquino has been successful in assisting with the development of increased property owners/




managers who are willing to rent to people with sex offenses in their background. One of the
best aspects of the specialist’s work has been on the unfortunate occasion when two of our
housed participants were facing eviction, he was able to get their deposits transferred to a new
participant. Many times this circumstance would have resulted in an adverse situation with
the landlord. Aquino is working as a member of the Housing Commiittee of the KC Metro
Reentry Coalition to create a marketing power point to educate real estate groups and area
landlords about this population, “How to responsibly rent to an ex-offender.”

F. The housing specialist will produce a resource list within 60 days of award.

This goal was accomplished at the end of the first quarter when Aquino replaced the original
hire. This is not in list form but an ongoing part of the www.secondchancekc.org database.
Lists can be printed that include transitional housing and shelter. Aquino also has lists of
landlords he works with available for his participants.

G. 60% of enrollees will get financial assistance with their first month’s rent, deposit or other
delinquent bill, to assist with permanent housing.

Sixty one percent of those enrolled in the program received financial assistance with their first
month’s rent or deposit. There were 61 total participants enrolled and 37 have been assisted.
Many of those who continue to be enrolled and participate in the program will also receive
assistance with the 2011-2012 award.

3. Please provide total cutcome numbers for the entire award cycle and give an explanation of any
outcome you did not meet.

A. 50% of participants will achieve their housing goal within S0 days.

Fifty-one percent (51%) or thirty-two {32) out of the sixty-one 61 enrolled participants achieved
their housing goal within 90 days. in fact, housing checks were issued for 27 participants, 44%
within less than 30 days from program intake and enrollment. This is an enormous cost savings
for the state for a number of participants who previously resided at KCCRC.

B. An additional 20% will achieve their housing goal through the duration of the program {upto 1
yr.).

An additional 8 percent attained their housing goal (5 participants) with the benefit of the funds
beyond the ninety day mark. Five participants have achieved housing goals without financial
assistance from the program. Two moved outside the area with family, two moved focally with
family, and one obtained an apartment by her own means. Sixteen percent of participants
enrolled obtained housing by other means of beyond ninety days in the program. There continue




to be services in the coming year; those who have not been in the program for a year will
continue to be served until they obtain housing.

C. 60% of participants will reduce their risk score from Ill to Il and decrease their level of supervision
within 6 months of enrollment.

Sixty-seven percent of those enrolled in this program reduced their risk score as follows: 36
individuals are now being supervised at a Level Il (59%); 2 individuals are now being supervised at
a Level | {representing 3%); and 3 individuals have been discharged from supervision {5%). Ten of
those enrolled in this program remain on Level 1l (two are listed as absconders) but it is
anticipated that some of their scores will be reduced. One participant died. Nine returned to
incarceration.

D. 50% of enroliees will achieve one or more of their additional goals within 6-9 months of award.

e 30 individuals left the costly state funded halfway house for permanent
housing

¢ 4 moved to rental housing from streets and homeless shelters

e 1 participant has been matched with a mentor, a successful former offender who can
assist with their transition

e 1 formerly homeless person regained custody of his son

e 1 participant obtained dental care

e 1 earned a full time job arranged by the Housing Specialist
e 1 earned a FT Job through Connections to Success

¢ 1 moved from a low wage part time job to a better paying full time job, doubling his
income

e 1 isenrolled in GED classes
¢ 1 obtained additional funds from VA services to acquire housing

e 5 obtained payees to take care of their living expenses and manage their SSDi checks;
this had a direct relationship to their ability to obtain permanent housing

32



E. Within 6 months of the award, 10 landlords will be identified who are willing to rent to offenders.

The specialist has an extensive list of contacts. In addition to his lists, Aquino makes use of
www.socialserve.org to locate potential housing and narrow searches by zip, price,
neighborhood, etc. He is working with the Housing Committee of the Reentry Coalition to begin
sharing a secured internet document that each of the committee members can use to find new
landlords. Aquino has worked hard to cultivate relationships with landlords and a protected
document will allow a few to get information to use within their organization to assist on a case

by case basis.

4. Please use the attached financial form to describe your expenditures for the entire award cycle.
Please report any changes or modifications to your previous budget.

The budget was modified by 10% subtracted from salary, fringe, and supplies and added to
assistance. This excess funding was spent to house more participants in the final weeks of the
award.

An additional sum of money,540,000, was awarded by the state to total a $100,00 award. The
funding was used to cover the costs of creating a new Law Enforcement Corrections Committee,
whereby metro wide corrections, police and sheriff’s departments to create a new systemic
approach, unique to this metre, for reentry with a goal of enhanced public safety. Two
meetings of this committee have been held to date and goals are being set. Staff time arranging
and facilitating this new committee was paid for by this grant. Funding was also spent on office
space, which covers the costs of training facility and room for intakes, meetings and staffings.

5. Did you spend all of your allotted funding? If not, how much did you spend?

(All unspent money must be returned to DOC. Make checks payable to IRF and mail to
Lisa Meyer at: Missouri Department of Corrections

2729 Plaza Drive
Jefferson City, MO 65109

**please include a memo indicating your contract number.)




$23.52 remains from the Add On grant (summary spreadsheet attached) and $572.27 remains from the
original grant, for a total of $595.79 to be returned to the Department of Corrections.

6. What, if any, problems/barriers did you encounter during this award that prevented you from
reaching your goals or benchmarks?

There were no particular challenges in reaching goals. In the coming year, more attention will be given
to assessing for housing readiness and otherwise ensuring a higher level of support after the participants
are housed to decrease evictions and recidivism. Secondary goals will also be monitored more carefully,
with emphasis on any goals related to risk factors such as sobriety and income/ employment, as success
in these areas will help ensure less recidivism.

7. Other Comments:
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Date: ___ August 13, 2011

Name of Organization: __Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission

RFA SDA 480-003
Community Reentry Funding Statewide

Final Report Form

*Due Augqust 15"

RFA Award Number: SDA48000313

Project Reporting Period: August 1%, 2010 - July 31%, 2011

1.

Describe some of the accomplishments and/or lessons learned by your organization as a result
of this funding initiative.

This Resources grant has been one of the most successful projects of the Second Chance
Program to date. The Resource Database, www.secondchancekc.org proved to be a worthwhite
endeavor, creating a publicly available base of knowledge that anyone employed by Missouri
Department of Corrections can access to seek basic needs, employment, housing or other
resources. The Welcome Back Sessions were also successful with 551 individuals attending one

of the twenty-eight sessions offered. The vast majority reported benefitting from the
knowledge of twenty area resource providers, Second Chance and the fotlowing organizations:

Beyond the Conviction

Catholic Charities Turnaround Program
Connections to Success

Dismas House

Educational Opportunity Center
Episcopal Community Services Culinary Cornerstones Program
Federal Student Aid

Footprints Recovery Station

Goodwill Industries

Hope Faith Ministries

KC Free Health Clinic
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Kansas City Police Department

Life Focus

Literacy Kansas City

Metropolitan Community Colleges, Business and Technical Campus
Missouri Vocational Rehabilitation

Missouri Division of Employment Development

Reconciliation Services

Serendipity Community Services

Another valuable lesson learned is that the Resource Specialists proved to be quite skilled at
assisting people beyond just information and referral; many of those participants who worked
individually with her went on to set and achieve personal goals.

An additional award allocation was made to this application. This funding was used to cover the
costs of the portion of the Program Director’s salary dedicated to the execution of this
application. The Program Director attended more than half of the Welcome Back Sessions and
offered presentations in conjunction with Hallam. The Program Director also helped gather
resource information for the database and ensured the attendance of multiple providers at the
WB Sessions. Finally, the Program Director offered a Job Club at the Liberty Parole Office {every
other week for one hour) to as few as four and as many as thirty seven individuals. Those
individuals were also offered information about how to access other services, through
Vocational Rehabilitation (guest speaker Linda Collins), Truman Behavioral Health (guest speaker
Wendell Wallace), Full Employment Council, Metro Lutheran Ministry, etc. Three participants
received direct assistance from the Program Director to assist them in acquiring permanent
employment. It is assumed that other participants also gained employment through these
sessions; the Program Director continues to provide these services beyond the duration of the
grant period.

The additional funding was also utilized to support the needs of supplies for the Second Chance
Resources grant, the lease for the space that allows for the provision of Welcome Back Sessions
and follow up services, phone and internet services (to cover the cost of the hotline and
database), and travel expenses for Hallam {who visited numerous social service providers to
better understand their resources and several area Probation and Parole offices where she
offered WB sessions to offenders).

Please provide total output numbers for the entire award cycle and give an explanation of any
output you did not meet.
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Develop a survey and collect data from 100 organizations within 30 days of the award.

This goal was modified. Rather than surveying all of the KC Metropolitan Reentry Coalition
Members, the program first sought and attained, via MOU, a “data dump” from Heart of
America United Way 2-1-1 hotline. In order to enhance that data, once launched, Program
Director Lora McDonald announced the database via her list serve to 500 area providers. They
were encouraged to contact Second Chance Resource Specialist Jamie Hallam to make updates
to include their data. The data continues to be updated as new users learn of this site and share
new information with us. All of the 120 Reentry Coalition organizational members who offer
services to the Missouri Dept. of Corrections Probation/ Parolees are included in this database at
this time.

Welcome Back Sessions will be marketed to P&P in the 4 county service area within 4 weeks of
the award.

This goal was accomplished in the first month of the award. Thg program was well marketed as
evidenced by the number of referrals received.

The Resource Database will be operational within 90 days of the award.

The Resource Database was not operational until the end of the second quarter of this award.
There were a couple of setbacks with the developer and, more importantly, it took longer than
expected to get the quality data that was sought from United Way.

Database will be updated weekly with new information.

The Resource Specialist is highly organized and skilled at ensuring updates within a short time
frame, consistently less than a week.

At least 12 welcome back sessions will occur within & months of the award.

Twelve WB Sessions were complete within the first six months of the award. in fact, Hallam
exceeded basic expectations by offering four additional sessions, including arranging them at
three area Probation and Parole field offices to make them more accessible to offenders.

At least 300 offenders will attend orientation sessions aver the course of the award.

551 Offenders attended the Welcome Back orientation sessions over the course of the award.

. At least 100 offenders will have follow-up sessions with the Resource Specialist over the course
of the award.

The Resource Specialist met individually with 134 offenders for follow up sessions; many of
these individuals scheduted multiple follow up sessions, set goals, and achieved them through
working with Hallam 1:1.
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3. Please provide total outcame numbers for the entire award cycle and give an explanation of any
outcome you did not meet.

80% of orientation participants will find the session to be “informative/helpful” or “very
informative/helpful”.

Overall, 85% of respondents ranked the sessions as either “Very informative/ helpful” or
“informative/ helpful.” Of the remaining 15%, only 2 respondents said that the information was
not helpful. The remainder either skipped the question or failed to complete the survey. Overall,
less than one percent of those who attended the sessions evaluated them as not helpful.

100 offenders will receive follow-up meetings; each will accessed at least one service.

134 individuals had follow up services with Hallam. Each was provided with access to goal
planning services with Second Chance and ongoing case management, which is a service they
accessed, in and of itself. Additionally, most were referred to other agencies for basic needs,
added employment assistance, and educational goals, to name a few.

Of the 50% (150 offenders) responding to phone or electronic surveys (PO or offender}, 50% will
report taking advantage of one or more pieces of information from arientation sessions.

The staff utilized two interns to attempt follow up contact with more than 200 individuals over
the past two quarters. Ninety individuals were reached for surveys and more than sixty percent
reported taking advantage of services offered. Additionally, a large number of individuals were
reminded about follow up services and twenty of them made and kept appointments with
Hallam after they were called for follow up. It was quite an undertaking to try to reach these
individuals as many had disconnected phone numbers or did not return phone messages. Only
one individual reached reported that there was no value in the services or the Welcome Back
session,

Surveys to P&P and community rescurces will show 80% find the system to be valuable to the
people they serve.

Surveys were administered through the area district administrator to all Probation and Parole
Staff. Only 30 surveys were returned, revealing that 14 of the 30 had never used and/ or heard
of the system. Unfortunately, despite all of the Second Chance staff’s best efforts to market the
service, it was a surprise to hear how many had “not heard of it.” However, all who had used
the system rated it as valuable and said they have used it multiple times. Much word of mouth
feedback further indicates that Probation and Parole staff value the database; it is just taking
longer for users to “catch on” to its availability than anticipated.
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50 % of PO's will report using the Resource Database 3 or more times to assist offenders.

Exactly 50% of those who returned surveys reported using the database three or more times.
Much positive feedback also came from those who had not used the database and they plan on
accessing it now that they are aware of its availability.

4. Please use the attached financial form to describe your expenditures for the entire award cycle.
Please report any changes or modifications to your previous budget.

No changes were made to the original budget. However, an additional award was made by the
Department of Corrections to make the total grant equal $100,000. A spreadsheet will be
included with the report to demonstrate the use of the “Ad On” numbers, which met the
approval of Dept. of Corrections.

5. Did you spend ali of your allotted funding? If not, how much did you spend?

{Alf unspent money must be returned to DOC, Make checks payable to IRF and mail to
Lisa Meyer at: Missouri Department of Corrections

2729 Plaza Drive
Jefferson City, MO 65109

**Please include a memo indicating your contract number.)

From the $57,800 award, $53,130.47 was utilized, leaving a balance of $4,669.53
to be returned to DOC. Of the $42,200 add on allotment, $60.29 remains. A
total of $4,729.82 shall be returned to the address above for this $100,000 sum.

6. What, if any, problems/barriers did you encounter during this award that prevented you from
reaching your goals or benchmarks?




There were two minor challenges related o this application but neither impacted the delivery of
services, which exceeded all benchmarks. The first was the delay in the database development;
this was due to the decision to take a different path to get a data dump rather than gather and
create the entire database from scratch. It prompted the database launching to be delayed, yet
it allowed for richer data than would have otherwise been available.

The second challenge was in our attempts to follow up by phone with the participants from the
Welcome Back Session. If this were attempted again, it may be possible to work with partners
who presented at the sessions to confirm who followed up with them, rather than trying to
reach such a large number of individuals for phone surveys.

Other Comments:

While this grant award was far more oriented to cutputs than outcomes, it is the perspective of
the Second Chance Program Director that this was an exceedingly valuable service. The tone of
the sessions was positive and upbeat; the vast majority of those who attended and filled out
surveys found this to be a helpful activity. Moreover, this application afforded the area a much
needed database, www.secondchancekc.org that will be available for DOC, offenders, other
resource providers and the community for many years to come. Second Chance staff remains
committed to maintaining the database and continuing to provide connections to offenders who
are in need of help and information in our community. Nonetheless, we are disappointed that
there is not going to be funding to continue to support this grant that significantly exceeded
every output projected.
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Introduction

As a result of President Nixon’s “War on Crime” in the 1970s which evolved into President
Reagan’s “War on Drugs” in the 1980s, America’s criminal justice policy underwent many changes. In
response to increases in rates of some types of crime {both perceived and actual), as well as increases in
the proliferation of ‘crack-style’ cocaine, sentencing strategies at both the Federal and State levels
changed dramaticaily. In essence, American criminal justice policy adopted a ‘get tough’ theme that
continued throughout the 1990s. ‘Get tough’ policies motivated many states to move from an
indeterminate to a determinate sentencing model which increased the likelihood a felon would end up
in prison, while also lengthening the amount of time an individual spent in prisan for some crimes {most
notably violent crime as well as drug-related crime). Further, “Three strikes and you’re out” legislation
was adopted by a majority of the United States. Initially “Three strikes” legislation was geared toward
allowing a life-long prison sentence for a third violent felony, however, many states relaxed the
requirements that the felonies be of a violent nature, thereby making a larger portion of the offender
population eligible for life-long sentences (although in many instances “life” was actually expressed as a

mandatory 25-year sentence).

As a result of the ‘get tough’ movement in criminal justice, prison populations increased
exponentially since the 1970s. In 2009, the Pew Center on the States released a series of reports
revealing some startling statistics. Specifically, America’s correctional population (i.e., those who are
under some form of supervision and/or correctional control) topped 7.3 million. This aggregate number
translates into the following: more than 1 in 100 adults are in an American jail or prison (an
unprecedented figure — 25 years ago the rate was 1in 177); 1 in 31 adults are in an American jail, prison,
or under probationary or parole supervision {also unprecedented). These rates of correctional control

are not distributed evenly across the general population, however. For example, 1 out of 11 African
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American adults are under correctional control (prison, jail, or community supervision}, while the rates
are 1 out of 29, and 1 out of 45 for Hispanic and Caucasian adults, respectively. Further, 1 out of 18
adult men, and 1 out of 89 adult women are under some form of correctional control. In fact, the
correctional system, as a whole, has become so large, some have argued that America has now
developed an Industrial Prison Complex, similar to what President Eisenhower warned against at the
beginning of the Cold War with his Military Industrial Complex thesis. That is, America now has a system
that builds upon itself, and grows at barely controllable rates, requiring a disproportionate amount of
resources {Schlosser, 1998). Indeed the aforementioned Pew Report on the States sgries also revealed
that many states’ spending on corrections equals and in some cases exceeds that which is being spent

on education.

Incidentally the average cost of incarcerating an individual in a United States prison amounts to
$29,000 per year. With the extent to which mandatory minimum sentencing has been applied, this
annual cost is likely to increase {and has increased) as the incarcerated population ages requiring
increased medical attention as well as other special accommodations (e.g., prison facilities that are
handicapped-accessible). Raw cost is just one way in which the public pays for a large population of
incarcerated felons. When an individual is incarcerated, the impacts reverberate, immediately for the
family of the inmate, as well as the community from which they came. In fact, the geographic
distribution of returning inmates is also concentrated in certain areas and not distributed evenly across
cities. One block-area in Detroit for example has 1 in 7 adult under some form of correctional control.
In earlf 2009 the Kansas City Star ran a series of stories regarding an area of town the newspaper
dubbed to be a “Murder Factory” — with a large number of viclent felons residing in an area that

comprised only three zip codes. The neighborhoods felons leave when they are incarcerated are
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disorganized to begin with, and often these felons return to neighborhoods that are in even worse

shape.

Despite the fact that changes in sentencing statutes have made prison sentences more likely to
be assigned by judges, and increased the length of time people spend in prison, nearly everyone who
enters prison comes back at some point. In other words, each year, prisons admit and release about the
same number of people (Petersilia, 2000). Of course, there is a very small fraction of the prison
popuiation that is serving a true life sentence without the possibility of parole, as well as an even smaller
fraction that is serving time on death row and will be executed. Outside of these two small fractions

however, all other prison inmates (and jail inmates) will return to their communities.

* As a result of the realization that most prison inmates return to the community, “Offender
Reentry” has become a critical concern amongst correctional administrators, and legislative bodies. In
2000 Jeremy Travis, director of the National Institute of Justice at the time, issued an executive report
titled “But They All Come Back: Rethinking Prisoner Reentry”. Travis’ report was alarming in that (at the
time) America was seeing the “back end” so to speak, of the incarceration binge. In other words, the
(growing) wave of offenders that had been sent to prison — many of whom who had been sentenced for
a long period of time — were now leaving prisons, having served their time. Further, many of them were
returning tlo the community without any parole supervision {more than 20%). In 2000 over half a million
offenders reentered the community from an American prison. In 2009, the number of reentering

offenders topped 650,000 (U.S. Department of Justice; Office of Justice Programs, 2009).

The large and increasing number of offenders reentering the community has great impacts on
the neighborhoods and economies to which they return. On an individual level, the issues a reentering

offender faces are numerous and complex. The public and elected officials often make the mistake of

-
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thinking that merely spending time in prison - an extended ‘time out’, so to speak —in and of itself holds
rehabilitative potential. This belief is extended by the notion that no rational person would want to
return to prison, having experienced punishment for a wrongdoing. In fact however, many offenders
who leave prison do indeed return — in very high numbers. Some have estimated that greater than 50
percent of those released from prison wilf return within 1 year; an additional 24 percent within two
years, and an additional 12 percent within 3 years. [t was noted above that the average cost of prison
incarceration was $29,000 annually. The average annual cost of community supervision however is
$1,250 to $2,750 for probation and paraole supervision, respectively. Clearly there is a great economic
benefit to keeping an individual out of prison — particularly at a time when State and Federal revenue is

down and budgets are in crisis.

The current study endeavors to investigate offender reentry. While many agencies and
individuals work very hard every day to insure the success of offenders who leave facilities and return to
the community, there are likely ways in which these systems of reentry and assistance can be improved.
As such, the current study examines will investigate offender reentry in the Kansas City Metropolitan
area via a series of focus groups designed to shed light on current practices, and moreover, identify
‘gaps’ — or areas in need of improvement that might serve to increase the likelihood that an offender
will succeed when they return to the metropolitan area. Specifically, the following research question
will be investigated: “In what ways, via policy, practice, or otherwise, should the current system of
offender reentry be changed in order to enhance the likelihood an offender will ‘succeed’ in the

community, and avoid future incarceration?”

A Closer Look at the Kansas City Metropolitan Area
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It is important to understand how many people in the Kansas City Metropolitan area are
specifically involved in the criminal justice systems. The state and federal system’s numbers are the only
ones considered for this particular table, however, it is important to bear in mind that county and
municipal facilities in our area represent hundreds of additional returning offenders every year.
Approximately 3,000 to 4,000 offenders will leave state and federal facilities each year and return to this
metro area for services. The table below reveals the number of people on state and federal probation,

per county, and the total number of offenders on supervision in these counties.

County Probation/ Community Corrections  Parole Total
Jackson 5,194 2,777 7,971

Clay/ Platte 1,135 | 519 1,654
Cass {includes some Jackson Co)1,064 306 1,370
Wyandotte 796 859 1,655
Johnson 571 692 1,263
Total 8,760 5,153 13,913

The average system costs are also important. When reviewing this data it is important to
understand that costs per person tend to decrease when the number of offenders housed at the facility
increases. Facilities in our area range drastically in terms of size and cost. Below is a sample of costs per

offender per day and per year:

Facility Cost Per Day Per Year

Jackson CO/ KCMO Detention Facility $59.16 $21,593.40

Johnson Co. Detention Center $104.00 $37,960.00
6
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Kansas Department of Corrections $68.84 $25,127.00

Missouri Division of Adult Institutions $45.09 $16,457.85
United States Bureau of Prisons $70.95 $25,896.75
National Average Cost of Jail/ Prison $79.45 $29,000.00

Diversion programs are growing increasingly popular and providing people with opportunities to
remain on supervision in the community can not only be more successful but also can save a great deal
of money. The costs below represent the cast of parole, probation or “community corrections,” aka

probation within the community, per individual per day and per year.

Entity Cost per Day Cost per Year
Missouri Probation and Parcle  $3.17 $1,157.05
Kansas Community Corrections  $5.74 $2,095.00
United States Parole Supervision $10.26 $3,744.90
Methodology

The current study — a Gaps Analysis — utilized focus groups in order to investigate the
aforementioned research question. These focus groups were comprised of professionals who work for

agencies that work with and serve the offender population — both line staff (e.g, probation and parole

7
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officers, correctional counselors, case managers), as well as administrators. Focus groups of police
officers were utilized as well. Focus groups of professionals were assembled from both the state of
Kansas and Missouri, since the Kansas City metropolitan area spans across the state line, and included
Federal, State and Municipal agencies. Agencies that serve both a supervisory function for offenders
(e.g., probation and parole agencies) as well as agencies that deliver treatment services (e.g.,
employment services, substance use treatment services) were utilized. In addition, focus groups of
offenders — both those who are currently incarcerated as well as those who had been incarcerated and
are now in the community ~ were utilized. Attempts were made to gain both the perspective of
professionals, as well as offenders, regarding offender reentry and the barriers to the success, as well as

things that enhanced the likelihood of success.

A total of 25 focus groups were conducted, each lasting a minimum of 90 minutes, with some
exceeding two hours. The size of the focus groups varied — the smallest involved just three participants
with the largest having 11 participants. The focus group discussions were led by the principal
investigators {(Lora McDonald and Alex Holsinger). The subject matter to be discussed was introduced
by the focus group facilitators, however, after stating the overall purpose of the focus group discussions
{i.e., to discuss the experiences of the reentering offender), focus group participants were free to bring
up any other sub-topic they chose in order to shed light on the aforementioned research question.
Every effort was made to encourage active participation from all focus group members in order to gain
as much information as possible. Focus group participants were informed at every step (from initial
recruitment contact — usually via telephone and/or email) that participation was completely voluntary
and they may choose at any time to not participate at all, or, cease participation at any time during the

focus group. Further, all focus group participants were informed that the principal investigators would

be taking notes throughout the discussions, however, no other recording devices {e.g., audic and/or




video equipment) would be used. In addition, focus group participants were informed that no
identifying information would be utilized in the report, and in fact it was not necessary to share any
identifying information for the purpose of the research. The principal investigators did however share
their own identifying and contact information with all focus group participants in order to allow future
contact should the participants think of additional information that they wanted to share. The current
research was proposed to, and approved by, the University of Missouri — Kansas City’s Social Science
Institutional Review Board per Federal research guidelines. As such, the current research meets the

criteria for the protection of human subjects involved in primary research.

As anticipated, a great deal of valuahle information was gleaned from the focus groups.
Information was recorded via note-taking by the principal investigators during each of the focus groups.
The hand-written notes were then transcribed to facilitate the identification of themes regarding
offender reentry. The nature of the current research is qualitative, as opposed to quantitative. That is,
the information is of a qualitative nature, and as such, no attempts will be made to quantify the results
for the purpose of inferential statistical testing or the generalization to other locales hesides the Kansas
City metropolitan area. The information recorded was analyzed in order to identify prevalent themes —
meaning themes that were identified by the preponderance of the evidence. However, specific
numbers of responses were not counted {i.e., it will not be stated that “X” number of respondents
stated “Y”). Rather, the weight of the statements made was considered, when determining what the

prevalent themes regarding correctional issues and offender reentry, and presented accordingly.

While it is likely that the issues identified via the current research and the policy
recommendations that may be made in response have applicability to other geographical locations, the
current research is Jocation-specific. In other words, the current research applies to the Kansas City

metropolitan area only, and as such recommendations are meant for the immediate local community.
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The results will be presented according to the major themes that were identified. Specifically,
“Policy issues”, “System practices”, and “Public education/awareness” will provide the framework for
the presentation of what was learned. In addition, recommendations will be made as the results are

presented.

Results

What’s Working

in this study, the investigators did not attempt to glean information about what was working well within
the systems. However, many participants shared information about their own systems, non-for-profits
delivering high quality services, and practices that are showing effectiveness or promise of success with
the offender population. It is important to share some of the highlights of this reentry work in

metropolitan Kansas City to demonstrate what is possible in other systems in this community.

Systematic Focus on Reentry through Area Departments of Corrections: All of the area systems that
participated in this study have taken a serious look at reentry processes and practices over the past
decade. Most of these area systems have come together with social service providers and the broad
community to increase success for former prisoners, make the community safer, and prevent future
crime and recidivism. Kansas, Missouri, area counties and federal systems have all improved their

processes of reentry preparation, staff training, and community response.

Reentry Programs Targeting Risk Levels: In this metropolitan area, Kansas has made great strides to
incorporate “evidence based practices” throughout the Department of Corrections. This evidence
encourages systems to target those who are most likely to commit new crimes or return to prison

following their release. They use effective instruments to predict who is appropriate for intensive
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services and implement programming for this population. Though this practice is relatively new, Kansas

is beginning to see results from this strategy.

More Evidence Based Assessment Tools and Programs: Both public systems and private resources have
been paying attention to evidence about effective reentry processes around the world. Kansas employs
the LSIR, an assessment instrument, to determine the appropriate level of intervention. Missouri has
developed a similar tool, the FRRI, which they began using in 2009. The tools are used to determine the
level of supervision and to make referrals to appropriate services. Likewise, programs in the community

are being modeled after effective “evidence based strategies”.

Faith Based and Community Organizations Response: Community non-for-profits have been working in
the world of reentry for decades, even before it was even referred to as “reentry” and these area
leaders can be looked to for their expertise in the field. In the course of this research, there will be
suggestions for improvements on programming yet the reader should be careful not to interpret this as
criticism of the existing programs. Rather, input from these programs was a major contribution to this
research. These experts in reentry have seen what works and what doesn’t. While there are still many
gaps in reentry services, without these programs, the community could be in great crisis. The Kansas
City metropolitan area is rich with resources eager to provide input not only to the broad corrections
community but to their own programming, seeking change that will benefit the client population and

the community as a whole,

Specialized Caseloads and Targeted Courts for Specific Populations: Most of the area systems have
some specialized caseloads. Examples include sex offenders and those with mental health or dual
diagnosis. Missouri has a “youthful violent offender” caseload. The officers in these positions specialize

in the supervision of the classification of offenders and often complement their supervision with case
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management and other programs. People who manage case loads of people with mental health
diagnosis, for example, get to know details about what resources serve the population, how to get an
authorized payee, or what indicators may be for a potential relapse. Having experts in each area is an

effective approach recognized by most of the area systems.

Likewise, targeted courts become familiar with the needs of their population. One of the best examples
is the Drug Court in Jackson County, which has been a benchmark mode! in our nation. Other current
examples include Missouri Reintegration Court, Federa! Reentry Court, and Mental Heaith Court. in
Jackson County, there is Fathering Court for those who fail to pay child support. These systems are
designed to prevent further incarceration, create wrap around services, and identify risk levels or

indicators before a person reaches the point of further incarceration,

Mentoring Programs have such noteworthy success that the first and second round of Second Chance
Act Funding to faith based and community organizations allowed only for mentoring based projects.
Typically one on one or small group mentoring matches are made; some are peers who are successful
former offenders, others based around employment, but most are just a concerned community
volunteer who helps the individual navigate through resources, job interviews, and general
reintegration. As one focus group noted, the benefits are compounded because when the mentor sees
firsthand the barriers the returning offender faces, they become an advocate for employment and other
opportunities through the broad community. Several of the community organizations who participated

in this research do mentoring projects.

Cognitive and Behavioral Programs were discussed through multiple groups. Both Kansas and Missouri
have standardized curriculums for their respective systems. Offenders and corrections staff could

specify changes they had seen in themselves and participants of the cognitive programs.
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Work Opportunity Tax Credits and Federal Bonding WOTC has been available for certain populations

who find securing employment difficult and offenders are eligible for these benefits if hired within six
manths of their return from incarceration. The federal tax credit is $2,400 per hire and bonds are in the
amount of $5,000 {up to two bonds in Kansas and three bonds in MO). This incentive is helpful for
offenders who are marketing themselves and for programs that try to encourage employers to hire ex-
offenders. 8oth Missouri and Kansas have specialists who help the employer complete the paperwork

to file for these benefits.

Offender Workforce Development Specialists are trained under a graduate level curriculum to address
everything from career development to job retention. The OWDS curriculum was developed by National
Institute of Corrections and those who complete the course can earn up to 6 hours of graduate or
undergrad credit. Kansas and Missouri Departments of Corrections have trained their own staff, private
reentry providers and other corrections systems employees in this curriculum. MO and KS did the first
bi-state class in the nation. Graduates of this class report feeling more equipped to help and offender

find a job and keep a job over time. More training is being planned in the metro to begin summer 2010.

Linkages Between Parole and Prison The Kansas Reentry Program has been successful in creating a
bridge from prison and community; Parole officers now go inside prisons to meet returning offenders
prior to their release. This was mentioned in multiple focus graups as it eases the apprehension of the

offender and helps the officer better understand the prison environment.

What's Missing

Employment- Program and Service Gaps

Employment for reentering offenders (and all offenders for that matter} proved to be one of if

not the most prevalent issue discussed during the focus groups. Both professionals and offenders
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identified the need for employment (or lack thereof) as being the most substantial issue regarding

offender success in the community. However it was revealed by a vast majority of the focus groups that

there are two issues related to employment; (1} finding a joh, and (2) retaining a job.

Finding a job: Both offenders and professionals cited the stigma associated with having a prior
felony conviction {and/or prior incarceration) as being a substantial barrier to finding a job. Several
focus groups also indicated that there appeared to be a lack of sustainable jobs — that is, jobs, that if
obtained, offering a wage that would allow an offender to meet their financial obligations. Regardiess,
the fact remains that many employers disregard ex-felons as suitable candidates particularly when the
offender is forthcoming on their application and/or interview materials. When asked to discuss ways in
which ex-inmates can better secure employmem, several focus groups cited many options, mainly

centering on the need for information, and the education of potential employers.

While some businesses are known to have a tradition of offering employment to ex-offenders,
these businesses need to be better-identified and better-known, particularly amongst the agencies that
serve and supervise the offender population. It's not adequate to merely ‘get the word out’ however.
Many probation and parole officers noted the need to compile information about agencies that hire ex-
offenders, and a need to keep that information current — for example, an index or a ‘clearinghouse’ of
business that have shown a propensity 1o offer a chance of employment for ex-offenders {incidentally,
the ‘need for richer and current information” about a number of areas concerning offender reentry was

a near-constant theme through a majority of the focus groups).

A need for educating business owners about the offender population was also cited as a need,
that if met could facilitate the obtaining of employment. In other words, business owners need to be

proactively educated about the great need for employment opportunity within the offender population,
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but in a way that minimizes risk. Clearly business owners are reluctant to provide an initial opportunity

for an individual who has a well-documented track record of offending behavior. However, if business
owners were more aware of the resources that they could utilize should they hire an ex-offender ~ for
example, knowing that many ex-offenders have probation or parole officers that can be called in the
event of an issue — perhaps they would be more likely to hire. In addition business owners could be
educated regarding the fact that offering a job to an ex-offender greatly decreases the likelihood that

that person will re-offend, making their community, and in turn their business, safer.

Keeping a job: The focus group discussions revealed very clearly that there is a distinct difference
between finding a job, and keeping a job. While some ex-offenders (perhaps a minority) are quite good
at finding at least minimal employment (e.g., in the fast-food service industry), an even smaller minority
are equipped with the skills to maintain that employment and treat the opportunity responsibly and in a
way that will increase the likelihood that they will not be fired shortly after being hired. Indeed both
professional and offender focus group discussions revealed many “hirings” and just about as many

“firings” amongst the offender population.

The same criminogenic (i.e., crime-producing) needs and cognitive processes that are at work
when motivating criminal behavior, are the same factors that contribute to the Iikélihood that even a
good job opportunity will be short-lived. In other words, a goodly proportion of the offender population
have not developed the relational skills, the temperament, the work ethic, and/or the maturity to

successfully negotiate a work environment.

As a result of the aforementioned negative factors, many focus groups revealed the need for
more transitional employment services. These transitional employment services could come in a variety

of different forms, but all would strive toward the same goal: the successful maintenance of an
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employment opportunity. For example, the use of an agency that provided ‘job coaching’ would allow

for a buffer between an employer, and an employed ex-offender. The ‘job coach’ would work with the
offender on a regular basis, discussing issues related to the successful maintenance of employment (e.g.,
how to respond appropriately to criticism, how to get along with co-workers, the importance of showing
up on time, etc.}. In addition, should the ex-offender start to have difficulty with any number of things —
tardiness, a bad attitude, or the like -- the employer could infarm the job coach in arder to turn
potential difficulties into learning experiences prior to merely firing the ex-offender. According to the
focus groups, job-coaching does exist to varying degrees, but not nearly to the scale necessary to

adequately serve the size of the ex-offender population that could benefit.

For the marginally-functional reentering offender {i.e., one who severely lacks the skills
necessary to successfully operate within a work environment), a “total employment opportunity” was
suggested. This “total employment opportunity” would function much like a regular business and would
hire only ex-offenders, with the goal being to intensively teach the aforementioned positive job skills.
This idea in essence represents the need for an entire program that would revolve solely around
teaching appropriate employment skills. This would obviously require an investment of resources, yet
“social enterprise,” or revenue generating pragrams, can often pay for the total costs of the program
while other programs are reliant upon grants. While the creation of a new program is a huge
undertaking, this idea is a reflection of the extent to thch {a) much of the offender population is
severely lacking in job skills, and {b} what it might take to instill those skills. Usually these transitional
job programs are combined with intensive case management to address goals and reinforce the soft

skills learned on the job site.

The groups revealed the value of transitional jobs beyond the skill teaching of the participant.

Transitional jobs programs usually generate revenue, which can pay the offender participant a small
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wage or stipend, and keeps the participant engaged. The small wage does not attract participants who

could find a better paying job on their own. Several groups suggested that certain city services or work
that could “give back” to the community has great appeal as it addresses blight and improves the
neighborhoods where offenders may reside. Participants begin to see themselves as contributors in
their community, thus adding value to the program. There are examples of programs like this
throughout the nation. Others indicated that the ideal transitional job would teach the offender not
only the “soft skills” associated with the workplace but also vocational skills that would eventually lead
to a career. For exampie, there is a small pilot program in Kansas City model that teaches homebuilding

and soft skills simultaneously while addressing the issue of blight and abandoned housing.

Similarly, many indicated that programming that could help offenders become entrepreneurs
would add value to the community. Some programs teach offenders who have an entrepreneurial skill
set all aspects of starting and operating a legitimate business. Microenterprises are small businesses
that operate with very few employees and begin with a small amount of capital. The former offender
often has more earning capacity as a business owner than an employee and often offenders have
characteristics that make them good entrepreneurs {such as a willingness to take calculated risks and
the need for autonomy). Moreover, former offenders who run businesses are more likely to hire other

former offenders, expanding job opportunities in the community.

Employment Policy and Systemic Gaps

Work Opportunity Tax Credits, as mentioned above, offer federal tax incentive to employers
who employee offenders within six months release from prison, in the amount of $2,400 per hire.
Interestingly, one offender could lose a job and be rehired and both businesses could be eligible for the

$2,400 credit as it is tied to the hire not allocated as once per offender. These tax credits could address
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job retention issues if they were made available annually for three years per hire. Groups also

suggested that state and municipal tax credits for employers would encourage businesses to consider
hiring offenders. Some professionals report teaching offenders to market themselves or lobby for

positions based on tax credits and others use them to educate the employer about offenders in general.

Each state distributes tax credits as well as federal bonging, loss protection bonds in the amount
of $5,000, available in Kansas and Missouri. Employers may qualify for one to three bonds per hire

depending upon the state (Kansas offers up to two) and the nature of the business.

Some discussions centered around licensing restrictions for employment. There are certain
professions that restrict licenses for people with felonies across the board, some are limited restrictions
based upon the crime, and others add time frames to the restrictions. Licensing restrictions for
educators, health care workers, barbers, and many other occupations may have these restrictions. In
Kansas City, Missouri, at the time of this writing, the City Council passed an ordinance allowing some
people with felonies to apply for liquor licenses, for example, after four or eight years of post conviction
or release good behavior. Others will continue to have a lifetime ban, for serious violent crimes. This
was an issue that came up in facus groups as offenders have been unable to get a restaurant job in

Kansas City.

Transportation Program and Service Gaps

Nearly every focus group presented discussion about the offender population’s need for viable
transportation. Transportation is of course directly related to the securing {and maintenance) of
employment, but also impacts just about every other area of an offender’s daily functioning. According
to the results of the focus groups, a majority of the reentering offender population relies on friends

andfor family for rides to and from various responsibilities (appointments with parole officers,
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treatment engagements, employment) as well as for ordinary daily needs (e.g., grocery shopping}. Very

few offenders leave prison with a valid drivers’ license, and even fewer have access to an automobhile.
And that of course is to say nothing of the need for valid drivers’ insurance and the expense that often
accompanies the owning and use of an automobile. Agencies pay for one ride bus passes for offenders,
gasoline vouchers, monthly bus passes, and some even provide for vehicles. Agencies were once able to
buy unlimited reduced cost bus passes from Kansas City Area Transit Authority, but the amount they can
purchase at a discount has been capped for the past five years. The public and private organizations
agree that their funding is limited for these expenses and they often are unable to assist with the cost of

a bus pass that could get an offender to an interview, an appointment, or report to a parole officer.

Aside from the use of a personal motor vehicle there is also a gap regarding the use of public
transportation. The vast majority of the offender population either relies on friends/family for
transportation in personal vehicles (as noted above), or, rely solely on public transportation. It became
apparent via the discussions that ensued that while Kansas City Metropolitan bus system is far from
perfect (leaving access to many areas an offender needs to go nearly impossible), public transportation
in Kansas City, Missouri is much better than that which exists in Johnson County, Kansas or areas North
of the River for example. Regardless, there is a great need for making what public transportation does
exist more easily accessible to the offender population. Further, there is a great need for enhancing
existing public transportation in order to make a larger area of the metropolitan area more accessible.
Also discussed was the need to integrate the current bus systems in a way that would make traveling
across the state line between Kansas and Missouri easier. t was often reported that while reentering
offenders live on the “Missouri” side, more employment opportunities existed on the “Kansas” side. For
an individual who relies solely on public transportation {which is the norm within the reentering

offender population}, the opportunity for employment is nearly entirely blocked.
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Small transportation programs and options do exist around Kansas City and there is need for

these services to be indexed and included in collective resource information. Suggestions of
transportation programs were initiated in some groups, such as a church using their van and volunteers

to make regular trips to treatment centers or other appointments.

Transportation Policy and Systemic Gaps

One group noted the lack of corrections funds available to pay for bus tickets to return from
some prisons to community. It appears the non-profit community is trying to compensate for this

system gap, with some purchasing bus tickets and others picking up the offenders.

The tack of public transit options from areas where offenders commonly secure housing to
places with viable employment is an issue that was referenced above. Funding needs to increase for
public transit if this community is to see any significant change in accessibility to employment for the

offender population.

It was very clear from the results of the focus groups that there is a need for enhanced efforts
assisting offenders obtain valid drivers’ licenses. Doing so first and foremost eliminates the likelihood
that they will be caught driving without a valid drivers’ license {which would constitute another crime).
It was reported that if offenders’ had a valid driver’s license when they entered prison, it is often expired
or discarded by the time they leave. Furthermore offenders reentering the community often have
unpaid fines related to driving that need to be taken care of before a new drivers’ license can be issued.
In addition, there is a prevalent need for the education (or re-education} of offenders regarding current

driving regulations and the like.

In sum, there is 2 need to address the gap between an offender leaving the institution, and their

access to valid driving credentials. Efforts need to be made in order assist offenders in the navigation of
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their respective Bureau of Motor Vehicles, as well as clear up unpaid traffic violations (for example}, so

they can receive a valid driver’s license. Doing so would undoubtedly (a} avoid the potential for a new
crime via driving illegaily, and {b) exponentially increase opportunity regarding employment as well as

several other critical areas (e.g., access to treatment, places to live, etc.).

Housing Program and Service Gaps

The issue of “Housing” appears to round out the trinity of needs regarding offender reentry
(employment, transportation, and housing). According to the focus group results, much like
transportation, reentering offenders rely heavily on family (most commonly) and friends (secondarily)
for housing, often moving back in with a parent {most commaonly the mother) or former partner {e.g., a
former girlfriend/boyfriend). While ‘crashing’ at a family member’'s house or a friend’s house is far
better than homelessness {which incidentally is another very serious circumstance many reentering
offenders are subjected to), it is far from ideal. An offender without a permanent residence (i.e., an
apartment or house on which they are listed as the renter or owner) is exposed to an enhanced amount
of risk for recidivism, as well as at risk for homelessness. For example, many reentering offenders are
“one argument away” from being kicked out of their current temporary housing situation, which in turn
(in many cases) puts them in violation of their parole supervision if they are indeed under supervision at
the time. Maintaining a permanent residence is often a condition of parole release, and failure to obtain
and maintain such residence can be construed as a violation which can in turn lead to revocation and re-

incarceration.

The focus groups with correctional professionals revealed several gaps related to a reentering
offender successfully obtaining and maintaining permanent residence. The focus group discussions

revealed a substantial shortage of available (suitable) housing for offenders (and this finding was verified
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by several of the offenders that were interviewed as well}. Many professionals reported landlords that

were unwilling to ‘take a chance’ on a known felon and actively eliminated the offender population from
the pool of potential renters. Further, a related issue involved the fact that landlords that were willing
to rent to reentering offenders often possessed propeniés that were not convenient regarding
employment opportunities, as well as the places that the offenders are often required to report {e.g.,
probation and parole offices, and/or treatment and other requirements), not to mention the related
issues of transportation and affordability. On all counts there appeared to be a gap in the amount of

eligible (i.e. workable) living space, and the need for such space within the offender population.

Much like the employment dynamics cited above, there appears to be the need for education
amongst landlords in the Kansas City Metropolitan area. Efforts need to be made in order to inform
potential landlords about the reality that is faced by the offender population, and the fact that offering
to provide housing (in exchange for rent) in fact may make the property, and the neighborhood, safer in
the long term. Similarly, the focus group participants reported many misconceptions regarding what
much of the offender population was really like behaviorally, and {like employment above) there are
often resources (such as probation and parole officers} that could be utilized to mitigate and control for

risk.

Many professionals (again, much like employment opportunities) cited the need to compile a list
of viable living situations for ex-offenders. Specifically, there appeared to be a need for an index
containing information regarding landlords that were willing to rent to ex-offenders, the location of
these properties, and the price for the rent in order to assist offenders in finding and maintaining
permanent residence that will work with their constraints. In addition, there was the need to reach out

to, educate, and support landlords that were willing to rent to ex-offenders.
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Further, in light of the fact that many offenders leave the institution with (literally) nowhere to

go, there is a great need for many more transitional housing beds {e.g., halfway house beds} that would
allow an offender to make a smooth transition back into the community while securing permanent
housing. Transitional hausing programs do indeed exist in the Kansas City metropolitan area, however,
according to the results of the focus groups, many more resources that offer transitional living are
needed. Such services would need to be geared toward more than just providing a safe livable
environment, but would also need to educate offenders regarding the responsibilities associated with
being a good tenant {much like the transitional job services mentioned above). The groups aiso report a
severe shortage of emergency shelter in &l counties except Jackson and a lack of complementary case

management services to assist the felon specific population with housing.

Policy issues regording Housing

An issue that repeatedly came up was the inaccessibility of public housing, Section 8 Housing
and other Housing and Urban Development funded programs to the offender population. The Code of
Federal Regulations makes it impossible for people who are considered sex offenders and those who
have manufactured methamphetamines in HUD properties or public housing in the past. However, all
other decisions denying housing to people with criminal convictions happen at a local level. Because
local housing authorities make the decision, people can appeal the decision at the local level. Largely
there appeared to be much misinformation in the community about who was and was not allowed in

public housing.

Another issue related to housing was that an offender often can not be paroled to a family

member in public housing. Again, these decisions are made at local levels and can be appealed if the
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housing is a desirable option. Appeals are reportedly most effective when a professional participates in

the hearing and advocates for the prospective tenant.

More germane to specific policies related to housing ~ several focus groups offered the need to
create programs and initiatives that provided tax credits for landlords who were willing to rent to
reentering offenders. Much like the tax incentives for potential employers cited abave, offering rental
tax credits would offer an incentive to landiords who otherwise might be unwilling to rent to ex-
offenders (as well as motivate those landlords who currently rent to ex-offenders, to continue doing so).
On a related note, there appeared to be the need to make it easier for landlords to receive rent directly
from offenders who are eligible for public support when paying for housing. This would further enhance

motivation to rent to ex-offenders by insuring the landlord would receive rent directly, and reliably.

All of the issues relate to housing above apply to the general offender population. However
housing needs are of a slightly different nature regarding the sex offender population. The vast majority
of states — Missouri is no exception — place restrictions on exactly where an individual who has been
convicted of a sex offense can five. Kansas, by contrast, has a statute prohibiting any municipality from
creating an ordinance restricting the residency of offenders. These restrictions typically state that sex
offenders are not allowed to live within a certain radius of specific locations such as schools, public
parks, and/or child care facilities. While the reasoning for these restrictions are for the sake of public
safety (particularly the protection of children), these policies greatly reduce the availability of viable
housing for sex offenders. The availability of housing is so restricted in some cases {particularly in smalt
urban and/or rural areas), many states (including Kansas) have reconsidered and revised such policies
simply out of necessity. in short, it has been demonstrated that in some areas the restrictions on where

sex offenders are allowed to live literally leaves no livable space available. Several focus group
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discussions revealed the need for new strategies regarding sex offenders — advocating for the relaxing of

such restrictions while simultaneously increasing surveillance.

Educational and Training Program/ Service Gaps

It is common knowledge that educational attainment is directly related to employment and
discussions of education arose in every focus group. Time in prison can be time to complete neglected
education, basic literacy to secondary education is available in some systems. The removal of Pell
Grants as benefits available to the incarcerated in the mid 1990’s, has had lasting impact. Yet, some
prisons around the nation are finding success with local colleges and universities, creating campuses
inside institutions. Kansas Department of Corrections, for example, has partnered with Donnelly College
and Kansas City, Kansas Community College to create some programming inside Lansing. Yet, there
remains a gap for higher education that could be filled best with both public policy change and increased

cooperative programming with higher learning institutions and departments of carrections.

More significantly, GED and Adult Basic Education are largely underfunded in some of the
systems we examined. Reports regarding institutional cutbacks just in the past two years revealed
scaling back contracted educational services in both Kansas and Missouri systems. Missouri reported
offenders had to be transported to other facilities to be in compliance with statutes that require
offenders to work on their GED when they had to discontinue a program in St. Joseph Regional
Diagnostic Center. A Lansing GED program was saved by a dedicated volunteer. Programs in every
institution that accommodate all who have not earned a GED are recommended and can be, as in
Lansing, managed by volunteers from the community. Groups specified these GED classes ideally would
separate people based on grade level and include literacy, Adult Basic Education (for those not GED

ready), and English as a Second Language.
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Upon release, some groups reported that it is very difficult to access GED classes and, again, that

some offenders returning from prison are unable to meet the requirements for GED and need ABE
classes first. The GED budget was reportedly cut in the KCMO School District. Some of the area non-for-
profits are creating programs for literacy, ABE and GED, yet they report limited capacity when compared

to the overall need.
Education and Training Policy Gops

Several groups suggested funding of secondary educational programs must be a priority of both
the Department of Corrections aﬁd the Department of Education for prisons and community.
Restoration of Pell Grants for prisoners would be another helpful benefit. A theme throughout the focus
groups was that focusing on education, including early childhood education, could prevent future

incarceration.

There is a service and policy related gap that came up in multiple groups. Offenders find it
difficult to navigate through the services available through the workforce investment act at the Full
Employment Council. Further, some services available through these dollars are not accessible to some
male offenders because they did not register for selective service. While waivers can be made if the
man demonstrates he was incarcerated or otherwise unable to register, the possibility of a waiver does
not guarantee accessibility. Some Department of Labor funded programs are also restricted to non-

violent offenders and are inaccessible for certain populations.
Other Policy Gaps

Aside from the major areas above that provide gaps to offender success in the community,
several other policy issues became prevalent in focus group discussions that play a role in offender

success (or failure).
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Food stamps: Enhancements in the enforcement of drug laws (i.e., the War on Drugs) led to a

very large increase in the number of people convicted of a drug offense. The punishment schedules
related to drug offenses increased, leading to an increase in the likelihood of incarceration for a drug
offense (possessing, using, and/or trafficking in controlled substances) as well as increases in the length
of time a person can be incarcerated for such an offense. In 1996, the Clinton Administration made it
permissible for states to “opt out” of providing any form of welfare, Food Stamps or cash payments, to
people with drug related felonies. Both Missouri and Kansas did “opt out,” yet Kansas reversed this
decision three years ago. Missouri remains one of twelve states still denying Food Stamps to people
with convictions post 1996. Restricting access to food and other basic resources greatly increases the
likelihood that an individual will resort to illegal activity to support themselves, increasing the likelihood
of return to prison. In addition, for offenders who have dependents under the age of 18, these policies
restricting access to food and basic necessities possess reverberating effects further disadvantaging the
children of ex-offenders. Research has indicated that children of prison inmates are seven times more
likely to be involved in the criminal justice system {and in turn are much more likely to become
incarcerated themselves compared to children of non-inmates) (Service Network for Children of
Inmates, 2008). Policies restricting access to food stamps for drug offenders may play a role in

continuing the familial cycle of incarceration.

Medical Care: It is agreed that the systems of correction in the Kansas City area are responding
better to medical care, particularly for those with mental health conditions. Treatment, both for
physical and mental health services, is one of the most costly parts of any corrections system. The focus
groups revealed concern over the offenders with severe mental health diagnosis and those with

HIV/AIDS who may leave the faciiities without the medication they need to sustain them until they can
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access care and medication in the community. Again, this practice has greatly improved over the past

few years, and most often offenders are leaving with a two week to thirty day supply of medications.

Dental care was also specified as a critical need that is not widely available in the community.
While there are free and sliding scale services, the capacity is limited. Former drug offenders often have
specific dental issues that can interfere with their esteem and their appearance can impact their ability

to secure employment.

Finally, eyeglasses were included as an item needed frequently by the population af returning
offenders. There is some limited service to pay for eyeglasses and exams but groups would like to see

this more widely available.

Staff Salaries: In this time of budgetary concerns, area Department of Corrections are
challenged to make extreme cutbacks in programming and other expenses. Howaever, it was repeatedly
suggested that the salaries of social service and gorrections staff seemed to reflect the lack of value the
public places on this work. Most concerns were shared in regard to the salary of Missouri Probation and
Parole Officers and the Missouri Dept. of Corrections in general. The pay of this particular group is sub-

par when compared to other Kansas, other counties, and federal employees.

Identification and Legal Documents: While great strides have been made in Missouri, Kansas
and federal prisons to obtain identification prior to release, many professionals indicated offenders are
still not leaving facilities with basic legal documents such as birth certificates, Social Security Cards and
state identification cards. Services and employment cannot be accessed without these documents.
Often non-for-profits spend their limited resources purchasing and acquiring these documents. More
importantly, the offender comes out not ready to begin employment or enroll in other services that

would allow for successful reentry.
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Kansas Driver's Licenses: It was recommended in several focus group discussions that the

policies requiring “Registered offender” be placed on a Kansas offender's driver’s license be
reconsidered. Ex-inmates already experience stigmatization in several ways that block success without
such policies. Further, it has been reported that the statute does not require these words but, rather,
some numeric code. Kansas officials report that this will be removed from the Kansas Identification and

Driver’'s License Cards in October 2010.

Spending of limited resources: In trying economic times, most if not all public agencies
experience budget cuts. However, in light of limited resources, many focus groups discussed the need
to re-examine specifically how “criminal justice” monies are being spent in general. Specifically, the
trend to spend more money on the ‘front end’ of the criminal justice system {e.g., law enforcement
strategies), vs. the ‘back end’ (e.g., probation, parole, treatment, and services related to housing,
transportation, and employment} was called into gquestion. The focus groups revealed and discussed
many of the reasons that the public approves more readily for spending on law enforcement. Reasons
include the visibility of policing agencies in the community, as well as the fact that policing agencies
serve a variety of functions in the community (not merely law enforcement). Further, the public clearly
links “public safety” with the presence of police officers and enhancements such as technology and tools

that police officers need to do their jobs more efficiently and effectively.

At the same time, offender reentry has clearly been shown to be a “public safety” issue as well -
and a public safety issue that extends far beyond the realm of police work and law enforcement. Known
felons in the community are often the most likely to re-affend. As such, any and all strategies geared
toward mitigating the criminogenic needs of the offender population — through the provision of services
that support the offender — would be money well spent according to the resuit of focus group

discussion. As such, several members of the focus groups called for a re-thinking” of policies regarding

29




how money is spent within the criminal justice system. Just one example cited by one focus group

members included speculation about the cost of building one 1,000 bed prison, vs. the cost of any
number of programs that could be established to serve far more than 1,000 offenders in a years’ time.
As an aside — the $29,000 per year cost for incarcerating an offender does not include the initial

overhead cost of building the prison facilities in the first place.

The need to ‘link’ the institution with the community: Several focus group participants noted
the need to start thinking about “reentry” quite literally, at the sentencing phase (i.e., before the
offender even enters the institution to begin their sentence). This means planning for the day the
offender will be released, on the day they are sentenced. This forward-thinking would enhance the
likelihood that appropriate plans will be made that will increase the likelihood for offender success once
they are released. For example, many professionals and offenders reported that there is a fiteral gap in
time between the point at which an offender leaves the institution, and the point at which they make
initial contact with a parole officer and/or service agency. In some cases this gap in time can last two or

more weeks, and exposes the offender to risk of reoffending.

Ideally, there would be a seamless transition between the institution and the community, where
by an offender would have contact with one or more individuals from the community before they leave
the institution. Several focus group discussions pointed to the need to actually bring into the
institutions more resources from the community. Specifically there appeared to be the need to bring to
the prison representatives from any and all agencies that serve the offender populations in order to
create “no excuses” environment, and allow for the establishing of relationships between the agency an
clients. It was reported that this need is perhaps most pranounced when offenders have mental heaith
issues (particularly those mental health issues that are in need of medications — several focus group

participants indicated that despite many offenders being successfully medicated while institutionalized,
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often access to medication is interrupted when they leave). Active mental health issues are a well-

documented risk factor {increasing likelihood for re-offending} for a substantial portion of the offender

population.

Prisons by definition are ‘closed institutions’ and function extremely effectively in that regard.
in other words prisons keep those who belong in, in, and keep out those who do not belong. One focus
group in particular noted that the need for the maintenance of prison security is paramount, however, if
security could be maintained while taking clear steps toward linking community resources with the

people in prison who need those resources, the likelihood of success would increase.

Offenders “Maxing Out” or leaving institutions without community supervision One
population that was mentioned in the course of focus groups was the group of offenders who leave
prison with no parole or probation supervision requirements. While the vast majority, approximately
90% by rough estimate, returns to the community on parole supervision, the community should be
aware of those who are released after completing their full prison sentence and are not required to
participate in parole. Generally, the people who “max out” or “12/12”, a term that comes from
completing twelve out of twelve calendar months of one’s sentence, do so because they have failed to
complete community supervision in the past and are incarcerated for revoked probation or parole OR
they have behaved in such a way during their prison stay that the parole board chose not to release
them to the community. These offenders, at times, refuse to go before the parole board as they wish to
return to the community without somecne, a parole officer, to watch over them. More often, they have
had repeated conduct violations while incarcerated and demonstrate little or no remorse for the crime.

Therefore, they are not granted release without the full completion of sentence.
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Because the system is no longer responsible for these offenders, no one tracks where they go

upon release or how they are fairing in the community. It is estimated that the state of Missouri
Department of Corrections releases 300 offenders per year who were from the Kansas City area and
have completed their full sentence. As offenders generally return to their community of origin, most of
these 300 offenders will then return to this community without supervision. Again, these can be
considered dangerous or risky offenders as they have had difficulty making parole and/ or do not want
to be supervised in the community. Several of the non-profit community organizations end up serving
this population when they return te the community and find themselves in need of assistance.
However, not reporting to a parole officer also means that they may be unaware of resources available
to them within the community. No resources within the lgcal continuum expressly target this
population but many of the services and programs are available to this population. it is recommended
that minimally the releasing facility provide these offenders with information about available resources

that they may access if they are having difficulty in their transition.

Liaisons Between Law Enforcement and Corrections More than ane focus group identified the
need for law enforcement to interface with corrections systems. Better communication or a liaison
between systems would increase communication about concerns. More training to law enforcement
about reentry and to corrections and setvice providers about the role of law enforcement could

enhance the work between these systems.

Kansas City Correctional Release Center: One focus group in particular noted that though the
Kansas City Correctional Release Center is officially recognized as a parole facility or halfway house,
offenders are not allowed to access social security benefits while they are in residence at the facility.
While the KCCRC is a secure facility, based on its primary purpose (facilitating offender reentry), it

appears to be only recognized as a prison by the Social Security Administration. Offenders who are
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eligible for social security benefits of some kind would benefit if they could access those benefits while

making the transition from prison to the community. in fact, some get caught in a “catch 22” because
they have been unable to get financial benefits that would allow them obtain housing and leave the

facility.

Ban the Box or Civil Rights Protection: Several groups suggested that employers automatically
discard applications of offenders due to their criminal record. Some states and municipalities have
adopted “ban the box” policies which prohibit employers from asking about criminal history and/ or
arrests on the job application. Other municipalities and states have made it illegal to discriminate
against offenders unless the crime committed has a direct relationship to the former offender’s ability
to perform the prescribed job duties. While Kansas has this type of statute, it appears that it is not
exercised as many employers reportedly still make blanket statements such as, “we don’t hire felons.”
Employers are still allowed to hire who they wish to hire yet they are encouraged by such policies to give
equal consideration to people with criminal histories unless it interferes with their capacity to do the

job.

Non-payment of Child Support: There were two pertinent issues pointed out by several focus
group participants related to non-payment of child support. First, the wisdom of incarcerating someone
for non-payment of child support was called into question. Several discussants indicated that it would
be more beneficial to all involved if, rather than incarcerating a ‘dead beat dad’ for example, initiatives
were put in place that put the individual to work thereby increasing the likelihood that they would be in
a position to pay their child support {(and other financial obligations). As noted above, incarceration
itself places a financial burden on the state, and as such, incarcerating (and spending money on)

someone who owes money appears antithetical.
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On a related note, the same focus groups that discussed non-payment of child support also

noted the fact that policies related to the child support ‘clock’ should be reconsidered for someone who
is incarcerated. Specifically, when someone is incarcerated they are no longer in a position to pay their
child support, and as such the wisdom of allowing the obfigation of child support payment to accrue

while incarcerated was called into question,

Expunging Criminal Records: While some states, including Kansas, have laws allowing for
certain criminal records to be expunged after a period of time, Missouri no longer allows for this
practice. The very existence of expungement encourages good behavior since one’s record can be
wiped clean and the former offender no longer faces the barriers described throughout this study,

especially related to employment.
Program services gaps and issues

The correctional treatment literature as a whole has well-documented the halimark
characteristics of correctional {rehabilitative) treatment programming. When an offender is in the
community, whether via a sentence directly to probation, or a placement on parole supervision after a
stay in prison there are two components necessary in order to insure successful transition and
reductions in recidivism. The two components can be classified as “security”, or supervision/control,
and “treatment”, or rehabilitation. The “security” function of community supervision represents
accountability and safety. Probation and parole officers {as well as other professional actors such as
case managers) are charged with knowing the whereabouts of an offender, keeping track of their
activities and progress, as well as acting as a liaison between the offender and the court as well as other
agencies in the community. The “treatment” component involves the offender participating in

treatment programs that are designed to address any number of criminogenic needs. The offender
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population possesses many of what have come to be termed criminogenic — or crime producing — needs.

These criminogenic needs are the factors or characteristics that need to be altered in order to make a
crime-free lifestyle possible. In addition, these criminogenic needs are those domains or factors that

have been identified in the research as being predictive of criminal behavior.

Just a partial list of important criminogenic needs includes the following: (1) prior criminal
behavior {of all types); (2) Sub-standard educational achievement {as well as a cu‘rrent need for
additional aptitude in basic knowledge and skills); (3) Sub-standard skills related to employment; (4) Use
of leisure/recreation time {i.e., no suitable pro-social leisure activities or options); (5) Sub-standard
housing and/or accommodations (including criminogenic neighborhoods that promote criminal activity);
(6) An anti-social peer network (i.e., friends and acquaintances that promote criminal activity); (7) An
anti-social/non-supportive family environment {including criminal spouse/partner and other criminal
family members); {8) Active substance use/abuse (including of course addiction); (9) Some mental
heafth conditions including active illnesses that are in need of intervention; (10} A propensity to “think
criminally” — that is, a mind-set that is conducive to antisocial/pro-criminal behavior (this would include
thoughts, attitudes, values, and belief systems that are supportive of criminal activity). There is
evidence that all of these aforementioned factors/domains have been shown to be predictive of criminal

and other antisocial behaviors.

Programs that are effective in reducing recidivism target one or more of the above-listed
criminogenic factors, and do so in a way that insures the program’s effectiveness. Unfortunately, most
correctional systems have programs that purport to address criminogenic needs, and in reality are
targeting other factors that are unrelated to recidivism (e.g., Art therapy, meditative techniques,

bibliotherapy and the like), or, even if the program does target the right things the program is doing so
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in a way that is not intensive enough, or utilizes a curriculum (for example) that is inappropriate for the

population that they are serving.

The focus group discussions revealed several items that are worthy of exploring further in order
to increase the likelihood that the programs are indeed effective in reducing recidivism. What follows
are a series of items related specifically to programming {i.e. treatment) that should be considered and

addressed when making treatment recommendations.

Targeting Services Based on Risk Level: Often programs are able to build into their offender
selection process exclusionary criteria. 1t is understandable that no program is able to serve every type
of offender, and as such the use of exclusionary criteria is very important in order to insure that the
program will have the widest impact on the population that it does serve. For example, it is not
uncommon for a residential treatment program to exclude offenders that have a history of violent
behavior, in arder to increase the perceived and actual safety of the clients that are in residence. Clearly
the impact of the therapeutic environment would be compromised if there was an undesirable threat

within the confines of the program {which also might affect staff/client interactions as well).

However, it is one thing to exctude a very specific type of offender (i.e., violent history or
someone with a sex offense in their past) in order to insure a specific objective (such as safety), but it is
quite another to intentionally select offenders who would more than likely succeed even without the
services that the program offers. Programmatically it can be tempting to insure only offenders who will
succeed enter the program, since that almost guarantees the program will be perceived as effective in
meeting its objectives. However this also has the effect of wasting resources on offenders who do not
need the services that much, and worse, deprives other offenders who might present more of a

challenge but who do indeed need the services offered and would benefit from them.
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As mentioned above the most effective rehabilitative programs share a set of common

characteristics. One of those characteristics is whether or not the program utilizes an actuarial
assessment process in order to better determine who is most appropriate for the services that the
program is designed to serve. An actuarial {meaning research-based) assessment process that gives a
valid indicator of the criminogenic needs that the offender possesses is necessary in order to deliver
services in a manner {duration and intensity) that is best suited for the offender. Further, programs that
utilize actuarial risk/need assessments (as well as other assessment processes) are in a better position to
build comprehensive case plans that will track offender progress as they move through the program. In
other words, dynamic assessment allows programs to measure change in the immediate, and determine
how well {or not) the program may be working with the offender. Programs that do not utilize
standardized dynamic actuarial assessments are at a distinct disadvantage when selecting and classifying
clients, and measuring progress. When there are not any assessment processes in place, staff run the
risk of resorting to clinical assessment that has been shown to lead to admitting clients that are not

suited for (i.e., do not need) the treatment program.

With recidivism being a growing problem, it is apparent there is a need for targeting more
resources for those most likely to commit recidivism. Assessment instruments that look at factors such
as age, prior record, and substance abuse history, are predicting who will return to prison with good
accuracy. Programs need 10 be developed and further target those most likely to return to prison, and
made available from the point of “entry” or commitment to facility and continue through return to
community until those risk factors are reduced. While not every offender will choose to engage in
services and make needed changes, interventions looking at those most likely to re-offend and using
practices that address criminogenic needs need to be expanded in the metropolitan area. Kansas

Reentry is a good example of targeted programming to the high risk offender population.
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Measuring success considering recidivism: Related to the section above, comparing one

program’s stated outcomes to another can be an ineffective way of determining overall success at

reducing recidivism. There is not a standardized definition of recidivism; it can be defined as a return to

incarceration {including for technical violations), commitment of a new crime, a new arrest, or a new
criminal conviction. For the purpose of this research, it has been defined as return to incarceration.
When programs’ outcomes are being compared, it is important to have a standard definition of
recidivism. Recidivism or return to incarceration can take a significant amount of time and rates over a
three or more year period should be reviewed. It is also important to consider the base line recidivism
rate for the population who enrolled in the program to determine the program’s effectiveness.
Programs boasting low recidivism rates should be evaluated by funding sources; these sources should
give consideration to 1} the attrition rate rather than just outcomes for those who “complete” or
“graduate” from the program and 2} whether the program serves a population who may be unlikely to

commit recidivism.

Need for transitional jobs: As noted above {and related to the two issues immediately above),
there is currently a great need for programs that offer transitional jobs — jobs that meet two objectives:
(1} teach the offender job skills and employment responsibility in an environment that offers coaching
and support, and (2) offer the offender at least some steady reasonable income. Several focus groups
noted the possibility of tying the use of transitional jobs into the community service obligation that so
many offenders have as part of their sentence to community supervision. For example, it would make
sense that if an offender is obligated to perform community service that they do so in a way that meets
that community service requirement, while at the same time offering them the possibility to learn what
it means to be a productive responsible and respectful employee. Many offenders need very concrete

and straightforward feedback and input regarding their workplace demeanor, the importance of
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showing up on time and giving notice if a day of work needs to be missed, and responding pro-socially to
the direction of supervisors and co-warkers. Similarly (particularly in environments where many other
ex-offenders are employed), transitional jobs could stress the importance of steering clear of individuals
who provide antisocial/pro-criminal opportunities. The New York-based Center for Employment
Opportunities {(CEQ) has had great success with job placement (including statistically significant

reductions in recidivism) when offering transitional jobs to ex-offenders.

Need for other treatment programs: Within the focus group discussions there was the
perception that additional treatment — of all types — is needed in order to serve the criminogenic needs
that are prevalent within the offender p0pulatioh. While the addition of treatment programs is a
worthy endeavor, some caution is in order since there are many more ineffective treatment models in
place than there are effective treatment models. Nonetheless, nearly every focus group involving
practitioners cited the need for additional substance use/abuse treatment programs (both residential
and within the community). Consider that in Missouri {(which is representative of many other states if
not the U.S. as a whole) 76 percent of drug offenders re-offend within three years, with the vast
majority of them doing so for a drug-related offense. This alone may be an indicator of the need for

more substance abuse services in general.

Also mentioned was the need for programs that specifically address criminogenic thought
processes (i.e., criminal thinking, cognitions, attitudes, orientations, and belief systems). This included
the expansion of cognitive behavioral programs, addition of personal development or life skills classes,

and anger management.

Several focus groups (including both professionals and offenders) brought up the fact that many

offenders pay supervision fees but they do not know what the fees are being used for. The implication
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is that the fees are used to offset the cost of supervision, and fund treatment programs. However some

participants argued that if supervision fees are being paid, and if the offender is in need of services, that
there is at least a modicum of obligation that the offender receive the necessary treatment
programming. Of course, the fault for failure to access programming may indeed lie mostly if not
entirely with the offender, via a lack of awareness as to how to access the programming they need.
Regardless, it appears that steps need to be taken to let offenders know specifically how to access

necessary programming and resources.

Several focus groups noted that in their view there appears to be a trend toward not funding
substance abuse and recovery programs (in general). In addition, great concern was shared regarding
the length of time that programs actually serve offenders. One focus group emphasized what they
called the “28 day” problem. The “28 day” problem was used to illustrate the fact that even for
programs that are still operating, the length of time an offender is allowed to stay in the program (for a
variety of reasons) has become shorter and shorter. In fact, what used to be “28 days” is now actually 1
or 2 weeks in practice which is typically just enough time to detoxify someone (and/or get them through
the most severe and dangerous withdrawal systems) but does nothing for the long-term behavior that’s
typically associated with a developing drug (or alcohol) habit. Drug problems — particularly severe ones
- develop over a period of time — often many years. in addition, drug taking behavior, like any behavior,
is indeed a behavior that can be learned (and unlearned). As such, several focus groups noted that it
does not make sense that we expect a problem that has taken years to develop would be resolvable in a
matter of days. There are many effective substance abuse treatment programs, however, the most
effective ones are fairly lengthy in duration by comparison to today’s practices (e.g., 3 to 9 months). in

light of restricted resources, it is unlikely that new long-term residential treatment programs can be

40




developed, however, according to several focus group discussions, the need for these programs is

prevalent.

One Stop Center and Clearinghouse of Information In response to many of the issues that were brought
up related to offender reentry, several facus groups discussed the potential benefit of a ‘one-stop’
center for offenders who reenter the community after a stay in prison. Depending on the structure and
implementation of the one-stop center, several of the issues listed above could be mitigated. For
example, there could be a tremendous benefit to creating a ‘clearing house’ for all the information,
services, and resources a reentering offender might need. Further there could be some benefit for
probation and parole officers who are looking for referral information as well, for their caseload.

Institutional staff could engage in release planning by reaching out to the center for information.

A one-stop reentry center could help close the gap — both in time and needed services — that
many offenders experience when they leave the institution. tn addition, a reentry center could
potentially serve as a liaison to the community, informing the community of ways in which volunteers
can help. Similarly a one-stop center could also educate the public about the realities offenders

reentering the community face, correcting incorrect assumptions.

Systemic changes

Culture of reentry: It was clear from several focus groups with professionals that “reentry” is
appropriately regarded as the important subject that it is. Both Kansas and Missouri are faced with
increasing numbers of offenders returning to the community after a stay in prison. Offenders coming
out of prison, despite having served there sentences and despite having perhaps engaged in one or

more treatment programs remain in need of many services — most of which are needs for services that
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are geared toward the aforementioned criminogenic needs, and general functionality. Results from the
focus group discussions revealed a need to continue emphasizing all things related to reentry, focusing
on all the needs presented above and beyond. All agencies that work with the offender population need
to make efforts toward hiring staff that understand criminal behavior as welt as all the issues that are
faced by the reentering offender population. One focus group in particular noted the need for a cultural
shift in correctiona! agencies in both Kansas and Missouri. Many times the naotion of needing to think
about and work toward reentry at the point of sentencing (i.e., before the offender even enters an

institution) was a necessity.

In recent years many agencies that work with people have allowed “strengths-based” case
management to define the mission and processes when working with clientele. Strengths-based case
management, broadly, involves discovering and emphasizing the strengths (i.e., positive things, or
protective factors) that are present in an individual’s life in order to help them become more successful.
While a strictly strengths-based philosophy may be appropriate for certain populations, this approach
may have some limitations regarding the offender population. The offender population, while
possessing some strengths also possesses several important negative factors — disadvantages — that
simply cannot be overcome by merely focusing on strengths. While it is important to find and utilize
functional characteristics within the individual it is equally important that this focus does not cause a
‘blind spot when it comes to the negative anti-social factors that are at work in an offender’s life. The
prablems that many offenders have are very influential and in most cases require moderate to intensive
intervention if they are to change. And this intervention takes time, energy, and resources, that in many
cases do not exist to the extent necessary to serve a large swath of the offender population. Those

offenders that do not receive the intervention that they need, in the format that they are able to
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respond to, are those that wili end up re-circulating through Kansas and Missouri’s prisons systems

contributing to the very high return-to-prison rates.

Educating the public

Nearly every focus group with professionals discussed the need to educate the public about
probation and parole services (in terms of how community correctional agencies function) as well as
about the plight of the reentering offender. Several focus group participants felt as though there were
vast misunderstandings about the offender population particularly the opportunities that may be
blocked. For example a very small portion of the general public may be aware that the most basic of
needs — such as housing, employment, and transportation — are very difficult to obtain for a large
portion of the reentering offender population. Further, it was perceived that the public is unlikely to be
aware of the fact that when these needs remain unmet in the offender population, public safety

becomes threatened.

Several focus groups brainstormed about the need for public service announcements, or some
mechanism to educate the public about what the offender population experiences when they leave the
institution and return to the community. Disseminating information on a wide scale might in turn
impact members of the public that have the ability to provide {should they choose) places to live, job

opportunities, transportation options, or even treatment opportunities.

Educating the public could also increase the availability of volunteers from the community.
Community correctional agencies have traditionally relied on volunteers for a number of functions —

tasks that greatly benefit the offender population. Plus, increased representation of the public via

volunteers could also increase the likelihood that other members of the public — those that (again) hold




employment and/or housing opportunities for reentering offenders — will become aware of issues that

they could help out with.
Recommendations and Conclusions

Though many recommendations have been made through the course of this study, it is
important to first look at those most likely to impact public safety and further investigate the feasibility
of implementing them. This information could lead to the development of a metro-wide reentry
strategy whereby all corrections systems, non-for-profits, and public safety officials are warking directly
together to ensure increased success of those who reenter metropolitan Kansas City. Dr. Alexander
Holsinger will work with the Crime Commission through July 2010 to produce an Appendix to this
document, citing specific program models, policies and practices throughout the nation that are having

success with reentry strategies.

There is clearly a need for comprehensive information for returning offenders, their famifies and
all the professionals who seek to help them with a successful transition. It needs to be a priority in the
community that all the resources and information that exist to support the success of offenders be
captured, compiled, maintained and accessible. This information should include employment
opportunities, transportation resources, housing options, program and social service information. The
ease of transition is hampered by the lack of comprehensive and accessible information. This
information would be best if it were accessible in a variety of ways, though a web based database,

phone help line, and a center that is available for walk in information and referral.

Because of the many suggestions made through the course of this research, it is recommended
that those be examined comprehensively with the development of a metropolitan strategy in mind.

There is a group comprised of state and federal corrections professionals who are planning a regional
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conference with the idea of developing a five year metropolitan strategic plan with a goal of reducing
recidivism. The group intends to involve not only social services and correctional systems but also local
colleges, law enforcement, court professionals and other entities that could aid in the development of

the metropolitan reentry strategy. This study could be the basis for the development of such a strategy.

The greatest need for programming that emerged is the transitional jobs opportunity. Very few
returning offenders have the opportunity to go right to work and many have not the skills to maintain
solid employment if they find an opportunity. A revenue generating program that could accommodate a
large number of offenders, pay them a training wage and teach them everything they need to know to
obtain and maintain a job would have the greatest benefit to the community. Those offenders who
have not developed the cognitive skills they need to keep a job are the same who will be a risk to the

community if their criminal thinking is not addressed.

Public policy issues were mentioned by every focus group. "Tough on crime” policies are
popular yet they do not have to be mutually exclusive from policies that assist the successful return of
former offenders. In 2010, the state of New Jersey passed a bi-partisan reentry bill that would address
multiple issues to assist former offenders with their transition. It is strongly recommended that area
leadership and policy makers in Kansas and Missouri take a look at this platform and consider the needs

in both states that could be best addressed through public policy.

The principle investigators recommend this Gaps Analysis be used as a tool to guide the Kansas
City metropolitan area toward a successful reentry strategy that will decrease the overall recidivism

rate, improve lives of former offenders, and increase public safety.
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EXHIBIT C

EXPERTISE OF KEY PERSONNEL

{Copy and complete this table for each key person proposed)

Name of Person:

Educaticonal Degree (s): include
college or university, major, and dates

Bachelor’s Degree in Social Work, University of Missouri, May 1995

License(s)/Certification(s), #(s),
expiration date(s), if applicable:

Not Applicable

Specialized Training Completed.
Include dates and documentation of
completion:

Thinking4Change Train the Trainer, June 2011; Time Management Training,
June 2011; Pathways to Change Train the Trainer, February 2011, by MO
DOC; Dr. Latessa Evidence Based Practices in Reentry November 2010;
Evidence Based Practices- Dr. Holsinger- February 2011; Gamaliel National
Leadership Training Aug. 2009, Investment In Excellence Certification-
Cognitive/ Behavioral July 2009; Offender Workforce Development
Certification 2008; OWDS Train the Trainer 2009; NAMI Suicide Prevention
June 2009; Defense Tactics Training August 2009; Verbal Judo — MODOC-
Sept. 2009

# of years experience in area of
service proposed to provide:

16 years of post graduation professional social service experience

Describe person’s relationship to
offeror. If employee, # of years. If
subcontractor, describe other/past
working relationships

Employee since 2008; MCSP Board member 2007-2008

Describe this person’s responsibilities
over the past 12 months.

Second Chance Program Director: Hiring, supervising, training staff;
implementing and marketing programs; fundraising and developing programs;
grant writing and administration; leading and organizing the KC Metro
Reentry Coalition {an MRP Team); communicating with liaisons- P/P;
establishing referral processes; presentations to broad community regarding
reentry, including national and regional conference presentations; supporting
collaborations to implement EBP throughout metre-KC.

Previous employer(s), positions, and
dates

Cross-lines Community Qutreach, Program Director, 2005-2008; Wyandotte
Serves/ WY. Works, Contract/ PT Life Skills Teacher, 2007; Metro Lutheran
Ministry, Lead Case Manager/ Homeless Case Manager, 2001-2005;
Evergreen Behavioral Services- Contract Adoption Work, PT, 2002;
Children’s Place, F/A Services Supervisor/ Family Reunification Specialist,
1997-2001; Division of Family Services, Adoption Specialist, 1995-1997;
McCambridge Center for Women, Youth Care Worker, 1993-1995; Boonville
Correctional Center for Men, 120-Shock Program Intern, MO P/P, Aug-Dec
1994

Identify specific information about
experience in:

Clearly identify the experience, provide dates, describe the person’s
role and extent of involvement in the experience

v Working with offenders/parolees

More than 16 years of consistent post graduvation experience and additional 2
years prior to graduation. McDonald has practiced both macro and micro
social work including program leadership, design, implementation, reporting
and supervision; fundraising; strategic planning; organized 2 Coalitions, one
for homeless youth and the Reentry Coalition, completed research.
McDonald is a practiced direct service provider, delivering programs related
to family crisis intervention, adoption disruption, poverty, basic needs,
homelessness and criminal behavioral intervention. McDonald’s passion is
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the creation of programs that respond to those who are most vulnerable, most
likely to not seek help and most likely to fail without intervention. Dates are
listed above. McDonald is seen as the area “leader” in prisoner reentry and
has become a go-to for policy and practice issues.

¥" In employment placement
(assessment, job readiness training,
individual counseling, intake, job
development, job retention and
placement)

McDonald has lead the design and implementation of all employment
related services at the Crime Commission; in addition, she has
completed and become a trainer for Offender Workforce Development
Specialist Training; she has worked directly with offenders on job
retention and placement since 1994; McDonald currently has a direct
service caseload and does a bi-monthly Job Club for offenders on
supervision in Clay County with MoDOC,

¥ With case management services

McDonald has been a case manager at DFS, BCC, Children’s Place,
Metro Lutheran Ministry, Cross Lines, and in her current role does a
nominal amount of case management while offering direction and
oversight to all specialists, “case managers” within Second Chance.

v With Delivery of Wrap Around
Services

McDonald has offered wrap-around services at every organization
listed above throughout her career. This is a standard experience for
all professional social workers.

v With multiple community based

There are few area people more familiar with the vast array of
potential community partners in social services and corrections.
McDonald leads the Reentry Coalition and has lead team meetings in
every one of her professional jobs since 1995. These team meetings

services . ) . . .
have included professionals, participants, and often a multi-
disciplinary team. McDonald leads and facilitates all current staffings
for Second Chance Programs.

Staffing Methodology

Describe the person’s planned
duties/role proposed herein:

This project will require additional time for staff training, team
meeting facilitation, group work and other direct service that
McDonald will perform. Duties will be adjusted and shared within
Crime Commission staff, especially the Second Chance Team, as
needed, to accommodate added duties for this project.

gy
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EXHIBIT C

EXPERTISE OF KEY PERSONNEL
(Copy and complete this table for each key person proposed)

Name of Person:

Jamie Hallam

Educational Degree (s): include
college or university, major, and dates

Longview Community College Coursework; plans to continue
education

License(s)/Certification(s), #(s),
expiration date(s), if applicable:

Not Applicable

Specialized Training Completed.
Include dates and documentation of
completion:

Pathways to Change Train the Trainer, Complete 2/09/11, by MO DOC; Dr.
Alex Holsinger, Evidence Based Practices, April 2011; Motivationat
Interviewing Training, TMC-BH, 4/12/11; Time Management Training, June
2011

# of years experience in area of
service proposed to provide:

Hallam brings 11 years of professional experience in working with the
offender population, primarily through the Metropolitan Community Service
Program (2000-2007)} and in Raytown as a Court Clerk (2007-2010)

Describe person’s relationship to
offeror. If employee, # of years. If
subcontractor, describe other/past
working relationships

Hallam was an employee of KCMCC from 2000-2007 and returned in
2010 to fulfill needs of the Second Chance Program. She previously
held the role of MCSP Supervisor.

Describe this person’s responsibilities
over the past 12 months.

Hallam lead the efforts to create and implement a user-friendly
database called www.secondchanceke.org ; she coordinated and hosted
all Welcome Back Sessions; she met individually with offenders on a
regular basis, completing goal plans, coordinating services and helping
them achieve goals.

Previous employer(s), positions, and
dates

KCMCC 2000-2007, Raytown Municipal Court (2007-2010);
KCMCC (2010-present)

Identify specific information about
experience in:

Clearly identify the experience, provide dates, describe the person’s
role and extent of involvement in the experience

v Working with offenders/parolees

Hallam has worked with offenders consistently since 2000.

v In employment placement
(assessment, job readiness training,
individual counseling, intake, job
development, job retention and
placement)

Hallam first offered these services beginning in 2010 when she joined
the Second Chance Team. She has the highest employment attainment
success rate on the team, due to her diligent efforts with those she
serves.

With case management services

Hallam first offered Case Management services as a part of the Second
Chance Team, beginning in 2010.

¥v" With Delivery of Wrap Around
Services

Hallam began working in this area when she joined the Second Chance
Team in 2010.

v With multiple community based
services

Hallam began working with many community organizations in her
original position at the Crime Commission, beginning in 2000, She
created new and worked with existing worksites for the completion of
community service for offenders throughout the metro. Hallam
continues to have positive relationships with these organizations and
now has added dozens of new organizations to her resource database
as the Resource Specialist for Second Chance. She visits new
agencies, encourages them to make services available to our
population, learns how to make referrals and gathers information to
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Staffing Methodology

Describe the person’s planned
duties/role proposed herein:

Upon award of this RFP, Hallam’s duties will be adjusted to make her
primary focus case management to fulfill the responsibilities of this
grant. At this time, her position is being funded by Crime Commission
in kind; Some of the duties related to the database and coordination of

WB sessions will be adjusted to make a manageable workload.

Jo
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EXHIBIT C

EXPERTISE OF KEY PERSONNEL
(Copy and complete this table for each key person proposed)

Title'of Position: WAV ice President L LE!Corrections Liaison W

Name of Person:

Barry C. Mayer

Educational Degree (s): include
college or university, major, and dates

BS, Park College, 1990

License(s)/Certification(s), #(s),
expiration date(s), if applicable:

Not Applicable

Specialized Training Completed.
Include dates and documentation of
completion:

Evidence Based Practices Training, Dr. Alex Holsinger (4/11),
Pathways to Change Train the Trainer (2/11)

# of years experience in area of
service proposed to provide:

Barry Mayer has 41 years of experience in law enforcement,
leadership, planning and non-profit administration. 19 yrs executive
managerial experience

Describe person’s relationship to
offeror. If employee, # of years. If
subcontractor, describe other/past
working relationships

Mayer has been the Vice President of KCMCC since 2005.
Previously, he was employed by Mayor Barnes to lead Safe City
Initiative; Weed and Seed Site Coordinator; and Ad Hoc Group
Against Crime. He retired as Commander of East Patrol from the
Kansas City Police Department after more than 30 years of service.

Describe this person’s responsibilities
over the past 12 months.

Mayer has provided oversight for nearly every aspect of the Crime
Commission’s operations over the past year. Manager of programs at
Crime Commission, staff supervisory responsibility, budget
preparation/control, reporting, organizing, planning, leading,
coordinating and community outreach for organization

Previous employer(s), positions, and
dates

Kansas City, MO Police Department, 1970-2002

MoveUp, DOJ Weed & Seed Grant Coordinator 2003-2004
City of KCMO, Safe City Director, 2004-2006

KCMCC, Vice-President, 2006-present

Identify specific information about
experience in:

Clearly identify the experience, provide dates, describe the person’s
role and extent of involvement in the experience

v Working with offenders/parolees

As KCPD Major was on Steering Committee to administer DOJ
SVORI grant in 2001-2002, current President of Mo Probation &
Parole sponsored Citizen’s Advisory Board (CAB) for KCMO region,
traveled to Washington, DC to develop current MRP Program with Mo
Dept of Corrections Director and Representatives, assisted in
development of Kansas City Reentry Coalition with 112 member
organizations and agencies and current chair of LE/Corrections
Committee, recipient of MO Dept of Corrections Leadership Award
for building community partnerships that create innovative reentry
programs for the State of Missouri at 2008 MO Reentry Conference,
presenter at that conference and National Offender Workforce
Development Conference in Dallas in 2010.

¥ In employment placement
(assessment, job readiness (raining,
individual counseling, intake, job
development, job retention and
placement)

Created and developed Second Chance Program for Kansas City
Metropolitan Crime Commission after successfully administering job
readiness and placement program with Crime Commission’s
Community Service Program for court-ordered clients.

v With case management services

Program management and administration
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Program management and administration

¥ With multiple community based
services

Assisted in founding the membership to KC Reentry Coalition to
supplant goals of local KC Metro Missouri Reentry Process Team
which was co-chaired with Region Il Administrator when MRP first
began. Reentry Coalition service organizations became available
partners for Second Chance Program and resources for offenders.

Staffing Methodology

Describe the person’s planned
duties/role proposed herein:

As chair of LE/Corrections Committee, perform liaison function
between KCPD, local corrections agencies(princtpally MO Probation
& Parole), local city departments, elected officials and
neighborhood/business/faith-based leaders to identify role and projects
to involve LE in assisting with successful reentry for high risk
offenders. Process includes geographic projects around high crime
areas and identifying high risk offenders for monitoring and
confirmation that services are being provided to eliminate them from
suspicion that they are contributing to the crime problem in the
targeted neighborhoods. Current project areas include crime and
police call for service hot spots where the police are testing a new foot
beat project to “break-in” recruit officers while providing additional
unique resources to the affected neighborhoods along Prospect Ave,
Independence Ave and Armour Blvd. affecting clients at 4 P&P field
offices. Additional sites in south KC, Independence and north of river
in Clay County will be planned which will involve 3 additional district
field offices. High Risk offenders in these zones can be considered by
P&P for Second Chance Risk Reduction Center program services.
Additional duties include management of program and supervisory
staff, attendance and program advisory board meetings and meetings
related to projects and the delivery of described services with
cormrections personnel and network organizations.
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EXHIBIT C

EXPERTISE OF KEY PERSONNEL
(Copy and complete this table for each key person proposed)

Name of Person:

Josh Aquino

Educational Degree (s): include
college or university, major, and dates

SMU, Bachelor of Science in Sales with an Emphasis in Marketing
December 2003

License(s)/Certification(s), #(s),
expiration date(s), if applicable:

Not Applicable

Specialized Training Completed.
Include dates and documentation of
completion:

Licensed Real Estate Agent, Missouri and Kansas, 2003; Pathways to
change Train the Trainer 2/2011by MO DOC; Dr. Latessa Evidence
Based Practices, 11/11/10; Motivational Interviewing Training TMC-
BH, 4/12/11

# of years experience in area of
service proposed to provide:

Describe person’s relationship to
offeror. If employee, # of years. If
subcontractor, describe other/past
working relationships

Aquino is an FTE of KCMCC since August 2010; He started as PT
Work Crew Supervisor and was promoted to Housing Specialist in
September 2010; Aquino may stay in his current role of Housing
Specialist or be transferred to one of the Resource Spec. positions with
this award.

Describe this person’s responsibilities
over the past 12 months.

Case management for high risk offenders with an emphasis on
securing housing for them and a particular focus with sex offenders;
Training Tenant’s Rights Classes; increasing landlords willing to rent
to this population

Previous employer{(s), positions, and
dates

Story House Realty Owner/ Agent, 2006-present; Plexus Realty,
Agent, 2004-2006; Max 3, LLC, 2003-2005, Sales; Sutherlands, Retail
Clerk 1997-2003

Identify specific information about
experience in:

Clearly identify the experience, provide dates, describe the person’s
role and extent of involvement in the experience

¥ Working with offenders/parolees

Experience from Aug,. 2010- present in current position

¥ In employment placement
(assessment, job readiness training,
individual counseling, intake, job
development, job retention and
placement)

Aquino shared in employment program responsibilities and has
participated in supervising Transitional Jobs Work Crew, Job Club,
and Job Readiness Class. He was successful in the past year in helping
those in his caseload with employment goals to gain or increase their
employment income and retain their jobs.

v With case management services

Aquino has been a case manager at KCMCC for one year.

v With Delivery of Wrap Around
Services

Aquino has been offering wrap around services since he joined
KCMCC staff one year ago.

v With multiple community based
services

Aquino is an active participant on the Housing Committee of the KC
Metro Reentry coalition. He works with area shelters, KCCRC staff,
fransitiona) living facilities and other organizations to meet the basic
and enhanced needs of program participants.

Staﬂ‘mg Methodology

Describe the person’s planned
duties/role proposed herein:

Aquino will be offered the opportunity to shift to this grant funded
position, if awarded; he will offer case management with added
responsibilities of training classes/ employment emphasis.
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EXHIBIT D

PERSONNEL EXPERTISE SUMMARY

{Complete this Exhibit for any additional personnel not included on previous Exhibit. Resumes may also be provided)

[ Personnel

~ [ Background and Expertise of Personnel and Planned Duties |

Sarah Matthes

Administrative Assistant

Will assist in the tracking of all related expenditures for the
application; assist in the set up of owtcomes tracking; billing
reporting documentation, etc; Matthes is a new part time
employee of KCMCC; she has a full time job coordinating
expenditures in a like role for Jackson County, Missouri.
Matthes has a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and is a CPA.

To Be Hired

Mentor and Job Services Coordinator

This individual will have a background in some form of Human
Services; a Bachelor’s Degree is desired. The ideal candidate
will have a high profile in the community that will allow them to
recruit mentors successfully; the candidate will be able to
coordinate mentor and protégeé related activities, train and recruit
mentors, and support the success of these relationships. They
will also ensure coordination of special projects for supervised
community service or work related activities.

TBA

Resource Specialist

Case Management and Training

Aquino, Housing Specialist (see Exhibit C) may be transferred
into this role. If not, the hired individual will possess a
Bachelor's Degree in Human Services, Social Work or
Corrections and will have experience working with those in
poverty and/ or offenders related to employment and housing, A
strong emphasis on employment and working with employers is
desired.

Richard Easley

President/ CEQ

Oversight

Rick Easley has a Masters in Public Admistration from Park
University. He has a strong background in leadership, serving
over 30 vears on the Kansas City Police Department and rising
to the role of Chief of Police. Former Chief Easley retired from
the KCPD in 2004 and promptly joined the Crime Commission
as President/ CEO. Under his leadership, KCMCC launched the
Second Chance Program in 2008.

(Name)

(Title)

{Proposed Role/Function)

(Name)

(Title)

(Proposed Role/Function)
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EXHIBITE

METHOD OF PERFORMANCE

The offeror should present a written plan for performing the requirements specified in this Request for Proposal.
In presenting such informatjon, the offeror should specifically address each of the following issues:

1. The offeror’s approach to conducting Re-Entry Activities.

The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission Second Chance Program plans to offer the
highest quality of reentry services available to offenders on supervision with Missouri
Department of Corrections in Kansas City, Missouri. The Second Chance team is trained in
Evidence Based Practices (Latessa and Holsinger) and Pathways Cognitive Behavioral
Training utilized by the State of Missouri. The critical part of these practices is ensuring
those offenders most likely to re-offend are targeted for services with an on-going cognitive/
behavioral approach to encourage progress toward goals. Dosage is critical with those most
likely to re-offend; they need increased contact with their case manager and officer to ensure
the best results.

The services will begin with marketing to ensure those probation and parolees most in need
are referred to the program. The Probation and Parole area staff will receive a flyer and
presentations about services. They will get electronic copies of approved referral forms with
information about the need to include a Transitional Accountability Plan, which will be a part
of goal planning. Officers will be encouraged to refer those who are considered high or
moderate risk of re-offending, by the use of the Field Risk Reduction Instrument and/ or by
officer assessment. All referrals are sent directly to the Program Director who reviews and
assigns them to the Specialist who can best work with the participant. Special projects in
high crime areas that identify Level III offenders will also influence clients chosen by
Probation and Parole to refer to Second Chance for services. These projects are now being
developed and coordinated through the LE/Corrections Liaison Officer, Police Department
and Probation and Parole administration.

The Second Chance Program utilizes evidence based practices to identify risk factors, with
information from Probation and Parole, which could impede successful reintegration. The
assigned team member, Resource Specialist, contacts the offender and schedules a meeting
within 48 hours of referral. The Specialist meets with the offender in person, within one
week of referral, and completes an intake/ assessment form, including thorough work history,
substance abuse background, health needs, barriers to success, debt/ finances, housing/
homeless information, and criminal history, including information offered by the referral
source. The intake process includes a discussion about the program, confidentiality (Release
of Information Form signed and dated), and the participant’s personal goals. All subsequent
meetings are spent working toward the TAP and any additional goals set with the case
manager, with a particular emphasis on those goals that, if achieved, would reduce risks and
increase the potential for success for the offender.

All offenders will be assessed for basic needs and referred to public and private resources to
help them meet those needs. Second Chance has an extensive network of agencies for basic
needs, treatment/ counseling, transitional housing, and government related services (ranging
from Child Support Enforcement to Vocational Rehabilitation). To further navigate trhough
and address health, mental health, and substance abuse needs of this population, the Crime
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Commission and Black Health Care Coalition have engaged in a partnership. BHCC will
serve as a single point of contact to help the participants and Specialist navigate through
treatment, prevention, mental health and other forms of health related services. BHCC has
extensive partnerships with all area health related entities, particularly those who serve in a
population without insurance coverage. Participants in the program will have access to
quarterly free screenings, prenatal care, community events, prevention classes, and a point of
contact to help navigate through the myriad of health related needs common to all people and
particular to the returning offender population. BHCC Case Manager or CEO will participate
in case staffings to further identify resources and needs for all participants (see attached
MOU).

This project includes regularly scheduled (bi-monthly) case staffings, team meetings
designed to include the following individuals:

Offender

Mentor, family member & / or individual support system

Probation/ Parole Officer or assigned liaison

KCPD Designated Liaison

Second Chance Resource Specialist (Case Manager)

Second Chance Program Director (coordinates and facilitates meetings)
Law Enforcement/ Corrections Coordinator

Second Chance Mentor/ Job Services Coordinator

BHCC Case Manager

Other case managers or service providers assigned

DOoooogoocooaooa

The above team will review the TAP and any progress or setbacks related to this plan. If
desired, Probation and Parole can request the assistance of KCPD on field visits to see
participant. The purpose of these team meetings is to work together to achieve goals related
to the TAP and share information; Confidentiality Statements are signed by all attendees at
meetings.

Special Projects will also be coordinated by the Mentor/ Worksite Coordinator to help
participants complete assigned community service hours. Every effort will be made to have
community service worksites and projects available in the community where the participant
resides. The supervision of these projects will allow participants to have hands on feedback
about their work habits with particular focus on responding to supervision/ accepting
feedback; punctuality and attendance; personal appearance; working as a member of a team,
etc. These projects will be supervised by the Second Chance team unless a participant needs
special worksite accommodations.

Mentors will be recruited and trained by Second Chance Mentor/ Job Services Coordinator.
This person is in a unique position to go to non-profit worksites, including faith communities,
and offer community service projects while also conducting recruitment outreach for
mentors. This person will coordinate service projects for approximately ten hours per week,
recruit mentors one day per week, and facilitate mentor/ mentee monthly meetings. These
monthly meetings will be informal in nature, include ice breakers and refreshments and
ultimately will encourage matches between those who are trained mentors and the program
participants. Once participants are matched with mentors, they will be encouraged to have
contact on a regular basis and continue to return to the monthly meetings.
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Second Chance Program offers training classes including Job Readiness Training (12 hours),
Tenant’s Rights and Responsibilities Training (2 hours), Job Club (1 hour/ week), which are
offered to participant’s according to their need and their TAP. All participants who are
renting for the first time will be encouraged to attend Tenant’s Rights and all who lack a
solid work history will be encouraged to attend the Job Readiness Training class. Other
classes that will be offered include Money SMART (financial literacy) and basic computer
skills (taught by Metropolitan Community Colleges at Pioneer Campus; free for participants).
Participants will be encouraged to bring family members who are also in need of the skills
taught in these classes.

The Resource Specialist is the gatekeeper for every aspect of the case, ensuring a quality
working relationship with the participant, communication with team members, coordination
of services within Second Chance and referrals to outside organizations, and file
documentation that tracks all progress and setbacks toward goals. They present their cases,
both progress and challenges, at bi-monthly team staffings, and the officer offers additional
information about supervision and special conditions. The team hears from officer, specialist
and participant, offers feedback and determines any additional direction needed. The
Resource Specialist maintains weekly contact with the participant/ offender until goals are
achieved and the team determines the participant is ready for “follow up™ status, with less
frequent contact, at least monthly, until services can be terminated.

2. The offeror’s method for Job Placement

Second Chance Program has a heavy emphasis on employment with a particular focus on
retention, with the understanding that there is a strong correlation between employment and
recidivism. Keeping a job is important as getting a job to the overall outcomes for this
program. During the intake/ assessment phase, Second Chance Resource Specialists
determine a participant’s employment and educational history, solicit information about
desired employment, and gains an understanding of a participant’s career goals. Staff
encourages an A, B, C approach to employment: Getting “A job” that you can enjoy, finding
a “Better job,” and then seeking a “Career.” Some participants have already had a career
path and will work toward continuation of this path; however, many participants who are
considered high risk of re-offending have never had a job or have not been able to keep a job
for more than six months, therefore much attention will be given to making a good
employment match and working with the participant and employer toward retention issues.

Everyone assigned to the Second Chance Program will be encouraged to complete Job
Readiness Training. The training has an emphasis on creating a resume’, completing an
application, responding to questions about convictions, developing a “30 second
commercial” to sell one’s skills, conducting a job search, mock interviews, personat
appearance, punctuality and attendance, communication skills, and other retention issues.
This is a twelve hour course, completed over the course of four mornings in one week or one
session a week for four weeks. This training may be waived for a few, at the decision of the
staffing team, if the participant has a solid work history and has completed similar training
with another organization.

Once participants have completed the training, they are encouraged to attend Job Club. This
weekly Job Club is an opportunity for participants to network potential job leads with staff
and one another. Often, a participant will have learned about a potential job that they do not
want, can’t get to, or offers hours that don’t work with their schedule. They are encouraged
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to bring potential leads to share with one another each week. The Resource Specialist or
Program Director facilitates these weekly sessions and they also bring potential leads to the
group. These groups include discussions about which industries hire during various times of
the year and the group helps brainstorm “what happens” during this season. For example, in
the spring, one group generated ideas to apply for jobs at moving companies, lawn care
services, concert venues, hardware/ gardening centers, ice cream/ frozen yogurt shops, and
auto salvage lots.

In these Job Clubs, participants also learn that 85% of the Missouri workforce is employed
by a business with less than 50 employees, which is considered a “small business.” The
program participants are often more successful gaining employment in these businesses for a
variety of reasons, including they often get to meet the owner who makes the hiring
decisions, there are not policies that preclude hiring people with felonies, the business owner
truly benefits from a tax credit, and there are not volumes of job seekers to contend with as
one would find in a corporate business. For the same reason, these participants are
encouraged to seck employment in person rather than completing applications on line, where
the “felony question” will often eliminate them for consideration as soon as the application is
filed. Participants who do cheose to go to “big business” are taught a specific approach to
make themselves memorable to a hiring manager and to stick out as an applicant.

Program participants will complete, individually with their Resource Specialist, a “Barriers
to Employment” worksheet that includes categories such as child care, transportation, family
issues, clothing, etc. This helps the team look at the big picture in advance and work to
eliminate issues that could interfere with retention. Second Chance Program Participants are
able to complete a skills and interest inventory with their Resource Specialist. These tend to
be most effective with participants who have a fairly solid work history and need help
determining career. Lora McDonald, Program Director, is trained and trains staff in
administering assessment tools for ready participants.

Second Chance staff is well versed in recruiting employers who will give an opportunity to
people who have a criminal history, with lists of over 600 area employers who have hired
people with felonies. Second Chance has presented to large groups, including Society of
Human Resources Managers (SHRM), Kansas City area Chamber of Commerce Board of
Directors, and small businesses that assembled at a Reentry Coalition event. However, the
team has the best luck when conducting outreach directly to a potential employer, sharing
Work Opportunity Tax Credit and Federal Bonding incentives, identifying their hiring needs,
and then making a potential match between participants and employer. Staff will often send
more than one potential candidate to the employer with the understanding that any
participants not selected will get quality feedback on their application and interview, which
will ultimately help them gain employment. Other times, staff seeks employers through
common area websites, such as Craig’s List or KC Phil Net.

Once a job match is made, the Specialist connects with the employer and offers assistance
with retention and performance issues. Progress is monitored and participants are offered
regular feedback through their employer and Specialist. Employment and wage verifications
are gathered during this phase; once the participant is stable in employment, they will be
moved into a follow up phase with less contact from their Resource Specialist.

3. Method of recruitment for offeror’s employees.
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The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission boasts a diverse staff; diversity has
increased by approximately 25% since Barry Mayer has filled the role of Vice President. For
the Second Chance Program, it is important that the staff is as diverse as the population
served. The six hires of the Second Chance Team include 50% African American; 17%
Hispanic; and 33% Caucasian. One of the six hires approved at the time by Probation &
Parole was a person with a criminal history. The hiring policy for people with criminal
backgrounds requires the individual to be approved by the State agency or funding source,
contact with past supervising officer (if possible), and verification that the individual has
been off of supervision (probation or parole) for more than three years,

Typically, hiring announcements are sent to the Program Director’s 500 person list serve via
email and positions are often posted on www.kcphilnet.org. Applicants send information in
via email and significant consideration is given to their ability to follow instructions,
complete a quality cover letter and resume’ and that they meet the basic qualifications for the
job. Applicants who present well during the pre-interview phase will be able help offender/
participants present themselves to potential employers.

4. The offerot’s plans for coordination with the state agency on all employment placement program issues,
from staffing and personnel issues to quality of care issues.

The bi-monthly staffings will serve as the primary communication tool for the entire team.
The Second Chance Program Director and Resource Specialist ensure regular and on-going
documented communication with Probation and Parole, often in the form of email. For
example, if a participant misses a meeting, shows up very early or very late, officers are
notified. Similarly, if a participant is not following up on job leads or other tasks related to
goals, if a participant appears to or admits to having sobriety/ relapse issues, or otherwise
showing setbacks toward goals, the officer is immediately notified. Second Chance Staff is
encouraged to attend supervisory meetings between officer and offender if there are
difficulties. The Resource Specialist is the primary contact for the employer and it is
imperative that any relevant information is documented and shared with the supervising
officer. Relationships between staff and officers have been paramount to the success of the
offender in Second Chance Programs.

5. How the offeror will serve those offenders with special needs and deficits in the following areas: reading
(including literacy), written, spoken or receptive language, learning disabilities, hearing, vision, and/or
physical disabilities of any type.

Referral information and the information gathered during the intake assessment process
identifies special needs for participants. In the past, Second Chance has worked with
Literacy KC to assist those with basic literacy needs, Adult Basic Education for participants
who are closer to earning their GED, and the community colleges in the area for those more
educated. The offices of Second Chance are accessible to people with disabilities. Special
accommodations are made to ensure people with special needs are able to access the offices
to meet with staff. Second Chance has a close working relationship with Vocational
Rehabilitation and area contract providers who specialize in employment for people with
special needs. Second Chance has also worked with resource providers such as The Whole
Person and Coalition for Independence who specialize in case management and services to
assist with integration in mainstream society.
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6. The offeror should attach and submit letters of cooperation or participation agreements from identified
providers. Letters from the state agency’s Probation and Parole office are not needed.

Second Chance boasts relationships with 112 area organizations, members of the Kansas City
Metropolitan Reentry Coalition. Applications are on file for all members. Members are
encouraged to ensure www.secondchanceke.org database entries are thorough and up to date.
Staff contacts partners when making referrals and makes contact with programs the referred
participant is already enrolled in, to the extent needed to fulfill the goal/ TAP for participants.
Specific MOU’s will be developed and maintained on file with all key partners, as specified
in this application. See attached MOU with BHCC for an example of an already developed
document for this project.

The offeror should describe the proposed role of the Kansas City Police Department (KCPD) in
the offeror’s proposed program.

The LE/Corrections Committee Chair of the Reentry Coalition performs a liaison function
between KCPD, local corrections agencies(principally MO Probation & Parole), local city
departments, elected officials and neighborhood/business/faith-based leaders to identify the LE
role and special projects that involve LE in assisting with successful reentry for high risk
offenders. This process includes geographic projects around high crime areas and identifying high
risk offenders for monitoring and confirmation that services are being provided to eliminate them
from suspicion that they are contributing to the crime problem in the targeted neighborhoods.
Current project areas include crime and police call for service hot spots where the police are
testing a new foot beat project to “break-in” recruit officers while providing additional unique
resources to the affected neighborhoods along Prospect Ave, Independence Ave and Armour
Blvd. affecting clients at 4 P&P field offices. Additional sites in south KC, Independence and
north of river in Clay County will be planned which will involve 3 additional district field offices.
High Risk offenders in these zones can be considered by P&P for Second Chance Risk Reduction
Center program services. In addition, a KCPD Deputy Chief and two Division Commanders have
been available to attend “Welcome Back™ sessions and deliver a message of support as well as a
challenge to offenders to succeed. A copy of a letter handout from Deputy Chief Kevin Masters
is attached. In addition, the LE/Corrections Liaison Officer works with KCPD and other agencies
to create attendance at local district office bi-monthly meetings and is working with KCPD and
Probation & Parole to increase information/intelligence sharing, protocols for pursuing
absconders and joint training program for both police and probation/parole officers to learn each
other’s roles and develop methods and ways to assist each other in their similar public safety
missions.

7. The offeror should include the number of offenders they hope to provide services to annually.

Second Chance Program plans to serve a minimum of 160 participants, high to moderate risk
probation and parolees living in Kansas City, Missouri, within the contract year. Additional
offenders will be served based on capacity of staff and the availability of funding.
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8.

Personnel Resources and Organizational Plan:

a Organizational Chart - The offeror should provide an organizational chart showing the staffing
and lines of authority for the key personnel to be used. The organizational chart should include
(1) The relationship of service personnel to management and support personnel, (2) The names of
the personnel and the working titles of each, and (3) Any proposed subcontractors including
management, supervisory, and other key personnel. It is recommended that two organizational
charts be included. One organizational chart should outline the total organization and where the
team proposed for this project fits into the total organization. The second chart should be an
organizational chart outline the team proposed for this project.

Q Along with a detailed organizational chart, the offeror should describe the following:

¥ How services of the contract will be managed, controlled, and supervised in order to ensure
satisfactory contract performance.

The Second Chance Program Director, Lora McDonald, and KCMCC Vice President
Barry Mayer work closely together on all grant funded projects, from conception/
program design to completion. McDonald and Mayer share in the writing and
submission of all applications. McDonald is responsible for the day to day operations
of the program, staff supervision, case assignments, coordination of services, and
staff training. McDonald screens potential employees and both interview; McDonald
makes recommendations and Mayer makes final hiring or termination decisions.
McDonald compietes six month performance evaluations on all staff members and
Mayer signs off on them. McDonald performs random audits of charts to ensure
quality of services and completeness of records. McDonald handles the vast majority
of capturing data and reporting outcomes; the KCMCC financial officer works
closely with Mayer and McDonald to ensure all expenditures are in keeping with the
budget. McDonald enlists the help of staff to ensure proper tracking of outcomes.
Mayer offers oversight for all aspects of grants.

¥ Total Personnel Resources - The offeror should provide information that documents the depth
of resources to ensure completion of all requirements on time and on target. If the offeror has
other ongoing contracts that also require personnel resources, the offeror should document
how sufficient resources will be provided to the State of Missouri.

Primarily, personnel assigned this project are devoted to this grant alone.
However, Mayer will coordinate with Law Enforcement and Corrections
Committee and will devote a percentage of his time, as noted in the budget,
exclusively to this project. McDonald leads the Reentry Coalition and dedicates
less than ten percent of her time to these duties, as most coalition projects are
executed by committee chairs and their members. The balance of McDonald’s
time is devoted to Second Chance Program direct services. At this time, the State
of Missouri Community Reentry Services is funding one program, with one staff
person who has filled this role for one year. McDonald will continue to supervise
the Housing Specialist and will have sufficient time to dedicate to this project.

Economic Impact to Missouri - the offeror should describe the economic advantages that will be realized
as a resuit of the offeror performing the required services. The offeror should respond to the following:
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Provide a description of the proposed services that will be performed and/or the proposed products
that will be provided by Missourians and/or Missouri products.

The program includes a budget for services that includes rent assistance, bus passes, and
incidental work related costs. These items will be purchased in Missouri with preferences for
Missouri based companies. Employment manuals have been printed in the past by
DeLaSalle Educational Center, an area high school for students with behavioral needs.
Del.aSalle uses this printing center as an employment training program, a social enterprise
designed to teach students basic workplace skills and detailed skills for a printing company.
This is a non-profit business and offers the dual benefit of prevention, assisting Kansas City
youth with their goals to help them avoid entering the criminal justice system.

Second Chance deliberately does business with local companies who hire or otherwise assist
former offenders. Culinary Cornerstones is an area program that teaches cooking skills to
former offenders and homeless persons. They are a commonly used caterer for Reentry
Coalition events. Big Mama’s hires former offenders; food for meetings and events has been
purchased from this company as well. Second Chance makes every effort to use businesses
willing to hire former offenders and not utilize businesses with practices or policies to not
hire people with criminal histories.

Provide a description of the economic impact retummed to the State of Missouri through tax revenue
obligations. '

See attached Retorn on Investment Statement

Provide a description of the company’s economic presence within the State of Missouri (e.g., type of
facilities: sales offices; sales outlets; divisions; manufacturing; warehouse; other), including Missouri
employee statistics.

The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission was established as a non-profit organization in
1949, Currently, main offices occupy office space in the Penn Tower building at 3100 Broadway,
Suite 226, Kansas City, MO, 64111. The Second Chance Program leases space at the Metropolitan
Community Colleges Pioneer Campus located at 2700 E. 18™ Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64127.
The business features four principal programs: Greater KC Crime Stoppers 474-TIPS Hotline, SAFE,
Metropolitan Community Service Program and the Second Chance Program. In addition, the Crime
Commission provides fiscal agency for the United State Attomey’s Office Department of Justice
grants that focus on Gang and Gun Violence Reduction. The Crime Commission generates revenue
from municipal & state contracts for program services, client fees from MCSP, state/federal and
foundation grant support, contributions and fundraiser events such as golf tournaments and award
banquets/luncheons. The mission is to support local law enforcement and other justice agencies
through the programs and does so with staffing annually around 20 employees. There are currently
11 male and 11 female employees with 23% minority employment.
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Return on Investment for the Second Chance Center

Thorough economic evaluation has shown that preventing just one career
criminal can save society over $2 million.

Cohen, M.A. {2005). The Costs of Crime and Justice. New York: Routledge.

Consider the following Potential Costs:

® & 5 & &6 & & 8 & 5 S 0 o

Crime

Public assistance (including welfare or other social services such as foster care)
Child abuse and neglect

Health and mental health service needs

Substance abuse and treatment costs

Police and Sheriff office costs to arrest and process

Court and county prosecutor costs

Adult jail and sentencing costs

Adult community supervision costs

Department of Corrections institutional and post-prison supervision costs
Victim costs (out-of-pocket and quality of-life costs)

Decreased population due to crime/ blight

Perpetuating cycles of incarceration in families (children of offenders are 8 times more
likely to be incarcerated than children of non-offenders)

Consider the following Potential Benefits:

¢ & & & 8 0

Increased Employment rates and earning potential

Earnings Tax

Sales Tax

Payments for supervision, restitution, and child support
Increased homeownership

Increased educational performance for children of participants
Population growth from improved public safety

Projected Center Population Characteristics, Goals and Outcomes

The Second Chance Center, funded at $500,000/ year, will be able to serve 200 “high
risk” offenders in the first year. Each participant will benefit from a personalized goal
plan and will be engaged in group work that applies to that plan. All offenders served by
the center will have served time or be on probation with Missouri Department of
Corrections and will be considered at “high risk” of recidivism, return to incarceration, by
the state’s assessment. Those served will primarily reside in Kansas City, Missouri and
Jackson County.

Second Chance Center participants will be in intensive programming to meet their
individual goals. Most will have a goal related to obtaining and maintaining meaningful
full time employment, as employment is one of the “risk factors” considered by Missouri
Dept. of Corrections. There is a high correlation between unemployment and recidivism.
A major focus of this center will be not only helping people get a job but also keep a job.

Second Chance projects a conservative number of successful outcomes. If half of those
served by the center complete the program by reducing their risk factors, becoming tax
payers and law abiding citizens, the state, city and county will reap tremendous benefits.
Therefore, we use that conservative number of 100 “successes” to demonstrate some of
the most obvious gains to the public in our “Sample Analysis” below:
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Sample Analysis:

The following analysis considers just two factors, re-incarceration and employment. The
daily per diem for the Jackson County and Kansas City, Missouri Detention Facility is
$59.16. The average length of stay for a person in that facility is currently 201 days. The
average cost per stay, then, is $12,423.60 ($59.16 x 201 days). The average cost of
incarceration per person for the State of Missouri is currently just under $18,000 per year
(October 2009, George Lombardi, Director of Missouri Department of Corrections). It is
important to bear in mind that individuals rarely would have a sentence of a year or less,
therefore, the costs for one individual committing recidivism are even more staggering.

The center estimates an average full time wage, for the purpose of this analysis, of $10/
hour, which translates to $20,800/ year ($10 x 40 hours x 52 weeks). The employment
and tax numbers below are based on average earnings of $20,800/ year for 100
participants. The Kansas City Earnings Tax is 1% of gross income. A person who earns
$20,800 annually pays $1023 in Missouri State Income Tax (State of Missouri website
tax calculator).

100 participants abide the law x $12,423.60, = $1,242,360 savings to KC/ Jackson County
100 participants avoid state prison x $18,000 = $1,800,000 savings to Missouri/ year

100 participants earn $10/ hr. full-time = $20,800 new city revenue/ year from 1%
earnings taxes

100 participants earn $10/ hour full time = $102,300 new Missouri state revenue/ year
The projected cost of the center is less than $500,000/ year.

If 100 center “high risk” participants avoid arrest and re-incarceration and become
employed:

$1,242,360 Kansas City/ Jackson County Jail Savings

$1,800,000 State Prison Savings

$ 20,800 New Earnings Tax Revenue for Kansas City

$ 102,300 New Income Tax Revenue for Missouri

$3,165,460 Savings and New Revenue

- $500.000 Annual Operational Budget for Center

$2,665,460 Total Savings to Missouri, Jackson Coe., & Kansas City

Note: All but the first line item (jail awaiting new conviction/
inecarceration) would be a recurring item.
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MI. Introduction

Crime Commission Mission:

To make the Kansas City metropolitan area a safer, more secure place to
live, do business, and visit by supporting law-enforcement and justice
agencies and their causes.

Second Chance Program Mission:

To provide a crime prevention strategy for metropolitan Kansas City
through research, advocacy and the funding of programs that improves
opportunities for ex-offenders to lead productive lives.

The Crime Commission was established in 1949. For over 60 years, the Crime
Commission has provided business and community leaders an opportunity to assist in
implementing programs that support criminal justice agencies and in so doing enhance
public safety.

The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission (KCMCC), a 501¢3 nonprofit
organization, was created to address public safety concems in greater Kansas City.
Business and community leaders from across the city came forward to join this
organization. Since its inception, KCMCC has assisted law-enforcement agencies in such
ways as supporting bond issues for the jails and helping to pass an earnings tax that
provided money to hire badly needed police officers and firefighters. KCMCC also
worked to help pass a quarter cent sales tax for capital improvements for the Kansas City,
Missouri Police Department.

KCMCC has 15 employees; as well as a full-time active duty police officer, assigned
from the Kansas City, Missouri Police Department, as coordinator for the TIPS Hotline.
For almost 60 years KCMCC has been the vital component for a safer community in
Greater Kansas City. With more than 150 volunteers serving on the five program boards,
KCMCC has an unparalleled reach into the civic and political centers of influence in
Greater Kansas City. The addition of the Second Chance Program in 2008 to the four
existing programs - the Greater Kansas City Crime Stoppers TIPS Hotline (816-474-
TIPS), Metropolitan Community Service Program, Surviving Spouse and Family
Endowment Fund, and the United States Attorney’s Office’s Project Safe Neighborhood
or Operation Ceasefire — KCMCC is uniquely positioned to positively impact reentry
efforts in Greater Kansas City by providing leadership and coordination for the
multiplicity of public and private agencies addressing one or more facets of the ex-
offender reentry challenge.

Currently led by Major Barry C. Mayer (ret.), Vice President of KCMCC, and Lora
McDonald, BSW and Program Coordinator, the Second Chance program has successfully
organized a 25+ person board of directors and the Kansas City Reentry Coalition that
consists of a growing membership that includes over 100 public and private collaborating
agencies. Representatives of the Probation and Parole District offices in Greater Kansas
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City are part of the Kansas City Reentry Coalition. A Gaps Analysis comparing €x-
offender needs and the available resources in Greater Kansas City has been conducted
under the auspices of Alex Holsinger, PhD, of the University of Missouri-Kansas City,
through funding from the Kansas City Health Care Foundation.

The staff of the Second Chance Foundation regularly conducts multiple meetings with
collaborating agencies including substantial collaboration with Missouri Probation and
Parole districts in Kansas City; presentations to various employer and trade groups
around the city including the Society of Human Resource Managers; employer breakfasts
to advocate for the hiring of ex-offenders; an Anti-discrimination Task Force to work
with the City of Kansas City, Missouri, Human Relations Department to explore
municipal legislation that might extend civil rights protections to those with a criminal
background and presentations at national and state conferences on reentry.

Major Barry C. Mayer (ret.) is Vice President of KCMCC and a former major in the
Kansas City, Missouri Police Department. He has over 40 years of experience in public
safety, and he has been community leader in Kansas City, Missouri for over 20 years. In
addition to a variety of other civic organizations, he has been co-chair of the local Kansas
City MRP Group and is President of the local Citizens Advisory Board organized to
support needs and concerns of local probation and parole officers. Lora McDonald, BSW
and Program Coordinator, has more than 14 years of social service experience that
includes an internship at the Booneville Correctional Center working with the ex-
offender population, She also coordinates the Kansas City Reentry Coalition.




IV. Second Chance Risk Reduction Center Overview

Why a Kansas City Risk Reduction Center for High Risk Offenders?

Each year, about 3,000 adult felons return to Jackson, Cass, Clay and Platte Counties of
the Kansas City area after completing prison sentences in Missouri’s Division of Adult
Institutions. Upon release many have little or no money, no place to live, no job or
ability to achieve sustained employment and no social supports. In addition, many
continue to cling to the same lifelong patterns of anti-social influences and thinking. The
result is that nearly half of those who are high risk/need return to prison within 3 years
after release with the first 6 months being the most critical time. Missouri Probation &
Parole Officers’ mission is public safety. They are supervising over 10,000 offenders in
the Kansas City area at any one time. They are charged with identifying and connecting
offenders with community resources that the offenders need in order to one day become
productive citizens and not public safety threats, especially those assessed to be “high
risk”. Through the Second Chance Risk Reduction/Resource Center we would now have
the opportunity to help make our communities safer by improving the chances of success
upon the offenders’ return home with needed services in support of the Probation &
Parole officer’s needs.

What is Second Chance?

Second Chance is a reentry program established in 2008 and it is administered by the
Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission. The Program is providing local reentry
research with the University of Missouri-Kansas City as its partner and has established a
Kansas City Reentry Coalition with membership from 100 agencies, organizations and
individual members interested in addressing ex-offender obstacles and barriers and in
providing a continuum of services. (Member Listing Attached) The SC Risk Reduction
Resource Center will strive to offer comprehensive programming to prepare and assist
individuals transitioning back into the community, especially those identified as “high
risk” of committing new offenses. The services are a part of a Crime Commission
initiative to establish research-based, effective re-entry models and practices in the
community in support of the Missouri Reentry Process (MRP). It is modeled after wide-
based research, recommendations by the United States Department of Justice, and Re-
Entry programs funded by the Kansas Department of Corrections.

The program works with many community partners; corrections, law enforcement,
businesses, job service/training agencies, neighborhoods, political representatives,
landlords, mental and medical health providers, substance abuse services, victim services,
ex-offenders, also faith and community based organizations, but the focus is on Offenders
who have been assessed to be the most likely to commit new criminal offenses.




Who are the individuals participating in the Second Chance Risk
Reduction/Resource Center?

Eligible participants are identified throughout the four county (Jackson, Clay, Platte, and
Cass) Kansas City Area by Mo Probation & Parole Officers working in 8 different field
offices that can then refer their respective clients to the Center. A special emphasis exists
for offenders assigned from Jackson County by Missouri Probation & Parole through
state funding agreements. Risk/needs assessments are completed by MO Probation &
Parole to identify high risk individuals. Program participants must meet the following
criteria;

» Be considered high risk for re-offending
> Be referred to the center by Missouri Probation & Parole

Research shows there are eight specific areas of criminogenic need that impacts the
likelihood of recidivism. Those are:

1. Anti-social attitudes, values and beliefs.

2. Pro-criminal associates and isolation from pro-social associates.

3. Anti-social Personality: Temperament and behavioral characteristics. (e.g.,
egocentrism, impulsivity, psychopathy, weak socialization, risk taking, poor self
regulation)

4. Negative family factors: neglect and abuse, substance abuse,
unstructured/undisciplined environment.

5. History of anti-social behavior: Criminal History, especially starting at an early
age and carried out in a variety of ways under a variety of circumstances.

6. Weak problem solving and social skills.

Lack of vocational and educational skills.
8. Substance Abusc.

~

How will the Second Chance Risk Reduction/Resource Center assist?
SERVICES:

Once selected and referred by Probation & Parole, participants are interviewed and
scheduled for programs suited to address their individual needs based on their respective
CMP (Case Management Plan) shared through meetings with Missouri Probation &
Parole Officer(s) who are assigned as liaisons to the center from their respective field
offices through agreements with Region II Administrator’s Office. The sessions are
facilitated by Second Chance program staff and partners from the Kansas City Reentry
Coalition members and/or volunteers.

Overall, the Second Chance Program is a crime prevention risk reduction strategy for the
community which focuses on high-risk individuals being supervised by Probation &
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Parole services. There are eight (8) evidenced based practices/principles that have been
identified by Missouri Probation & Parole’s E-Driven Supervision Process:
1. Assess
Who will likely respond to intervention?
What specific needs must be addressed to reduce re-offending?
How best to match the intervention with the traits of the client?
2. Enhance intrinsic motivation by getting participants treatment ready and
keeping them encouraged.
Target interventions based on risk, need, responsivity, dosage and intensity.
Match the client with the right intervention.
Increase positive reinforcement by using cognitive behavioral techniques for
clients at high risk of supervision failure.
Strengthen pro-social influences in the client’s life.
Measure relevant processes and practices, including training for those delivering
the services.
8. Use data to provide feedback on successes.

bl ol ol
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These practices/principles can equate to direct services identified by criminal justice
research and corrections professionals as evidence based and needed.

Services may include:

» Employment/Education Programs — GED/Diploma, vocational skills training,
Transitional jobs and job retention, resume writing, Job application assistance,
Work ethics, Job search assistance

> Family/Support — Mentoring, relationship building, family communication,
parenting, community resources, workshops and discussion between participants
and his/her family around issues they expect to face, and how they will handle the
challenges of re-entry.

» Cognitive Thinking - Cognitive Behavioral programs, Problem solving, Social
skills interventions, Victim Awareness Education, Financial Responsibility —
addresses identifying obligations and living within means as well as incorporating
new values into one’s lifestyle

» Connections to Resources — SC Reentry Coalition information & referral to
overcome obstacles and barriers of housing, transportation, identification issues,
substance abuse treatment, health and mental health, Reentry Planning, Relapse
prevention, Overcoming stigmas, Goal setting, Time management

> Substance Abuse Treatment- Recovery support groups; Access to Recovery
Assessments, AA/ NA; information, education and referral for the entire
household

Institutional Case Workers and Probation & Parole officers are responsible to identify
resources and develop a transition plan to help bridge the individual from institution to
the community i.e. obtaining drivers license/ID/Social Security paperwork, exploring
housing options and employment opportunities, locating faith-based or other social
supports, arranging for participation in support groups and/or other social service
agencies, etc. However, the SC Risk Reduction/Resource Center is being developed to
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perform as a one-stop center for these needs and for the connection to programs to reduce
the number of high-risk individuals being supervised on probation and/or parole from
recidivating.

FAMILY SUPPORT

In addition to education & employment, the development of pro-social relationships and
mentoring will be a priority of the Center, especially when it comes to family support.
We understand that those releasing from prison are most successful when they have the
support of positive family members and friends. Participants may identify positive family
supports and request re-entry staff contact and invite them to attend family workshops,
possibly meet with parole and re-entry staff to assist with release planning. Staff will be
available to keep those lines of communication open. Through our many community
partnerships, especially in the faith-based community, a mentoring program is being
developed to add this component for successful re-entry, as needed.

SUPPORT BEFORE RELEASE

A goal for Second Chance is that with the link to the community already in place,
individuals may have a better transition into the community based support groups,
educational opportunities, and other identified services. While the Center’s services will
be available to Probation & Parole high-risk offenders upon referral, it will also be in a
position to develop programs with Transitional Housing Units of the Department of
Corrections prior to the release of potential high risk offenders, thus expediting and
facilitating the Missouri reentry process into a crime prevention strategy.

RISK REDUCTION/RESOURCE CENTER FACILITY

The Crime Commission is located on ATA bus lines at 3100 Broadway, Suite 226,
Kansas City, Missouri adjacent to the Metropolitan Community College (MCC) Penn
Valley Campus. The Second Chance Program also is a tenant of MCC at their Pioneer
Campus at 18" and Prospect Avenue with the availability of unused classrooms and
scheduled use of the Pioneer Auditorium for events, meetings and ceremonies. The first
risk reduction center has been established utilizing these offices at the MCC campus as
on August 1, 2010 with the availability of funding from the Missouri Department of
Corrections for an employment assistance program, housing assistance program and a
resources program. The Pioneer Campus auditorium is also utilized for monthly
meetings of the Kansas City Reentry Coalition that now has 100 member organizations,
agencies and individuals.

At Penn Tower at 3100 Broadway, there is 3,000 Square Feet of space (Suite 201)
immediately adjacent to the Crime Commission’s offices at 3100 Broadway (Suite 226).
This space could be utilized for the center and features a large room for group sessions
and meetings, another large space for a computer lab and meetings, small staff break
roonmv/kitchen and 8 individual offices for Center staff needs. A common wall could be
opened up to the Crime Commission offices providing access to a host of additional
amenities such as copy machines, fax machines, postage machines, office supplies, etc.,

g




as well as, direct access to Crime Commission management, financial officer assistance
and intake/reception area. In addition, the close proximity would provide cost savings to
the Center as existing telephone/internet lines could be easily connected to the new space
which would also provide access to the Metropolitan Community Service Program’s
existing new caseworker/client database.

DISCUSSION

The Second Chance (SC) Risk Reduction/Resource Center is a cost-effective,
community-based program for offenders initially resistant to treatment or change and
identified as high risk to re-offend, abscond or be revoked. Since the Center’s services
are being provided in support of Missouri Probation & Parole needs, Second Chance will
work in partnership with Regional Administrators and District Administrators through the
Missouri Reentry Process (MRP) to identify specific services offered. Programs will be
highly structured and developed for certain offender populations, such as high risk
offenders or technical violators. In these services SC will use practices shown in
corrections research to reduce offender recidivism including behavior change treatment if
requested by Missouri Probation & Parole.

The number of participants at the Center referred by Missouri Probation & Parole is
monitored by Second Chance and P&P administrators, but if it could prevent 400 high
risk offenders per year from returning in that first year to incarceration, the tax payer cost
savings would be in the millions of dollars.

The Second Chance Reentry Coalition is comprised of over 100 member organizations,
agencies and individuals who will be invited to make their experience, respective
programs and direct services available at the center and help the Kansas City
Metropolitan Crime Commission’s Second Chance Program implement a public safety
risk reduction strategy for the Kansas City metropolitan area.

Below is a description of the proposed SC Reentry Center’s space at Penn Tower,
3100 Broadway and functions of each room:

Intake/Check-In

The intake/check-in area includes space where staff check-in participants; administer in-
take processes, and a waiting area for meetings with SC Specialists. Because security is
an important issue, staff escort participants in secure areas at all times. Depending on
which phase a participant is in, they may report several days per week to the program.

Interview Rooms

SC maintains offices for staff to meet with participants and complete the intake process.
Participants complete essential intake details to establish a baseline measurements, etc.
The Specialist also schedules an orientation and an assessment as needed for the
participant. All information is entered into SC’s database system and respective written
client files which are accessible to the Probation/ Parole officer as requested.
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Program Director Office
The SC Program Director is directly responsible for the quality of service at the center.

This person handles participant relations and staffing. The Director is supported by the
infrastructure of the Crime Commission, including direct management/supervision from
the Vice-President of KCMCC programs, advisory board assistance, human resources,
training, finance matters, planning, evaluating and contract management.

Liaison Office

SC maintains an office available for use by Missouri Probation & Parole agency liaison
personnel. For example, Supervising Probation and Parole officers can meet with SC
personnel or participants in a convenient, efficient manner and directly observe and/or
participate in center operations.

Specialists Offices

Specialists maintain and update the participant’s history, educational and employment
status, and recovery goals in SC’s case management database system and hard written file
system. The secure Citrix and password protected database can be accessed and viewed
by Missouri Probation and Parole staff, if needed. Specialists also assist participants in
acquiring identification documents necessary for reintegration into the community. The
staff will assess a participant’s ability to meet basic needs such as food, shelter, and
clothing and makes referrals to community resources including employment, housing,
mental health treatment agencies and more.

A comerstone of Second Chance will be the staff’s willingness to confront negative
thinking, encounter language that denies accountability and to help the participant
navigate through the development of new values systems that will help him or her
reintegrate and maintain their freedom. The staff will use a direct, non-judgmental
approach consistent with the cognitive thinking curriculum known to be effective with
this population. SC personnel will adhere to Missouri Probation & Parole policies &
procedures related to conduct when working with clients/participants.

Aftercare planning is a key component to SC’s program model because it addresses
critical needs as participant’s transition to independent living. These services include
pro-social family and community support, relapse prevention activities, pro-social
cognitive decision-making, education and employment assistance, and continued drug
and alcohol monitoring.

Overall, the Specialists will be collaborating with Probation & Parole staff to address

high risk needs with a goal to remove participants from the “high risk to re-offend”
category after future E-Driven assessments.
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Group Room
SC maintains a group room for classes. The room can be used for substance abuse

treatment and other group services. Participants can discuss homework assignments,
work through chemical dependency workbooks, discuss journal entries and work in
break-out groups. Participants will develop relapse prevention plans and be able to
identify triggers of past addictions.

SC groups would be cognitive behavioral in design and include cognitive skill building,
substance abuse, education, employment readiness, domestic violence prevention, anger
management and parenting and life skills. SC would use curriculum specifically
developed for these group classes in collaboration with Probation & Parole.

The room can also be utilized for mix use, such as family functions or community
connections program, which link participants with local community-based resources from
the SC Reentry Coalition which is committed to successful reentry. SC invites
community resource groups to present on a variety of valuable topics. Through a
Community Connections program, SC becomes a hub of positive activity for participants
trying to get back on their feet and successfully reintegrate into community life.

Education and Employment Resource Lab
The Education and Employment Resource Lab helps participants investigate employment

and educational opportunities. The lab will include internet-accessible computer
workstations and numerous educational, employment and vocational software programs.
The lab will be available to participants at scheduled times to work on
educational/vocational training and as a resource for job searching.

Meeting and Staff Conference Room
The conference room provides space for internal planning, meeting and training. SC will

invest in keeping staff current on evidence-based practices and provide appropriate
training and certifications on motivational interviewing techniques, cognitive skill
building and more. The room may also be utilized for meetings with advisory board
members, on-going problem solving committees, and with justice agency and community
partners.

11
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Policies and Procedures

. Introduction
The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission (KCMCC) is in partnership

with the Missouri Department of Corrections and Missouri Probation and Parole

to provide the Second Chance Risk Reduction Center. KCMCC will apply for
funding from the State to provide for the Center and services. Funds have been

secured from the State to provide some services. Funding for other services will

be pursued annually through opportunities at the federal, local and foundation

levels. Within the KCMCC Second Chance Program’s mission is to advocate for
reentry. The KCMCC has a priority to ensure our federal, state and local
legislative bodies are well-informed on reentry needs and concerns in the interest
of public safety. Within this section, are current KCMCC personnel employment
polices and procedures, but also policies that will govern the Center’s operation as
understood as requirements for the State to provide contract funding for reentry
services to the KCMCC.

Missouri Department of Corrections Reentry Background Information:

1.

One of the most pressing and complex challenges facing state government in
Missouri and across the nation today is the reintegration of adult offenders
from prison back into society. Ninety-seven percent (97%) of all the men
and women committed to prison will someday be released from
incarceration.

During FY2009, 20,000 individuals were released from Missouri correctional
institutions, returning to live in communities across the state. It is in
everyone’s best interest that released offenders reenter society safely and live
as law-abiding, self-sufficient citizens.

During FY09, 18,042 individuals were committed to Missouri’s prison
system. Between forty to fifty percent (40% - 50%) of those prison
commitments were returning parole violators who failed to transition
successfully and were returned to confinement.

Missouri has set the following as goals regarding the reentry of offenders into
the communities:

1) smarter transition practices

2) increase public safety;

3) strengthen families;

4) stabilize neighborhoods;

5) reduce new victimization;

6) released offenders to become contributing citizens; and
7) maximize resources.
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dAdditional information and history about the Department of Corrections and
Missouri’s Offender Reentry Program can be found on the internet at:
www.doc.mo.gov, [Popular Links: Missouri's Reentry Process/Restorative
Justice].

2. The Department of Corrections believes the methods of assisting the
offender in reintegration into the community, developing partnerships with
organizations that aids the offender in an array of assessed problem areas, and
actively participating in working with the Department of Corrections are
important aspects of successful management of offenders. The Department of
Corrections also believes that the successful management of offenders is best
achieved when community based resources are matched to meet offenders' needs.
While the Department recognizes that resources may be limited, it is the desire of
the department that community partnerships be developed for utilization in
existing community services.

3. Release and Reentry process — While in the institution offenders are
intensely prepared for release in areas such as employment opportunities, life
skills, substance abuse treatment, and by establishing links to housing
opportunities and community support networks. A Case Management Plan
(CMP) is developed for each offender to set goals, objectives and action plans to
prepare the offender for release. The Case Management Plan (CMP) is created by
the case management team consisting of any community partner, family, state
agency staff that has involvement in the offenders’ success, and the offender and
is regularly reviewed during the offender’s incarceration. At the time of release
from the institution, the Probation and Parole officer has access through the
Department Offender Management System to continue to build upon the
offender’s Case Management Plan (CMP). As a result of the review of the Case
Management Plan (CMP) and the identification of any other risk or need factors
by the Probation and Parole officer an offender may be determined to have needs
for services.

. General Requirements that Second Chance Program meets to qualify for
State funding

1. The Second Chance Risk Reduction Center (hereinafter referred to as the
“Center”) provides and administers services in accordance with the provisions and
requirements stated herein for the offender re-entry program for the Missouri
Department of Corrections (hereinafter referred to as the “state agency™) to assist
targeted offenders (hereinafter referred to as “offenders™) with successful
reintegration into the community upon release to community supervision.

2. The Center shall provide and administer services in the portion of Kansas

City that is located in Jackson County, MO (hereinafter referred to as Kansas
City), on an as needed, if needed basis, at the direction of and to the sole
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satisfaction of the state agency. The state agency shall be the final judge of the
quality of the contractor’s performance pursuant to the contract.

C. Implementation Period Requirements the Center meets for State Funding

1. The Center completed the following implementation requirements in order
to begin receiving referrals and providing and administering services for referred
offenders pursuant to contracts by no later than thirty (30} calendar days after the
effective date of the contract:

2. In collaboration with the state agency, the Center developed and
continually updates, as needed, written policy and procedure manual for the
administration of the re-entry services. The policies and procedures are
consistent with the state agency’s policies and procedures and the provisions and
requirements stated herein and are submitted for approval by the state agency
prior to issuance.

3. The Center’s policies and procedures include instructions for the
offenders, the supervising Probation and Parole officer, Center’s personnel,
subcontractors and community resource providers relating to the provision of
services.

4. The Centers’s policies and procedures shall be that any disputes arising
from conflicts with state agency policy or other service provision shall be
resolved through collaboration by the contractor, and the state agency.

5. The Center’s policies and procedures include a goal and plan to meet the
objective of a diversified staff.

6. The policy and procedures for Center will be that any services/activities
that did not receive prior authorization from the state agency shall not be
paid nor reimbursed.

7. The Center has developed and implemented a network of service providers
to provide needed services to assist offenders and family
members/significant others in successful re-entry. The Center will
sometimes utilize the existing community partners as part of the network
and utilizes those service providers/community partners/programs
available without cost to the extent possible. Because there may be
services/activities required that would not be adequately addressed
through the existing community partners, the Center includes additional
service providers in the Center’s network.

8. The state agency estimates, but in no way guarantees that
services/activitics needed for successful re-entry may include but are not
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necessarily limited to those services/activities listed below and the Center
agrees.

Housing/Utilities Personal Identification
Employment Services/Activities o State ID
Transportation 0 Driver’s License
Food Assistance 0 Social Security Card
Clothing 0 Birth Certificate
Substance Abuse Treatment Financial Assistance

0 Inpatient 0 Savings Account

o Outpatient 0 Checking Account

o Aftercare 0 Financial Management
Mental Health Treatment 0 Child Support

o Outpatient a Supplemental Security

Income/SSDI

o Residential Education Services

o Medication Services a GED/ABE
Family Services o Vocational Training

a Child Care a College

o Parenting Support O Vocational Rehabilitation

o Family Counseling Health Services

a Domestic Violence o Dental

Counseling

a Anger Management a Medical
Other Approved Services: o Eye

Q Mentor Services
9. It will be the Center’s policy to establish a written agreement with each

10.

11.

12.

service provider who has agreed to be included in the contractor’s
network. The written agreement must outline the services to be provided,
the payment (if any) for such services, and any performance incentives.

1t will be the Center’s policy to develop community resources for services
and subcontracting throughout effective periods of State contracting.

It will be the policy of the Center to keep all written agreements on file
and make copies of such agreements available to the state agency upon
request. *

It will be the policy of the Center to maintain its partnership with local law
enforcement including the Kansas City Missouri Police Department. The
current partnership will create a policy of good communication, sharing of
information and participation by law enforcement as needed. The policy
will also include the availability of special assignments by KCPD to the
Center to implement joint projects that will always enhance the
relationship between the Center, the state agency, and all local law
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13.

enforcement for a better understanding in meeting the needs of the
offender in the community.

Training — It will be the policy of the Center to cooperate with the state
agency regarding training efforts as mutually agreed upon by the Center
and the state agency. The Center understands and agrees that expenses
incurred on behalf of the Center’s employed or contracted personnel,
including but not necessarily limited to meals, mileage, lodging and
displacement, shall be the Center’s responsibility for payment. The Center
shall not be obligated nor be allowed to pay any expenses incurred by the
state agency in such instances.

D. Re-entry Requirements of the Center:

1. Identification of Offenders — It is the policy of the Center to agree and
understand that the state agency will identify and refer to the Center those
offenders targeted for re-entry services. The Center shall accept all
referrals of targeted offenders made by the state agency.

2. Offenders targeted for re-entry services shall be those offenders that
have been identified by the offender’s probation and parole officer as
having high-risk at the time of referral for revocation of parole/probation
or having significant barriers to successful reintegration:
a. Identification of high risk for revocation will be determined by
the probation and parole officer taking in to consideration the
approved assessment tool, interviews with the offender and the
offender’s significant others, social history, employment history,
medical/mental health history, etc.

b.In order to participate, male and female offenders must meet the
following minimum criteria:

have a poor criminal history;
have a poor work history;
have an established residence or family residing in the Kansas City
area; and
* have a lack of vocational and educational skills.

¢.Targeted offenders may include offenders who have been
determined by the state agency to have medical or physical
barriers.

3. It will be the policy of the state agency and the Center for the state
agency to provide the Center with a referral notice that will
identify the offender’s assets and liabilities with specific areas to
be addressed by the Center.
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4.

It will be the policy of the Center to understand and agree that the state
agency retains the sole right to refer and/or terminate any offender it
deems necessary.

It will be the policy of the Center to within five (5) calendar days of
receipt of a referral from the state agency, the Center will make all
arrangements for, hold, and participate in a case management team
meeting with the offender and the case management team members at
a mutually agreed to location. (The case management team is
described in the background information of this document.) The
following activities will be completed during the case management
team meeting;

a. Identification of barriers to a successful
transition that are applicable to the offender;

b. The update, completion, and approval of the
Case Management Plan (CMP) and finalization
of such plan by the state agency in the state
agency’s offender management system; and

¢. The signature of the Center Director, the
offender, and the state agency on the approved
Case Management Plan (CMP) and the date.

It will be the policy of the Center to prior to provision of any services
for the offender, the Center must ensure that a state agency approved
Release of Information form is signed by the offender. This form will
provide for release of confidential information concerning the offender
to the state agency, the Center, and any service provider. If this form
has not been signed, the Center must notify the state agency so the
state agency will obtain the required signature on the Release of
Information form.

It will be the policy of the Center to begin administering
services/activities as authorized by the state agency in the Case
Management Plan {CMP) by directly providing those services required
of the Center and by arranging for and administering the provision of
the services/activities from service providers that are otherwise
required and authorized in the Case Management Plan (CMP). It will
further be policy that the Center shall understand and agree that the
Center must receive advance written approval from the state agency to
provide services beyond 180 days after the offender’s initial job
placement or determination of unemployability.

a. It will be policy for the Center to work with and communicate
with the offender on an ongoing basis to make every effort to
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ensure the offender’s success with re-entry into the community.
It will further be policy that at a minimum, the Center must
have contact with the offender every other week.

b. It will be policy of the Center through ongoing interaction, that
the Center shall:

1). assist offenders in eliminating barriers to compliance,

2). engage and arrange for the offender to in participate
services/activities, and

3). determine whether the offender is complying with the
required services/activities.

8. It will be the policy of the Center that by no later than 48 hours after
the Center identifies problems with the offender’s compliance with the
services/activities included in the Case Management Plan (CMP), the
Center shall notify the offender’s case management team and shall
schedule and hold case management team meeting with the offender as
soon as possible. It will further be the policy of the Center that at the
meeting, the offender and the case management team shall determine
the reason(s) for the offender’s problems or failure to comply with the
agreed upon plan and determine action(s) necessary to reengage the
offender in the required services/activities.

a. Modifications to the Case Management Plan (CMP) — Through
the Center’s ongoing interaction with the offender and the state
agency, it will be the policy of the Center that the Center shall
continuously analyze the progress of the offender and the
services/activities being performed and shall determine if
additional services/activities that were not identified in the
Case Management Plan (CMP) are necessary or if changes to
the Case Management Plan (CMP) need to be made to ensure
the offender’s success with re-entry. If the contractor and the
state agency determine that modifications are necessary, the
following shall occur per the Center’s policy:

1). The Center must revise the Case Management Plan (CMP)
as agreed between the contractor and the state agency. The
Center shall include the same information as required in the
original plan and shall obtain the approval of the state
agency of the plan.

2). As soon as possible after approval of all revistons to the
Case Management Plan (CMP), the Center shall schedule a
case management team meeting with the offender and shall
obtain the signature and date of the Center, the offender,
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9.

and the state agency on the revised Case Management Plan
(CMP).

i. The contractor shall coordinate services/activities with
the state agency.

1t will be the policy of the Center to be available to communicate with
the state agency as determined necessary by the state agency.

10. It will be the policy of the Center and as required by the state agency,

11

that the Center shall provide the state agency with information
concerning the offender’s attendance at required services/activities.

The Center understands that the offenders may be required to
participate in various treatment programs in addition to
services/activities administered by the Center to comply with the terms
and conditions of their community supervision. Therefore, it will be
the policy of the Center to make the Center’s services available to the
offender, at varying times, to accommodate the needs of the offender.

Specific Service/Activity Policies for Employment, Housing and
Mentoring - If any of the following services/activities are included in
the offender’s Case Management Plan (CMP), the Center’s policy
shall be to provide/comply with the following for each such
service/activity:

1.

Employment Activities - The Center shall either provide or
arrange for employment activities for the offender as outlined in
the Case Management Plan (CMP). The Center shall ensure that
every possible strategy is utilized to prepare an offender for
employment and to assist the offender in maintaining employment.
Unless otherwise approved by the state agency on a case by case
basis for specific offenders, the Center should make sure that
through the employment activities provided for offenders, all
available steps arc taken to ensure that one hundred percent
(100%) of all referred offenders are gainfully employed.

Job Readiness/Job Search Activities: The Center shall prepare the
offender for employment and shall maximize the employability of
the offender by ensuring that the offender is familiar with
workplace expectations and behaviors, and holds the attitudes
necessary for success in the workplace. The Center shall assist the
offender in making knowledgeable career decisions relative to their
interests, desires, and abilities outlined at the time of assessment.

a. Job readiness activities shall include education/instruction on
work ethics, how to complete job applications, creating
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resumes, interviewing skills, workplace etiquette, job retention
skills, financial management, and/or basic life skills.

b. Job search activities shall include job counseling on a regularly
scheduled basis, effective job acquisition techniques, and
monitoring of offender success in attaining and retaining
employment.

Job Development and Placement: The Center shall work with
employers in the community in order to match the skills of
offenders to the needs of the employer.

a. The Center must provide job development and placement
services that will provide offenders with full-time permanent
employment. For purposes of this document, unless otherwise
approved by the state agency “full-time permanent employment”
shall be defined as employment of at least thirty-five (35) hours
per week at a rate of no less than $9.00 per hour, in a job that is
expected to continue on an ongoing basis without interruption.

1). the state agency must approve all employers prior to
placement of any offender in their employ.
2). the Center shall closely monitor the assignment of an

offender to a job by a temporary employment agency in
order to ensure compliance with the offender’s employment
goals as identified in the Case Management Plan (CMP)
and the provisions of the contract.

Job Retention: The Center shall include intensive employment
services including working with both the offender and the
employer to promote job retention.

a.) The Center shall provide job retention services that include
strong emphasis for continuous full-time employment of
the offender for at least a six month period of time (180
days) following initial job placement.

b.) At a minimum, the Center shall conduct weekly visits,
telephone calls, written surveys, or other form of
correspondence with the offender’s employer and the
offender during the first thirty (30) calendar days of
employment in order to assist in resolving any issues that
could result in termination. After the first thirty days, the
Center shall communicate with the employer and the
offender at least monthly to discuss job retention issues that
may arise. The Center shall maintain a record of each
follow-up contact and all correspondence for each offender.
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c.) The Center shall verify employment such as obtaining
copies of paycheck stubs, quarterly tax reports, employee
earnings statements, etc. from the employer.

5. Housing Assistance Requirements - The Center shall provide the
offender with housing assistance services as outlined in the Case
Management Plan (CMP) and in accordance with the following. The
Center shall ensure that every possible strategy is utilized on behalf of
the offender to locate suitable housing.

a.

All housing must comply with local standards, health and housing
codes and be approved by the state agency for use prior to
placement of any offenders.

The housing assistance services must make every attempt to match
offenders to appropriate housing through interaction with landlords
and realtors in the community.

6. Mentoring Requirements - The Center shall make available
mentoring services on an as needed if needed basis as outlined in the
Case Management Plan (CMP).

a.

The mentor must not perform a supervisory role, but rather shall be
a partner to the offender in the process of re-entry.

b. The relationship between the mentor and offender shall be

professional in nature, encourage growth, help with career
development and assist with productive lifestyle.
1.) The mentor shall offer support and guidance, share wisdom
and serve as a coach and role model for the offender.
2.) The mentor shall work with the offender to develop and
achieve goals.
3.) The mentor shall assist the offender with locating
appropriate resources that will help to fulfill the designated
needs of the offender.

The mentor shall maintain contact with and remain on call to assist
the offender as needed. Such contact with the offender may
include, but not necessarily be limited to phone calls, visits, and/or
help with programming.

1.) Accessibility Services - The Center shall provide services
that are accessible to all offenders and those with special
needs, including but not limited to: sight impairment,
hearing and speech impairment, language barriers, physical
barriers and other limitations. The state agency shall
determine whether an offender requires
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Interpretive/Translation services due to an offender’s
physical impairment or language barrier. The state agency
will obtain such services and assume the associated
financial responsibility, if any.

2.) The Center shall provide services that are accessible to persons
of all faiths and to persons who are atheist, agnostic, or
undecided.

F. Center Policy for Reporting and Record Keeping

1.

Offender Records — At the time an offender is referred to the Center by
the state agency, the Center will maintain both a hard copy paper file and
an electronic file record as described below for each offender. The
Center’s hard copy paper file shall, at a minimum contain:

(1) the state agency’s referral notice for the offender,

(2) the signed Case Management Plan (CMP);

(3) the release of information form;

{4) documentation of each contact between the Center and the offender;
and

(5) any paper document received in regard to the offender, including the
written verification of full-time employment from the employer.

All of the documentation included in the paragraphs below regarding
reporting to the state agency shall be maintained in the electronic file
record to enable reporting to the state agency via electronic means, such as
email. The Center shall use Microsoft office products for the electronic
file record and will ensure that the records are compatible with and can be
emailed to the state agency, upon request.

Center contact documentation - After each contact with the offender, the
Center shall update both the hard copy file and the electronic file records
with information documenting the offender’s participation in required
services/activities, and the number of hours participating in each.

. Monthly Project Report - The Center shall submit a project report to the

state agency by the first of each month that details the progress of the
Center. The Center’s monthly project report must identify each offender
in alphabetical order and provide, at a minimum, the following
information about each offender and the offender’s progress with re-entry.
The Center must use an electronic format that is compatible with the state
agency’s computer system (Microsoft Products). The state agency shall
have the right to require changes, additions, deletions to the Center’s
information, in order to ensure documentation of all information required
by the state agency is included.




1.

2).
3).
4).
5).
6).
7).
8).
9).
10).
11).

12.)

Name of offender and registration number assigned to the offender
by the state agency (the Center will be provided this number at the
time the offender is referred to the Center for services);

Date of the offender was referred to the Center;

Date the offender signed the Case Management Plan (CMP),

Date the offender was released to the community;

Date of termination or discharge from the Center’s re-entry service
program (if applicable);

Indication as to whether the offender is engaged in full-time
employment;

Date the offender was placed in full-time permanent employment;
Number of days of unemployment calculated from the date the
offender was referred to the Center to the date the offender
obtained full-time permanent employment;

Length of time the offender has been in full-time permanent
employment;

Monthly earnings report, indicating the amount of money that the
offender eamns;

Required and actual number of hours the offender was engaged in
contracted services/activities for the invoice month; and

Summary for re-entry services/activities identified in the
offender’s Case Management Plan (CMP).

3. Monthly Detailed Billing Report — By the 10" day of the month following
service, it will be the policy of the Center for State contracts to submit a
detailed billing report to the state agency along with the monthly invoice that
identifies all offenders, in alphabetical order and includes a minimum of the
following information about each offender:

a. Name of offender and registration number assigned to the offender by the
state agency;
b. Date services/activities began;
c. Date of termination or discharge from the Center’s re-entry service
program (if applicable); and
c. Actual copies of receipts/invoices for approved services/activities for
which payment by the Center was made on behalf of the offender.

4. The Center shall notify the state agency officer within forty-eight hours (48)
in the event of any of the following:

Capeop

Broken appointments;

Change in the Case Management Plan (CMP);

Need for additional services/activities;

Change in the offender’s family and/or living situation;

Incidents involving the offender where threats, assaults, purported crimes,

or violations of parole have occurred; and
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G.

5.

f. Confirmed or suspected drug/alcohol use/abuse.

It shall be the policy of the Center to notify the state agency when an offender
becomes employed - Verification of Employment:

a. By no later than five (5) calendar days after an offender becomes

employed on a full-time basis, the Center shall obtain the following
information from the employer and shall submit the information to the
state agency:

1). The name, address, and phone number of the employer;
2). Offender’s start date with the employer;

3). Current status of employment;

4). Current rate of pay;

5). Current number of hours employed per week;

6). Any benefits provided to the offender by the employer; and
7. Required withholdings for state and federal taxes and FICA.

It shall be the policy of the Center that as soon as possible after providing
the above information, but no later than thirty (30) calendar days, the
Center will obtain verification of full-time employment from the employer
and must submit the verification to the state agency. The written
verification from the employer should consist of a paycheck stub with
unique identification information (e.g. employee name, social security
number, employer identification number, etc.)

Center and Service Provider Personnel Policies

1.

It will be the policy of the Center to provide adequate personnel to receive
and process offender referrals on a daily basis and to be available for
administering services/activities for newly referred and existing offenders
at any time deemed necessary, any day of the week.

It will be the policy of the Center to agree and understand that any
personnel who will be assigned to interact with an offender must submit to
and pass a background investigation conducted by the state agency in
order to be eligible to provide or administer services pursuant to the
contract. Such investigation shall be equivalent to investigations required
of all personnel employed by the state agency.

It will be the policy of the Center to understand and agree that neither the
Center, nor any personnel who will be assigned to interact with an
offender shall have prior or be under active federal or state felony or
misdemeanor supervision or unless prior written approval is obtained from
the state agency.
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. The Center will provide all necessary training and education for the Center’s
personnel in order for the personnel to effectively perform the requirements of
State contracts.

. It will be the policy of the Center to comply with applicable state licensure
regulations and requirements regarding performance of services pursuant to
all applicable Revised Missouri Statutes that address the provisions of
professional services in the State of Missouri. Any and all licensure held by
the Center’s personnel must be current.

. It will be the policy of the Center to establish a goal for the employment of a
diversified staff, which reflects the ethnicity, and cultural diversity of the
offenders.

. Substitution of Personnel — It will be the policy of the Center to agree and
understand that the State of Missouri's agreement to the contract is predicated
in part on the utilization of the specific key individual(s) and/or personnel
qualifications identified in State contract proposals.

Therefore, the Center agrees that no substitution of such specific key
individual(s) and/or personnel qualifications shall be made without the prior
written approval of the state agency.

The Center further agrees that any substitution made pursuant to this
paragraph must be equal or better than originally proposed and that the state
agency's approval of a substitution shall not be construed as an acceptance of
the substitution's performance potential.

State of Missouri agrees that an approval of a substitution will not be
unreasonably withheld.

In the event the state agency is dissatisfied with any of the Center’s personnel,
the Center’s policy will be to resolve the problem to the state agency’s sole
satisfaction.  If circumstances exist which prevent resolution to the
satisfaction of the state agency, the Center’s policy will be to replace the
person with appropriate part-time or overtime personnel until a full-time
replacement meeting the state agency’s approval is obtained.

It will be the Center’s policy not to bind any of the Center’s personnel to an
agreement which would inhibit, impede, prohibit, restrain, or in any manner
restrict the Center’s personnel in or from accepting employment with other
providers similarly situated.

It will be the Center’s policy to understand and agree that no state agency
employee shall be compensated by the Center for services provided related to
performance of the contract while concurrently employed by the state agency.

25




10.

1.

12.

13.

It is further the Center’s policy that the Center, Center’s personnel, and others
acting under the Center’s control, shall at all times observe and comply with
all applicable state statutes, state agency rules, regulations, guidelines, internal
management policy and procedures. Further, the Center and the Center’s
personnel shall assist the state agency in enforcing rules by reporting
violations to the state agency or its designee. Furthermore, the Center shall
not obstruct the state agency nor any of its designated officials from
performing their duties in response to court/parole board orders.

In addition, it shall be the policy of the Center tp comply with the state agency
employee conduct policy, which is included as a section of this policy and
procedure manual,

It is the policy of the Center to supervise its own personnel. The Center
recognizes that is a unique nature of working with offenders, including safety
and security issues, that requires the state agency to carefully monitor the
Center’s personnel. Any concems a state agency staff person has regarding
the Center’s personnel, job performance, or the conditions of employment
shall be reported through the chain of command to the chief administrative
officer/designee of the state agency in order that proper communications can
occur with the Center

The Center shall be responsible for the conditions of employment, work
environment, and employee rights of the Center’s personnel. KCMCC
Personnel policies and procedures are a section of this manual. The Center
will ensure that the Center’s personnel work the correct hours, receive correct
pay, have the tools they need to do their work, receive additional job training
as needed, and have adequate supervision. Adequate supervision includes
access to supervisory personnel for personnel problems including but not
limited to complaints about working conditions, harassment, discrimination or
any other matters. It will be the policy of the Center to provide written
communications to the state agency regarding any action requested of the state
agency based on compliant from the Center’s personnel.

Policy on Authorized Personnel:

a. The Center shall only utilize personnel authorized to work in the
United States in accordance with applicable federal and state laws.
This includes but is not limited to the Illegal Immigration Reform and
Immigrant Responsibility Act (IIRIRA) and INA Section 274A.

b. The Center understands that if as a contractor of the state that it is
found to be in violation of this requirement or the applicable state,
federal and local laws and regulations, and if the State of Missouri has
reasonable cause to believe that the Center has knowingly employed
individuals who are not eligible to work in the United States, the state
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shall have the right to cancel the contract immediately without penalty
or recourse and suspend or debar the Center from doing business with
the state. The state may also withhold up to twenty-five percent of the
total amount due to the contractor.

14. It will be the Center’s policy to agree to fully cooperate with any audit or
investigation from federal, state, or local law enforcement agencies.

Meeting and Other Policies as a Contractor for the State

1. Coordination - The Center as a contractor for the State will have a policy
to fully coordinate all contract activities with those activities of the state agency.
As the work of the Center progresses, advice and information on matters covered
by the contract shall be made available by the Center to the state agency or the
Division of Purchasing and Materials Management throughout the effective
period of the contract.

At the request of the state agency, the Center shall attend periodic state agency
meetings to discuss compliance or pertinent information relating to the contract.
These meetings may be held regionally or in Jefferson City, depending on the
nature of the agenda. Expenses incurred by the Center to attend such meetings
shall be the responsibility of the Center. At the discretion of the state agency,
these meetings may be held via a telephone conference call.

The state agency will meet on at least a quarterly basis with the Center in the
Kansas City / Jackson County area to discuss pertinent program/state agency
issues.

2. Unless specified elsewhere herein, the Center shall be responsible for
ensuring that all material, labor, facilities/meeting space, equipment, utilities,
supplies, etc., necessary to perform or ensure performance of the requirements of
the contract are provided.

The state agency shall have the right, at any time, to review and approve all
written communications and materials developed and used by the Center as a
State contractor to communicate with offenders. It will be the policy of the
Center not to use the name, logo or other identifying marks of the State of
Missouri or the state agency on any materials produced or issued, without the
prior written approval of the state agency. The Center shall coordinate and submit
all materials to the state agency for approval.

3. The Center understands as a State contractor that the state agency shall
furnish all legal and accounting services as may be necessary for the state agency
to satisfy its contractual responsibilities. The state agency shall not assume, nor
shall it be liable for, legal or accounting counseling services as may be necessary
for the contractor to satisfy its contractual obligations. Without exception to the
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foregoing, the state agency is not obligated to provide legal or accounting
counseling services to the Center in connection with any litigation or threatened
litigation against the contractor arising out of the Center as a contractor’s
performance.

4. The KCMCC policy will be to maintain financial and accounting records and
evidence pertaining to the contract in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and other procedures specified by the state agency.
These records must be made available at all reasonable times to the state
agency and/or its designees and the Missouri state auditor during the contract
period and any renewal period, and for five (5) years from the date of final
payment on the contract or contract renewal period.

5. The KCMCC and its Center shall permit governmental auditors and
authorized representatives of the State of Missouri to have access for the
purpose of audit or examination of any of the books, documents, papers, and
records of the Center/contractor's recording receipts and disbursements of any
of the funds made available to the Center under the contract at any reasonable
time. The Center further agrees that any audit exception noted by
governmental auditors shall not be paid by the state agency and shall be the
sole responsibility of the contractor, provided that it may contest any such
exception by any legal procedure it deems appropriate and that the state
agency will pay the Center all amounts which may ultimately be held entitled
to receive as a result of any such legal action.

Center Policy on Invoicing and Payment as a State Contractor

1. Prior to any payments becoming due under the contract, the KCMCC
understands it must return a completed state Vendor Input/ACH-EFT Application,
which is downloadable from the Vendor Services Portal at:
https://www.vendorservices.mo.gov/vendorservices/Portal/Default.aspx. The
KCMCC understands and agrees that the State of Missouri reserves the right to
make contract payments through electronic funds transfer (EFT).

2. Invoicing - The KCMCC must submit itemized invoices by no later than
the tenth (10™) business day after the end of each monthly billing period on the
Center’s original descriptive business invoice form as specified below and must
use a unique invoice number with each invoice submitted. The unique invoice
number will be listed on the State of Missouri’s EFT addendum record to enable
the KCMCC/Center to properly apply the state agency’s payment to the invoice
submitted. The contractor may obtain detailed information for payments issued
for the past 24 months from the State of Missouri’s central accounting system
{SAM II) on the Vendor Services Portal at:

https://www.vendorservices.mo.gov/vendorservices/Portal/Default.aspx

3. Invoices will be submitted to the state agency at the address specified by
the state agency.
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4. With each invoice, the KCMCC/Center must include the Monthly Detailed
Billing Report required previously.

5. Payment — After receipt and approval of the required reports and invoice, the
KCMCC shall be paid for each day at the firm fixed price per day per
offender as stated on the pricing page. However, the KCMCC agrees and
understands that the state agency anticipates that total funding available for
the re-entry services described herein for the original 2010-2011 contract
period shall not exceed $178,000.00. Therefore, in no event shall the
contractor be paid more than the total amount of funding available.

6. In the event the KCMCC receives supplemental funding from either public or
private sources for the sole purpose of offsctting costs directly related to the
services specified herein, the KCMCC agrees and understands that the state
agency’s obligation shall be reduced in the amount of such supplemental
funding.

7. KCMCC understands that as a State contractor that other than the payments
specified above, no other payments or reimbursements shall be made to the
contractor for any reason whatsoever.

8. 2010-2011 Contract Period - The original contract period shall be as stated
on page 1 of the Request for Proposal (RFP) for the $178,000. The contract
shall not bind, nor purport to bind, the state for any contractual commitment
in excess of the original contract period. The Division of Purchasing and
Materials Management shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the
contract for three (3) additional one-year periods, or any portion thereof. In
the event the Division of Purchasing and Materials Management exercises
such right, all terms and conditions, requirements and specifications of the
contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period, pursuant
to applicable option clauses of this document.

9. It shall be the policy of the KCMCC and its Center to retain all books,
records, and other documents relevant to the contract for a period of five (5)
years after final payment or the completion of an audit. If any litigation,
claim, negotiation, audit or other actions involving the records has been
started before the expiration of the five (5) year period, the records shall be
retained until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise
from it, or until the end of the regular five (5) year period, whichever is later.
The contractor shall allow authorized representatives of the state agency,
other State of Missouri agencies and the federal government to inspect these
records upon request.

10. It shall be the policy of KCMCC as the State’s contractor to hold the State of

Missouri, including its agencies, employees, and assignees, harmless for any
negligent act or omission committed by any subcontractor or other person
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11.

12.

employed by or under the supervision of the KCMCC under the terms of the
contract.

It shall be the KCMCC policy that the Center shall not be responsible for any
injury or damage occurring as a result of any negligent act or omission
committed by the State of Missouri, including its agencies, employees, and
assignees.

Insurance - The KCMCC/Center understands and agrees that the State of
Missouri cannot save and hold harmless and/or indemnify the KCMCC as
contractor or employees against any liability incurred or arising as a result of
any activity of KCMCC as the contractor or any activity of the Center's
employees related to the Center's performance under the contract. Therefore,
the KCMCC has acquired and maintains adequate liability insurance in the
form(s) and amount(s) sufficient ($2 million) to protect the State of Missouri,
its agencies, its employees, its clients, and the general public against any
such loss, damage and/or expense related to histher performance under the
contract. The insurance includes an endorsement that adds the State of
Missouri as an additional insured.

12. Confidentiality Policy:

a. It is the Center’s policy to agree and understand that all discussions with
the Center and all information gained by the Center as a result of the
Center’s performance under the contract shall be confidential and that no
reports, documentation, or material prepared as required by the contract
shall be released to the public without the prior written consent of the state
agency.

b. It is further the Center’s policy that if required by the state agency, the
Center and any required Center personnel will sign specific documents
regarding confidentiality, security, or other similar documents upon
request. Failure of the Center and any required personnel to sign such
documents shall be considered a breach of contract and subject to the
cancellation provisions of this document.

c. It is the Center’s policy that the Center shall maintain strict confidentiality
of all offender information or records supplied to it by the state agency or
that the Center establishes as a result of contract activities. The contents
of such records shall not be disclosed to anyone other than the state
agency and the offender unless such disclosure is required by law.

The Center assumes liability for all disclosures of confidential information

by the Center and/or the Center’s personnel/provider’s subcontractors and
employees.
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13,  Publicity — It is the Center’s policy that the Center shall not issue press
releases, participate in interviews with media, engage in any form of
public release of information, or release any publication regarding the
state agency or the Center’s duties pursuant to the a State contract for
services without the prior, written approval of the state agency. If a
publicity release is approved by the state agency, the release must
reference the contract number and the state agency. Any publications,
including audiovisual items produced with contract funds, shall give credit
to the contract and the state agency.

VL. Missouri Department of Corrections Policies

The Second Chance Program, like all Crime Commission programs, is designed
and implemented to support local law enforcement and justice agencies in their
missions to increase public safety for the greater Kansas City area. Second
Chance Program staff is committed to support and adhere to the vision, values and
conduct polices of the Department of Justice in the implementation of their
mission. A complete copy of the Department of Corrections Policies and
Procedures will be maintained at the Center, however, it will be the policy of the
Center for every staff to review and provide a signed agreement to abide by the
staff conduct policies, as follows:
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D2-11.10 Staff Conduct
May 23, 2009
George A. Lombardi, Department Director Effective Date
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1. PURPOSE: This procedure has been developed to provide staff
with a guideline of professionalism and appropriate conduct.
A. AUTHORITY: Sections 105.055, 217.040, Chapter 36, 1 CSR
20-3.070.2., and RSMo.
B. APPLICABILITY: All staff of the department.
II. DEFINITIONS:
A. Avoidable Contact: Any contact with an offender, offender‘s
significant other, an offender's family or an ex-offender that
is not authorized as a responsibility of the staff member's
position. Avoidable contact includes, but is not
limited to:
1. unautherized oral or written communication,
2. business or social interaction, and
3. other overly familiar act with an offender that includes,
but is not limited to,
. giving unauthorized gifts of any nature,
name calling,
teasing,
- horseplay,
. joking with offenders,
. carrying messages for offenders, or
. sharing personal information with offenders.
B. Chief Administrative Officer: The chief administrative
officer is the highest ranking individual at the work site,
as designated below. Exception: Staff at a work site
who do not report to the work site chief administrative
officer will be accountable to the assistant division

Qo L0
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directors/central office section heads who are in their chain
of command.
1. Director's CQffice:
a. Deputy Department Director
2. Department Sections in the Director's Office:
a. Deputy Department Director
b. Central Office Section Heads
3. Division of Probation and Parole:
Division Director
Chief State Supervisor
Deputy Division Director
Field Service Administrators
Superintendents
. Regiconal Administrators
. District Administrators
4. Division of Adult Institutions:
a. Division Director
b. Deputy Division Director
¢. Assistant to Division Director
d. Wardens
S. Division of Qffender Rehabilitative Services:
a. Division Director
b. Assistant Division Directors
c. Wardens
d. Central Office Section Heads
6. Division of Human Services:
a. Division Director
b. Central Office Section Heads
C. Ex-offender: An offender who has been released from all
supervision of any division of the department.
D. Family: For the purpose of this procedure, family shall
include:

0 HO O Y

a. spouse,
b. parents/step-parents and their spouses,
c. siblings and their spouses,

d. children/step-children and their spouses,

e. grandparents/step-grandparents and their spouses,
£. grandchildren/step-grandchildren,

g. aunt,

h. uncle,

i. niece,

3.

nephew, and
k. cousin.
E. Immediate Family: For the purpose of this procedure,
immediate family shall include:
1. spouse,
2. parents/step-parents and their spouses,
3. siblings/step-siblings and their spouses, and
4. children/step~children and their spouses.
F. Offender: aAny individual under the custody or supervision
of any division of the department.
G. Significant Other: A person who is in a romantic¢ relationship
with the offender such as a boyfriend, girlfriend or fiancé,
H. Staff: Any person who is:
1. an employee - employved by the department on a
classified or unclassified basis (permanent, temporary,
part-time, hourly, per diem} and are paid by the
Statewide Advantage for Missouri (SAM) Human Resources
payrell system;
2. contracted to perform services within a department
facility (i.e., medical services, mental health services,
education services, substance abuse services, etc.) and
has been issued a permanent department identification
card;
3. a volunteer in corrections;
4. a student intern;
5. issued a permanent department identification card
{i.e. information systems) and as outlined in D2-14.1
staff Identification; and
6. issued a special access card as outlined in D2-14.1
Staff Identification.
I. Working Days: Monday through Friday except holidays-
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PROCEDURES:
A, Professional Principles and Conduct: In corder to pursue
organizational excellence staff are expected to adhere to the
fellowing professional principles and conduct:

1. strive toward excellence in the day to day work
activities;
2. treat all persons respectfully, fairly, honestly and with
dignity;
3. perform duties responsibly;
4. empower and assist other staff to perform their jobs in a
responsible manner;
5. accept and show respect for the differences in people;
6. work as a team member;
7. make ethical decisions and act in an ethical manner;
8. hold themselves and all other staff accountable for their
actions;
9. abide by the laws;
10. be truthful in reports, interviews, during
investigations/inguiries and in other dealings with the
public and staff;
11. be familiar with and adhere to:
a. the respective job components and job
expectations established through the performance
appraisal system;
b. the pelicies and procedures relating to
job functions;
c. the Employee Handbook;
d. D2-11 Staff Standards, which details the code of
conduct for govermment service and the department
code of ethics;
e, D2-11.8 Staff Personal Appearance, which sets
standards for staff personal appearance;
12. to represent to the public the highest moral,
ethical and professional standards and must accept as a
condition of employment a code of perscnal conduct beyond
that of a staff member in the private sector or some other
public sector positions;
13. to create by attitude, dress, language and
general demeanor a working environment free from actual
or implied discrimination or harassment of any nature
relating to race, color, religion, creed, sex, national
origin, age or disability (or perceived disability);
14. report inappropriate actions or misconduct by staff and
cffenders to appropriate personnel.

B. Unauthorized Contact With Offenders and Ex-of fenders

1. Any of the requirements of this procedure concerning
an ex-offender will be effective for one year from the
date the offender leaves supervision.
2. Staff must maintain professional relationships with
offenders.
3. staff must not knowingly have avoidable contact with:
an offender,
an offender's family,
an offender's legal guardian and spouse,
an offender's significant other, or
e. an ex-offender {this does not include staff who are
ex-offenders) .
4. Staff must provide written notification to the chief
administrative officer the next day she/he reports to
duty with copies tc all supervisors in the chain of
command when she/he:
a. discovers that a family member is an offender,
b. discovers that a person with whom she/he has a
pre-existing personal relationship becomes an
coffender,
¢. discovers that a person with whom she/he has a
personal relationship is an offender/ex-offender, or
the immediate family, significant other or legal
guardian/spouse of an offender/ex-offender,
d. knowingly has unauthorized contact with an
cffender/ex-cffender, or the immediate family, or
significant other or legal guardian/spouse of an
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offender, whether at work or outside the worksite;
for example, when an offender calls a staff member
at home,
e. holds a second job or performs velunteer work which
brings her/him into contact with
offenders/ex-offenders, the offender's immediate
family or legal guardian/spouse in accordance with
D2-11.1 Secondary Employment/Voluntary Work.
5. staff must aveid disclosing to offenders/ex-offenders
any personal information about themselves or other staff.
6. staff must not, except in the normal course of duty,
give her/his or a fellow staff member‘s home or celiular
telephone number or address to an:
a. offender/ex-offender or the offender's,
(1) immediately family,
(2) significant other, or
{3) legal guardian/spouse
7. Staff must not, except as authorized in the normal
course of duty, receive from, or give anything to, an:
a. offender/ex-offender or the offender's,
(1) immediate family,
{2) significant other, or
{3) legal guardian/spouse
8. sStaff shall not remove from, or bring into, any area
under jurisdiction of the department any property,
message or any other item for an offender without proper
authorization of the division director/designee.
9. The division director/designee may, upon request of
a staff member, allow contact between the staff member
and an offender/ex-offender or the family, significant
other or legal guardian/spouse of an
offender, if such contact does not conflict with
compromise or threaten the operations and mission
of the department or the confidentiality of information
maintained by the department.
a. The division director/designee will provide the
staff member with written directions concerning such
contact which will include any reasonable limits or
restrictions on any contact allowed.
(1) Any staff member who fails to follow the
limitations or restrictions will be subject to
disciplinary action.

C. Reporting Criminal Misconduct:

1. Staff who are arrested or charged with a criminal
offense must immediately notify the chief administratiwve
officer or highest ranking staff member available.
a. In this context, immediately means as soon as
possible, but no later than the beginning of the
next shift worked by the staff member.
2. Staff are required to report arrest and charges for
any felony or misdemeanor, including city or county
ordinances, except for minor traffic violations.
a. Alcohol or drug related charges and driving
while suspended or revoked are not minor traffic
violations and must be reported.
b. staff must report a citation or arrest for a
traffic violation that occurs while operating a
state vehicle.
c. Custody staff must report the suspension,
revocation or expiration of hexr/his motor vehicle
operators/chauffeurs license.
d. Noncustody staff whose job requires operating a
vehicle, must report the suspension, revocation or
expiration of the motor wvehicle license that is
required.
e. The chief administrative officer should issue
an Administrative Proceedings Warning (Attachment A)
to the staff member at the time the statement is
requested.
f. The written report must be sukmitted before the
end of the next shift worked.
3. staff who are on leave at the time of an incident
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{or soon thereafter} must provide the written
notification as soon as possikle, but no later than 3
working days after the event.
a. The chief administrative officer will determine
whether the staff member will be required to report
to the worksite.
b. A staff member who is on leave, other than
administrative leave, will be compensated for the
time spent at the worksite required to prepare the
written account.
4. Upon request, staff must provide written
authorization to the chief administrative officer to
obtain copies of law enforcement reports and other
documents concerning the incident.
a. FPailure to do so will be considered the same as
failure to cooperate with an investigation.
5. Staff must notify the chief administrative officer
in writing about court appearances related to the charge
in advance of the court appearance, whenever possible.
a. 1If advance notification is not possible, staff
must report it as soon as possible, but no later
than 3 working days after the court appearance.
b. The staff member must notify the chief
administrative officer in writing of the outcome of
each court appearance, {i.e. dismissal of charge,
change of charge, inclusion of additional charges,
findings and disposition, continuance and date of
next appearance).
¢. The staff member must provide the chief
administrative officer with a written account of the
final disposition of the charge.
(1) This includes any plea that results in a
suspended imposition or execution of sentence.
(2) staff must submit this account before the
close of the next working day.
d. Upon receipt of a report that a staff member
has been arrested or charged, the chief
administrative officer will promptly notify the
divigsion director/designee.
e. The chief administrative officer will provide
updates as needed to the division director/designee
as she/he receives updates.

D. Reporting Misconduct:

1. Staff having knowledge of any instances of offender
abuse or sexual contact with an offender shall
immediately report such to the inspector general in
accordance with D1-8.6 Qffender Abuse/Sexual Contact.
2. Staff must immediately report any misconduct through
the appropriate chain of command.
a. If there is reason to believe that any staff
member in the chain of command may be involved in
the alleged misconduct, the staff member should
report the matter to the next higher level of
management in the department.
3. staff shall report actual or attempted theft of
department property or the property of others.
4. Staff shall report any unauthorized possession of,
loss or damage to, state property or the property of
others, or endangering state property or the property of
others through carelessness.
5. Staff shall report any neglect of job responsibility
by staff which may jeopardize the security of the work
place.

E. Reporting Mismanagement:

1. A copy of Section 105.055 RSMo {Attachment B} will be
posted in locations where it can reasonably be expected
to come to the attention of all staff of the department.

F. Administrative Action on Pending Felony Violations:

1. Upon arrest for a felony charge, the staff member
may be placed on administrative leave in accordance with
D2-8.5 Administrative Leave.

2. If formal felony charges are filed, the staff member
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Kansas City Metropo]itan

Cn'me Commission

Employee Office Policies

{Effective April 1, 2011)

A reference copy of these policies is maintained at the Office Manager’s desk.
Employces should review these policies and direct questions to their supervisor.
Special exceptions made to any policy will be handled on a case-by-case basis and must
be detailed in writing and approved by a supervisor and the Crime Commission
President. Noncompliance of any policy may result in disciplinary action up to and

including employment termination.

All employees are employed on an at-will basis unless the employee has a written
employment agreement to the contrary. These policies do not alter the at-will status of
your employment and neither intend to nor do they create a contract. These policies are
for reference only and the Crime Commission will attempt to communicate any

changes to all employees.
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SECTION 1. Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action
A.

The Crime Commission is committed to equal employment opportunities and merit
employment in the workplace to ensure compliance with all applicable federal, state
and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances.

Crime Commission employment practices (including, but not limited to advertising,
hiring, promotion, demotion, training, compensation, benefits, and termination) are
designed to hire, promote and assign employees without discrimination because of
age, physical abilities, race, religion, sex, national origin, or any other legally
protected characteristic.

. Members whose responsibility it is to effect hiring, transfers, promotions, demotion,

or termination of department members will continue to make specific efforts to find,
employ, and advance qualified women, minorities and disabled persons at al! levels of
the Crime Commission’s workforce. These special efforts will continue so that it is
emphatically clear that equality of opportunity is a fact as well as an ideal.

. The Crime Commission Vice President serves as the Equal Employment Opportunity

Compliance Officer and ensures compliance with the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission’s provisions and guidelines, and submits any required reports.

When in contact with the community, all Crime Commission members are
encouraged to suggest that protected class persons are eligible to make application
with the Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission for employment.

SECTION I1. Cultural Diversity and Sexual Harassment

A.

The Crime Commission will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation, national
origin, or any other legally protected characteristic. The Crime Commission agrees to
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notices setting forth the policies of nondiscrimination.

All employees are expected to support this policy in word and in deed on a daily
basis.

Supervisors will continually strive to ensure that discrimination does not occur in
work assignments, evaluations, pay, training or hiring practices.

Any improper practices should be reported immediately to your supervisor, the
President or the Chair of the Crime Commission. There will be no retaliation toward
employees making discrimination complaints. All complaints will be promptly
investigated and resolved quickly and appropriately by a neutral party.
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E. Sexual harassment of any employee will not be tolerated, and if substantiated, it may
be cause for dismissal. Reports of harassment may be made to your supervisor, the
President or the Chair of the Crime Commission. There will be no retaliation toward
employees making complaints, and an impartial third party will promptly investigate
complaints.

SECTION III. Drug and Alcohol Policy

A. Purpose and Goal
The Crime Commission is committed to protecting the safety, health and well-being
of all employees and other individuals in our workplace. We recognize that alcohol
abuse and drug use pose a significant threat to our goals. We have established a drug-
free and alcohol-free workplace policy that balances our respect for individuals with
the need to maintain a drug-free and alcohol-free environment.

This organization encourages employees to voluntarily seek help with drug and
alcohol related problems.

B. Covered Workers
Any individual who conducts business for the organization, is applying for a position
or is conducting business on the organization's property is covered by our drug-free
and alcohol-free workplace policy. Our policy includes, but is not limited to CEO,
executive management, managers, supervisors, full-time employees, part-time
employees, oft-site employees, contractors, volunteers, interns and applicants.

C. Applicability
Our drug-free and alcohol-free workplace policy is intended to apply whenever
anyone is representing or conducting business for the organization. Therefore, this
policy applies during all working hours, whenever conducting business or
representing the organization, while on call, paid standby and while on organization

property.

D. Prohibited Behavior
It is a violation of this policy to use, possess, sell, trade, and/or offer for sale alcohol,
controlled substances, illegal drugs or intoxicants; or to be under the influence of
alcohol, illegal drugs, or intoxicants during working hours. It is a violation of this
policy to bring or consume alcoholic beverages on company property, except in
connection with company-authorized events.

Prescription and over-the-counter drugs are not prohibited when taken in standard
dosage and/or according to a physician's prescription. Any employee taking
prescribed or over-the-counter medications will be responsible for consulting the
prescribing physician and/or pharmacist to ascertain whether the medication may
interfere with safe performance of his/her job. If the use of a medication could
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compromise the safety of the employee, fellow employees or the public, it is the
employee's responsibility to use appropriate personnel procedures (e.g., call in sick,
use leave, request change of duty, notify supervisor) to avoid unsafe workplace
practices.

The illegal or unauthorized use of prescription drugs is prohibited. It is a violation of
this policy to intentionally misuse and/or abuse prescription medications. Appropriate
disciplinary action will be taken if job performance deterioration and/or other
accidents occur.

. Notification of Convictions

Any employee who is convicted of a criminal drug violation must notify the
organization in writing within five calendar days of the conviction. The Crime
Commission will take appropriate action within 30 days of notification. Federal
contracting agencies will be notified when appropriate.

. Searches

Entering the Crime Comumission's property constitutes consent to searches and
inspections. If an individual is suspected of violating the drug-free and alcohol-free
workplace policy, he or she may be asked to submit to a search or inspection at any
time. Searches can be conducted of the following, which is not an exhaustive list,
lockers, wallets, purses, briefcases, lunchboxes, desks and work stations, vehicles and
equipment.

. Drug Testing

To ensure the accuracy and faimess of our testing program, testing will inciude a
screening test; a confirmation test, if requested by the employee; the opportunity for a
split sample; review by a Medical Review Officer, including the opportunity for
employees who test positive to provide a legitimate medical explanation, such as a
physician's prescription, for the positive result; and a documented chain of custody.

All drog-testing information will be maintained in separate confidential records.

Each employee, as a condition of employment, will be required to participate in pre-
employment, post-accident and reasonable suspicion testing upon selection or request
of management. The Crime Commission will pay all costs associated with testing.

The substances that will be tested for are: Amphetamines, Cannabinoids (THC),
Cocaine, Opiates, Phencyclidine (PCP), Alcohol, Barbiturates, Benzodiazepines,
Methaqualone, Methadone and Propoxyphene.

Any employee who tests positive will be immediately removed from duty, suspended
without pay for a period of 30 days, referred to a substance abuse professional for
assessment and recommendations, required to successfully complete recommended
rehabilitation including continuing care, required to pass a Return-to-Duty test,
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subject to ongoing, unannounced, follow-up testing for a period of five years and
terminated immediately if he/she tests positive a second time.

An employee may be subject to immediate termination if he/she refuses the screening
or the test, adulterates or dilutes the specimen, substitutes the specimen with that from
another person or sends an imposter, will not sign the required forms or refuses to
cooperate in the testing process in such a way that prevents completion of the test.

. Consequences

One of the goals of our drug-free and alcohol-free workplace policy is to encourage
employees to voluntarily seek help with alcohol and/or drug problems. If, however,
an individual violates the policy, the consequences are serious.

In the case of applicants, if he or she violates the drug-free and alcohol-free
workplace policy, the offer of employment can be withdrawn.

If an employee violates the policy, he or she will be subject to progressive
disciplinary action and may be required to enter rehabilitation as a condition of
continued employment. An employee required to enter rehabilitation who fails to
successfully complete it and/or violates the policy a second time will be terminated
from employment. Nothing in this policy prohibits the employee from being
disciplined or discharged for other violations and/or performance problems.

Assistance

The Crime Commission recognizes that alcohol and drug abuse and addiction are
treatable illncsses. We also realize that carly intervention and support improve the
success of rehabilitation. To support our employees, our drug-free and alcohol-free
workplace policy:

1. Encourages employees to seek help if they are concerned that they or their
family members may have a drug and/or alcohol problem.

2. Encourages employces to utilize the services of qualified professionals in
the community to assess the seriousness of suspected drug or alcohol
problems and identify appropriate sources of help.

3. Allows the use of accrued paid leave while seeking treatment for alcohol
and other drug problems.

Treatment for alcoholism and/or other drug use disorders may be covered by the
employee benefit plan. However, the ultimate financial responsibility for
recommended treatment belongs to the employee.

. Confidentiality

All information received by the Crime Commission through the drug-free and
alcohol-free workplace policy is confidential communication. Access to this
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information is himited to those who have a legitimate need to know in compliance
with relevant laws and management policics.

Shared Responsibility
A safe and productive drug-free and alcohol-free workplace is achieved through
cooperation and shared responsibility. Both employees and management have
important roles to play.

All employees are required to not report to work or be subject to duty while their
ability to perform job duties is impaired due to on- or off-duty use of alcohol or other
drugs.

In addition, employees are encouraged to be concerned about working in a safe
environment.

It is the supervisor's responsibility to:

1. Inform employces of the drug-free and alcohol-free workplace policy.
Observe employee performance.

Investigate reports of dangerous practices.

2

3

4. Document negative changes and problems in performance.

5. Counsel employees as to expected performance improvement.
6

Clearly state consequences of policy violations.

SECTION IV. Employee Expectations

A'

B.

All employees are expected to follow Crime Commission policics and report
violations to their supervisor.

All employees are expected to advise the Office Manager of any change in name,
address, phone number, emergency contact information, vehicle information or other
employer requested information.

All employees are expected to arrive to work on time and required to contact their
supervisor if they will be late. All employces should contact their supervisor as soon
as possible if they are unable to attend work due to illness, a family emergency or
other unforeseen circumstances. Employees will not leave work without authorization
from their supervisor.

All employees are assigned a specific parking space in which they are required to
park. If an employee will be in the office for less than one hour, a visitor parking
space may be used.
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. The Crime Commission sometimes transmits confidential information. All employees
are expected to maintain confidentiality of this information to include court cases,
ongoing police investigations, etc,

. All employees are expected to be civil, helpful, and courteous to customers and
business associates.

. All employees are expected to be civil, respectful, and cooperative with coworkers,
and conduct themselves with dignity, courtesy, and efficiency. Employees will not
use uncivil, harsh, profane or vulgar language while at work.

. All employees are expected to maintain a satisfactory level of performance in
conducting assigned work duties. Any employee whose conduct record indicates an
inability or unwillingness to maintain a satisfactory level of performance may be
subject to disciplinary action.

All employees are expected to obey all municipal ordinances, state, and federal laws.

. All supervisory employees are expected to assign duties impartially without favor,
affection or ill will, and without regard to status, race, religion, sex, disability, age,
sexual orientation, national origin, or any other legally protected characteristic. All
supervisory employees are expected to regularly monitor relationships and activities
of employees to ensure they treat each other with respect and dignity and comply with
Crime Commission policies.

. All employees are expected to submit yearly goals and a self-evaluation. All
supervisory employees are expected to conduct employee evaluations and maintain
results in employee personnel files. Evaluations will be followed by a meeting to
review results and work performance. Goals will be reviewed mid-year and end-year.

. If you are injured at work, no matter how slight, you must report your injury to your
supervisor.

This is not a comprehensive list of employee expectations. The Crime Commission uses
gencral progressive disciplinary policies; however, instances will be handled on a case-
by-case basis. The Crime Commission reserves the right to deviate from the progressive
disciphnary policy if necessary.

SECTION V. Dress Code

A. The Crime Commission dress code applies to all employees except police officers

who are supervised according to police department policy. Employees are requested
to ask their supervisor if they are unsure if a specific garment is appropriate attire.

B. Professional business attire is required for all employees so the appropriate Crime

Commission image is presented to the public we serve. Sweatshirts, spaghetti straps,
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and casual or logo t-shirts are not permitted. The showing of cleavage is not
permitted. Sweatshirts are permitted only on Friday’s and if they contain a Crime
Commission, Crime Stoppers, MCSP, SAFE or Second Chance logo. Tennis shoes
are permitted only on Fridays. Flip-flops are not permitted.

. Casual dress is approved for Fridays if there will be no public contact (i.e. no in or

out of office meetings, court appearances, etc.). Supervisors may approve casual
dress on additional days if work assignment dictates and there will be no public
contact. Casual dress does not include shorts, warm-ups or similar attire. Blue jeans
are approved for Fridays if there will be no public contact, and must be in good
condition, with no tears.

If your attire is deemed to violate this policy, you may be asked to go home and
change into more appropriate attire. You may not be paid for time missed from work.

SECTION VI. Emplovee Probationary Period

A,

All new employees, full and part time, of the Crime Commission will serve a
probationary period of 90 days. Supervisors can authorize an additional 90-days to
the probationary period. Upon hiring, leave time will begin accruing at rates
authorized by Crime Commission policies; however, if employment terminates during
the probationary period, the Crime Commission will not pay for accrued leave time.

New employees, full and part time, will not be eligible for merit or cost of living pay
increases until after completion of the probationary period.

Health benefits will be offered to new full time employees after completing 30 days
of continuous employment. Health benefits commence on the first day of the month
following completion of 30 days of continuous employment.

SECTION VII. Full Time and Part Time Employment Status

A.

The Crime Commission employee workweek runs from Saturday through Friday with
regular weekday hours of 8:30am to 4:30pm Monday through Friday unless otherwise
authorized by a supervisor. All employees, whether salaried or hourly, who regularly
work 40 or more hours per workweck are considered full time employees. All other
employees arc considered part-time employees, whether hourly or salaried, except as
provided in “C” of this section.

A separate employment contract with an individual employee, where allowed by law,
may offer ceriain benefits to a part time employee that would normally be available
only to a full time employee. Any such agreement shall be in writing, approved by
the President, and signed by the employee.




C.

If insurance policies or other benefit plans designate a different weekly number of
hours for coverage, then those requirements shall apply in those specific instances,
but will not change the requirements for the full time employment designation by the
Crime Commission.

SECTION VIII. Breaks

A.

The Crime Commission does not provide a specific lunch break frec of all duty. Full
time employees may eat lunch at their supervisor’s discretion and will be paid for the
lunch break time.

Part time employees who work more than 4 hours on any given day will receive a
paid lunch break.

. If required to accomplish their duties, a full time or part time employee working more

than 4 hours in a day, may be asked to return to work because the employee is being
compensated for this break and allowed to finish eating at a later time.

If a part time employee works 4 hours or less on any given day, and that employee
desires a lunch break, that lunch break shall be unpaid and no duties shall be assigned
to that employee during the break.

Under normal circumstances, the paid lunch break should not exceed 30 minutes.

Each employee working at least three hours in the morning and or the afternoon will
be provided two paid short breaks, one in the morning and one in the afternoon
respectively, not to exceed 10 minutes cach. If not utilized, short breaks can be
combined with the paid lunch break for that day.

SECTION IX. Leave Time

A.

B.

Vacation, sick, and personal leave are accrued by full time employees from the date
of employment.

An employee who is terminated will not be paid for any accrued leave, including any
vacation time carried over from the prior year. An employee who resigns and is not
currently subject to disciplinary action, or resigning in anticipation of disciplinary
action, will be paid for all unused vacation time in the current year, as well as
vacation time carried over from the prior year. The Crime Commission will not pay
for unused birthday or sick leave, personal time, or e-days upon employment
termination, whether by dismissal, resignation, or otherwise.

10
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C. Written documentation must be made to your supervisor when requesting any leave
time. Leave time will not be authorized without supervisor approval. Employees are
asked to turn in leave time requests in as much advance as possible to allow plenty of
time for scheduling needs. The minimum amount of leave time requested per
instance is one-half (!%) hour.

1. Birthday Leave
Full and part time employees with a minimum of one year continuous
employment receive one paid day per year for their birthday. Birthday leave must
be used during the month of the employee’s birthday and approved by their
supervisor. There is no pay in lieu of time away from work.

2. E-Days
E-days may be authorized by the President or Vice President for employee
recognized excellence. There is no carry over of e-days to the next year. There is
no pay in lieu of time away from work.

3. Flextime

The Crime Commission employec workweek runs from Saturday through Friday
with regular weekday hours of 8:30am to 4:30pm Monday through Friday unless
otherwise authorized by a supervisor. An employee workweek should not exceed
40 hours. Flextime allows staff to adjust their hours in the event they must work
over § hours in a work day and overtime is not authorized. Employees who reach
40 hours actually worked in the workweek before Friday are entitled to flextime
allowing early departure on Friday. If the employee’s workload will not allow for
early departure, their supervisor may authorize overtime. Work performed on a
weeckend day is subject to overtime pay or flextime, based on supervisor approval
and workload needs for the week. Any available flextime must be used during the
workweek in which it is earned.

4. Funeral Leave
In the event of the death of 2 member of an employee’s immediate family, funeral
leave for full time and part time employees, with pay, shall be granted not to
exceed 3 days. Additional leave of up to 2 days may be granted if approved by
your supervisor. Immediate family includes: spouse or domestic partner, child,
parent, parents-in-law, grandparents, grandparents-in-law, brother, sister, brother-
in-law or sister-in-law.

5. Leave Without Pay
Leave without pay must be authorized by your supervisor and is only authorized
once all accrued paid leave has been used. Except as provided by law, any
employee who has exhausted all leave and cannot return to work will be placed on
unpaid leave and may be subject to termination. If an employee is on continuous
unpaid leave for more than 30 days, they will be responsible for 100% of their
health insurance cost.




6. Maternity and Paternity Leave

Female employees are required to notify thetr supervisor as soon as pregnancy is
verified to discuss their work intentions. A female employee can work prior to
childbirth as long as she can safely and effectively perform her duties. Maternity
leave for female employees will be granted without pay and extend for an initial
period of no more than 90 calendar days following the date of delivery. Paternity
leave for male employecs will be granted without pay and extended for an initial
period of no more than 30 calendar days following the date of delivery. Female
and male employees adopting a child age 5 or younger will be granted maternity
or patemnity leave in accordance with the same policy detailed above.

Within this time frame, the employee will be offered his/her original job or a
similar one in terms of status, pay, and seniority. If maternity or paternity leave
exceeds the initial period detailed above, the employee will be offered a similar
job with the same status as soon as one is available. An employee returning from
an absence for maternity or paternity reasons will be returned to his/her position,
or one of like seniority, status, and pay. However, he/she may be separated at an
earlier date if required for reasons unrelated to the pregnancy such as a reduction
in force.

Compensation: Absence for materity or paternity rcasons is chargeable to a
combination of sick leave, vacation leave, personal leave, and/or leave without
pay (sec Section 1X, C, 5 for the leave without pay policy).

Absence Provision: The length of absence for maternity or paternity reasons will
be determined by the employee, his/her supervisor, and the treating physician
based on medical reasons.

Guidelines for requesting leave: An employee will submit to his/her supervisor a
written leave request for absence for maternity or paternity leave.

Employee Responsibilities: An employce should submit his/her request for
maternity or paternity leave, including the type of leave, approximate dates, and
anticipated duration, as far in advance as possible to allow time for staffing
adjustments. An employee who is not planning to return to work is encouraged to
submit his/her resignation as soon as possible.

Crime Commission Responsibilities: If a female employee requests modification
of her duties or a temporary assignment, the Crime Commission will make every
effort to accommodate the request. The employee may be requested to submit a
doctor’s statement to substantiate the request.

. Personal Days
After onc year of continuous employment, and on each subsequent employment
anniversary, full time employees will receive two paid personal days (16 hours).
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There is no carry over of personal days to the next year. There is no pay in lieu of
time away from work.

8. Sick Leave
Full time employees earn one day (8 hours) of sick leave each month worked.
Sick leave accrual will begin on the first day of the month following employment
{i.e. an employee hired on March 15 will begin accruing sick leave on April 1 and
receive one sick day on May 1). Sick leave can be used when an employee or
family member is ill or has a medical appointment. Full time employees may
carry over an unlimited amount of sick leave to the next year.

Full time employees may donate any amount of their accrued sick leave to
another employee. Sick leave must already be accrued to qualify for donation.
Recipient employee must authorize acceptance of donated sick leave and will
receive a written statement regarding the donation. Donor names will be provided
to the recipient employee upon donor approval. Once sick leave is donated it can
not be returned. Donated sick leave must be approved by both employee {donor
and recipient) supervisors.

9. Vacation Leave
All vacation leave is based on date of hire and earned in the year preceding the
employee’s anniversary date, except for one week awarded during the employee’s
first year. Full time employees may carry over no more than one week (40 hours)
of vacation leave to the next year. The Crime Commission will not pay for
vacation leave in excess of 40 hours not used. Vacation Leave is earned and
awarded as follows:

During the first year of employment, one week will be awarded which can be
used following completion of the probationary period.

After completion of 1 vear of employment through completion of 4 years of
employment, two weeks of vacation will be awarded on the employee’s
anmversary date.

After completion of 5 years of employment through 9 vears of employment,
three weeks of vacation will be awarded on the employee’s anniversary date.

After completion of 10 vears of cmployment, four weeks of vacation will be
awarded on the employee’s anniversary date.

D. Supervisors will provide employees with a leave earning and tracking record and
encourage them to track their own leave and compare it to supervisor records
quarterly and yearly. Current leave balances will be shown on bi-weekly paychecks.
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SECTION X. Qvertime

A.

Generally, Administrative Management and Supervisors are exempt employees and
do not receive overtime pay. All other employees are generally non-exempt and
qualify for overtime pay.

Generally, overtime will be paid to any non-exempt employee who exceeds 40 hours
actually worked in any given workweek with exception of court assignments that are
required as part of an employee’s work duty, which are subject to overtime pay or
flextime based on supervisor approval. :

Leave time shall not be used when computing hours actually worked in any given
workweek for purposes of calculating overtime.

Employees who are directed by their supervisor to work overtime will be
compensated at time-and-a-half for those hours worked.

Supervisors will seek prior approval from the President or Vice-Prestdent before
authorizing overtime.

SECTION XI. Holidays

A.

B.

C

Full time Crime Commission employees will be paid for nine (9) holidays per year.
If a paid Holiday falls on a Saturday, the previous Friday will be a holiday. If a
holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be a holiday.

New Years Day

Martin Luther King Day

President’s Day

Memorial Day

Fourth of July

Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day

Friday following Thanksgiving Day

Christmas Day

RPN E LD~

To be eligible for holiday pay an employee must be working or on paid leave for the
entire pay period in which the holiday occurs.

Part time employees with a minimum of 3 years continuous employment will be paid

for 9 holidays if the holiday falls on a day they regularty work. The employee will
receive pay for the number of hours the employee would have worked on a holiday.

14
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SECTION XII. Employee Group Benefits

A. Health
The Crime Commission contributes a portion of health and dental insurance cost for
| every full time employee receiving group health benefits through the Crime
| Commission’s health insurance plan, and the employee contributes the remainder.
I The employee’s portion is automatically deducted from the employee’s paycheck.
The employee will be responsible for 100% additional coverage costs for his or her
spouse, child or family. The Crime Commission Financial Officer has complete
calculations on the amount of each employee’s part of the contribution, and can
advise employees individually on what his or her cost will be and how it was derived.

B. Life

| The Crime Commission provides 100% of the cost of Basic Term Life and Accidental
| Death & Dismemberment (AD&D) coverage in the amount of $20,000.00 for all full
time employees.

C. Financial
Employees are encouraged to begin planning for their retirement by utilizing a 401K,
403B, etc.; however, the Crime Commission is currently unable to match employee
retirement deductions. The Crime Commission has payroll deduction capabilities for
employees choosing to utilize a retirement plan. Employees who choose to utilize
payroll deduction should contact the Financial Officer to authorize this deduction.

SECTION XHI. Company Credit Card

Crime Commission credit cards are issued to certain employees for Crime Commission
business purchases only. Employees will not make personal purchases with these cards,
even though there is a reimbursement to the Crime Commission for those purchases. If
an employee makes a personal purchase on one of these cards, he or she will be required
to reimburse the Crime Commission for the expense and may be subject to cancellation
of the issued card. A receipt 1s required for all purchases, including those made online.
Violation to this policy is subject to disciplinary action up to and including employment
termination.

SECTION XIV. Job Related Training

The Crime Commission encourages employees to attend job related training at the Crime
Commission’s expense. Your supervisor may approve attendance of a specific course,
payment for the cost of tuition, and may allow some work time to attend the training.

15
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SECTION XV. Office Computers

A. Computer Issues
Only the Office Manager and Vice President are authorized to contact computer
technicians; however, they may authorize a supervisor to contact technicians in their
absence.

Reporting General Computer Issucs

1.

4.

If possible, send an email message to the Office Manager with a cc to the Vice
President describing the computer issue you arc experiencing and whether or
not it has disabled your computer.

The Office Manager will access the issue and contact computer technicians, or
accumulate problems for a future repair date allowing all problems to be
addressed in the most efficient manner.

Before technicians leave, every attempt will be made to check with everyone
in the office to ensure the issues are corrected or noted for further review.

Please do not attempt repairs to any computer unless you have first cleared it
through the Office Manager or Vice President.

Reporting Database Specific Computer Issues

1.

2.

3.

4.

Send an email message to your supervisor describing the database issue you
are experiencing.

When computer technicians are contacted, a repair date will be set and
everyone notified in case additional problems occur.

When computer technicians arrive, they will be given a list of issues to be
completed by priority.

If you have questions or additional computer issues, please refer them to your
supervisor instead of bringing them directly to the attention of the working
technician.

B. Computer Software Programs, Internet Usage, and Email

1.

No outside software will be installed on Crime Commission computers or
downloaded from the Internet without approval from the President or Vice
President.

If an employee installs or downloads software without prior approval, they
may be subject to disciplinary actions, may be required to cover costs
associated with removing the sofiware or virus, and costs associated with
having the system virus checked by our computer technicians.
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3. Employees will not conduct personal Internet business on Crime Commission
computers. All keystrokes and commands are stored in our server and can be
identified by the system administrator.

4. All Crime Commission computer equipment, including laptops, will not be
operated on a non-secure network.

5. Emails containing uncivil, harsh, profane or vulgar language, pictures or
graphics should not be forwarded and should be deleted immediately.

6. Employeces should not maintain any expectation of privacy in their use of

Crime Commission equipment. The equipment, including the computers, is
Crime Commission property and may be searched with or without notice.

SECTION XVI. Vice President Responsibilities

When the President is absent, the Vice President assumes all duties and responsibilitics of
the President until the President returns.

SECTION XVII. Crime Commission Employee References

All requests for references and employment verification for current or former employees
should be given to the President or Vice President for completion or other action. As a
general rule, the Crime Commission will only verify dates of employment, position and
final rate of pay (with employee authorization).

17
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EXHIBIT F
IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE/PLAN

Implementation Plan - The offeror should sequentially list and briefly describe the tasks or events proposed for
the implementation of the required services. For each task/event, the offeror should identify the number of days
required to complete the task/event, the personnel proposed to perform the task/event, and the number of work
hours for each person.

"Completicn Day" should be specified as a certain number of days from date of contract award until completion of the
specific task and should be expressed as calendar days, not specific dates.

"Assigned Personnel" should be identified by name rather than project title unless such personnel are yet to be hired.
"Workhours" should indicate that time each assigned person will spend on the specific task.

Task or Event Completion Assigned Work-
Day Personnel hours

Submit program forms to state for approval 1 McDonald 1
Announce/ advertise new positions 2 McDonald 2
Submit for background checks for staff 2 McDonald 1
Interview potential candidates/ make offer 15 McDonald/ Mayer 12
Market program to DOC- P/P 10 McDonald/ Hallam 12
Begin taking referrals; assign to current staff 10 McDonald Ongoing
Develop annual training calendar 15 McDonald/ team 4
Coordinate Staffing schedule 15 McDonald/ team 4

Train new staff 32 tg?_ty(sl;g;ﬂ McDonald 20
Create billing sheets/ fracking forms 10 McDonaid 8
Ensure alignment w/ budget Ongoing Mayer/ Financial Officer 24
Review policies and procedures w/ staff 30; ongoing Mayer/ McDonald 4
Ensure liaison assignment KCDP 30 Mayer 4
Ensure liaison assignment P/P 30 Mayer 4

Begin training classes 21 Assigned staff 20
Develop Mentor Recruitment Plan 45 Assigned staff 20
Develop Worksite Plan 45 Assigned Staff 20
Begin regular staffing schedule 45 McDonald/; staff/ liaisons 10
Develop Employer Recruitment Plan 45 Assigned Staff 10
Establish MOUs with Partners Ongoing Mayer/ McDonald 40
Update database www.secondchanceke.org Ongoing Hallam 60




It should be noted that the Crime Commission has an MOU with the Black Health Care
Coalition who is an MBE with the City of Kansas City, Missouri and they would be an
MBE state organization if it was not a Non For Profit organization. Consequently and
unfortunately, we will not show in this application an MBE/WRBE affiliation. A copy of
our MOU follows this page that shows the list of health related resource services
provided by the Black Health Care Coalition.
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EXHIBIT G

BUDGET/PRICE ANALYSIS

Page 50

The offeror should complete the following table in sufficient detail for information regarding the services proposed on an
annual basis (assuming no more than a $172,660 annual bud
Budget Categories Annual Salary Total
Professional Personnel (list name or title)
1.Resource Specialist incl 12% fringe 1 $35,700.00 $39,984.00
2.Resource Specialist incl 12% fringe 1 $35,700.00 $39,984.00
3 Mentoring/Job Services Coordinator PTE $19,968.00 $21,496.00
4.(PTE @ $16 x 24hrs wkly x 52 wks + 7.65% fringe) $ $
5. $ $
6. $ $
Total Professional Personnel $101,464.00
Support Personnel (list)
1.LE/Corrections Liaison/Project Coordinator 20FTE $65,978.00 $14,779.00
2 (above incl 12% fringe in total) $ $
3_Administrative Assistant {Sarah Matthes) PTE $10,400.00 $11,195.00
4 (PTE @ $25 x 8hrs wkly x 52 wks + 7.65%) $ $
Total Support Personnel $127,438.00
Budget Categories Quantity Unit Price Total
Travel Expenses (list)
1.Veh Mileage 25mi x 52 wks x .37(Res Spec) 2 $962.00 $962.00
2.Veh mileage 50mi x 52 wks x .37(Mentoring) 1 $962.00 $962.00
3. $ $
4, h) 3
Total Travel Expenses $1,924.00
Materials and Supplies (list)
1.Postage & Mailing $1,600.00 $1,600.00
2. Office Supplies $1,000.00 $1,000.00
3. $ 3
4. § h)
Total Materials and Supplies $2,600.00
Other Components/Overhead (List)
1.CJ Liability($3000), Directors & Officers $3,920.00 $3,920.00
(520), Office & General Liability Insurance(400)
2.Computer Maintenance & Copier Services $5,500.00 $5,500.00
3.Accounting ($4000) & Bank Fees (750) $4,750.00 $4,750.00
4.Training & Meetings (§1,000) $1,028.00 $1,028.00
Total Other Components/Overhead $15,198.00
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Total SECTION I (Annual):

$147,160.00

SECTION II -Services - Breakdown for array of services

Budget Categories Estimated Unit Price Total
Quantity
Services
1.  Housing/Utilities 25 $500.00 $12,700.00
2. Employment Services/Activities $ $
3.  Transportation 40monthly & 2000 one ride 40+ 2000 $50 & $1.50 $5,000.00
4. Food Assistance $ 3
5.  Clothing-work boots, uniforms, etc. 10 $50.00 $£500.00
6. Family Services $ $
7.  Personal Identification-birth cert, ID, DLs 30 $£15.00 $£450.00
9.  Financial Assistance $ b
9.  Health Services- BHCC 100 $48.00 $4,800.00
10. Mentoring Services 20 $70.00 $1400.00
11. Other Services (list) GEDs 10 $65.00 $650.00
12. $ $
13. 5 $
14. $ $
15. $ $
16. $ $
17. $ $
18. $ $
19. b $
20. $ $
Total Services $25,500.00
Other (list) A 7
1. 5 $
2. $ $
3. 3 $
4, $ $
5. 3 3
Total Other $0
Total SECTION II (Annual): $25,500.00
Total Annual Amount (Section I + Section IT) (not to exceed $172,660) $£172,660.00
Assumptions used in above analysis:
v' Annual number of participants 160
v Number of days of services in program receiving services 365
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Memorandum of Understanding

Between

Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission, 501 ¢ 3
And

Black Health Care Coalition, 501 ¢ 3

For Application To

Kansas City Reentry Project Grant, Missouri Dept. of Corrections 2011-2012

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) establishes a collaboration between the
Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission and Black Health Care Coalition to

execute the Kansas City Reentry Project Grant with Missouri Department of Corrections.

I. MISSION

The mission of the Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission is to make our
metropolitan area a safer, more secure place to live, do business, and visit by supporting
law-enforcement and justice agencies and their causes, which is done through our four
programs. The mission of the Second Chance Program is to provide a crime prevention
strategy for Metropolitan Kansas City through research, advocacy and the funding of

programs that improves opportunities for ex-offenders to lead productive lives.

The mission of the Black Health Care Coalition is to decrease the disparity of health
status between the majority community and the minority community through education,

health screenings, prevention of negative health practices and promotion of healthy
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activities; Build a cohesive health referral network that is user friendly to ensure greater

access to health care; and encourage minority youth and target minority populations to
become knowledgeable consumers of health care through practicing healthy lifestyles and

health practices.

Together, the Parties enter into this Memorandum of Understanding to mutually
promote successful outcomes, decreasing recidivism, for offenders on Level 11 or Level
I1I supervision, on felony adult probation or parole, with Missouri Department of

Corrections.

Accordingly, Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission and Black Health Care

Coalition operating under this MOU agree as follows:

II. Purpose and Scope of Project

The Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission applies for this funding to serve a total
of 160 people per year, targeting those considered Level II or Level III (at highest risk for
recidivism), to improve public safety and decrease recidivism. The intent of this
application is to offer comprehensive services to the offender population considered most

in need and most likely to re-offend without proper intervention.

Black Health Care Coalition recognizes those who have been incarcerated are likely to

have unmet health needs including but not limited to access to health care for prevention,

education; access and ability to navigate through needs such as mental health care and




substance abuse treatment; higher rates of HIV/ AIDS than the general population; and

higher tnstances of mental health and substance abuse treatment needs than the general

population. Targeting this population helps fulfill the mission of BHCC.

Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission agrees to serve as the lead applicant,
market the program, accept referrals from probation and parole and coordinate participant
services from intake to termination. Further, the Crime Commission will serve as the

fiscal agent for the application.

I11. RESPONSIBILITIES

Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission will appoint the Second Chance Program
Director to serve as the official contact and grant coordinator for this MOU. Melissa
Robinson, CEO of Black Health Care Coalition will serve as the initial contact for this

project.

The mitial appointees of each organization are:
Lora McDonald

Second Chance Program Director

Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission
3100 Broadway, Ste. 226

Kansas City, MO 64111

(816)960-6800
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Melissa Robinson

CEO

Black Health Care Coalition
6675 Holmes, Suite 650
Kansas City, MO 64131

(816)444-9600

The organizations agree to the following tasks for this MOU:

Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission will:

Offer Administration, Fiscal Management and Coordination for Project
Market program to MO DOC Probation and Parole Officers

Accept referrals, up to 160 per year, from Missouri DOC

Assign Resource Specialist for intake and services

Assess total needs for participants and their families; include Black Health Care
Coalition Staff on observed and assessed health related needs

Provide services related to employment, mentoring and other goals as
demonstrated in the Transitional Accountability Plan from MO DOC

Arrange staffings that include participant, BHCC, Probation and Parole, KCPD
and other parties to case, ensuring confidential maintenance of information
Compile and track all outcomes and prepare all reports associated with the
funding to the funding source

Communicate any health care related service gaps to BHCC for coordination
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Black Health Care Coalition will offer the following for up to 100 participants:

¢ Quarterly preventive health screenings to include blood pressure, glucose,
cholesterol, PSA (prostate screening), medical consultation with M.D.,
mammogram and Body Mass Index.

o Weekly medical case management and patient navigation including nutrition and
physical fitness classes. Patient navigation encompasses how to access services
from the Safety Net system e.g. Swope Health Services, Samuel U. Rodgers, etc.;
mental health, publicly financed health care (Medicare/Medicaid), dental, and
prescriptions.

s Prenatal services to include prenatal classes, mentoring and access to baby care
items.

o Measure change in health outcome status and patient navigation success.
Navigation success includes, but is not limited to, how many times did a client
access referral services, how did the client rate those services, is the client willing
to return to BHCC or other referred providers for continued care, has the client
reported a quality of life improvement based on services from BHCC or referred
providers.

e Provide a quarterly report to the Crime Commission of services received;
outcomes met and information regarding each evaluation measure mentioned
above. Clients will be required to sign an information release that complies with
HIPPA standards.

By signing this agreement, both parties are committed to adherence to the content herein.
Any changes to this agreement will be made in writing with both parties with 30 days

notice, which includes the notification of the funding source for the project.

‘44/%17 l VY]o?e_._. féﬂ'/n

Barry C. Mayer Date

Vice-President

Kansas City Meiropolitan Crime Commission




%?M /M,qﬂ/r 200

Melissa Robinson Date

CEO

Black Health Care Coalition
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exaBiTH N / A
PARTICIPATION COMMITMENT

Business Enterprise/Women Business Enterprise E/WBE) and/or Organization for the
Blind/Sheltered Workshop Participation Commitment — If the offeror is committing to participation by or if
the offeror is a qualified MBE/WBE and/or organization for the blind/sheltered workshop, the offeror must
provide the required information in the appropriate table(s) below for the organization proposed and must submit
the completed exhibit with the offeror’s proposal.

For Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) and/or Woman Business Enterprise (WBE) Participation, if proposing
an entity certified as both MBE and WBE, the offeror must either (1) enter the participation percentage under
MBE or WBE, or must (2) divide the participation between both MBE and WBE. 1f dividing the participation, do
not state the total participation on both the MBE and WBE Participation Commitment tables below. Instead,
divide the total participation as proportionately appropriate between the tables below.

MBE Participation Commitment Table
(The services performed or the products provided by the listed MBE must provide a commercially useful function related to
the delivery of the contractually-required service/product in a manner that will constituic an added value to the contract and
shall be performed/provided exclusive to the performance of the contract.)

Committed
Percentage of
Name (?f Each Qualll.'ied Minority | Participation Description of Products/Services to be Provided by

Business Enterprise (MBE) for Each MBE Listed MBE
Proposed (% of the Actual
Total Contract
Value)

%
%
%
4 %

WIBE Participation Commitment Table

badEad fen

(The services performed or the products provided by the listed WBE must provide a commercially useful function related to
the delivery of the contractually-required servicefproduct in a manner that will constitute an added value to the contract and
shall be performed/provided exclusive to the performance of the contract.)

Committed
] Percentage of
Name 0 f Each Quah.fied Women Participation Description of Products/Services to be Provided by
Business Enterprise (WBE) for Each WBE Listed WBE
proposed (% of the Actual
Total Contract
Value)
1 %
2. %
3 %
4, %
L Y
mal WBE Percentage: %o

1?4
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N/

Organization for the Blind/Sheltered Workshop Commitment Table

By completing this table. the afferor committs 1o the use of the organization al the greater of $3.000 or 2% of the
actual total dollar value ol contract,

(The services performed ot the products provided by the listed Organization for the Blind/Sheltered Workshop must provide
a commercially useful function related to the delivery of the contractually-required service/product in a manner that will
constitute an added value to the contract and shall be performed/provided exclusive to the performance of the contract.)

Description of Products/Services to be Provided by

Name of Organization for the Blind or Sheltered . .. .
Workshop Proposed Listed Organization for the Blind/Sheltered Workshop
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EXHIBIT 1 N / A
DOCUMENTATION OF INTENT TO PARTICIPATE

If the offeror is proposing to include the participation of an Organization for the Blind/Sheltered Workshop and/or
Minority Business Enterprise/Women Business Enterprise (MBE/WBE) in the provision of the products/services
required in the RFP, the offeror must either provide a recently dated letter of intent from each organization
documenting the following information, or complete and provide this Exhibit with the offeror’s proposal.

~ Copy This Form For Each Organization Proposed ~
Offeror Name: N/A

This Section To Be Completed by Participatine Organization:
o fual

By complcting and signing this form, the undersigned hereby confirms the intent of the named participating organization to provide the products/services
identified herein for the offeror identified above.

Indicate appropriate business classification(s):
MBE WBE Organization for the Blind Sheltered Workshop

Name of Organization

Contact Name: Email:
Address: Phone #:

City: Fax #:
State/Zip: Certification #

{or attach copy of certification)

Certification Expiration Date:

Describe the products/services you (as the participating organization) have agreed to provide:

Authorized Signature:

’73&,\/\:7(‘/ YLty o gl/(f/u

Authorized Signature of Participating Organization Date
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EXHIBIT J
MISSOURI SERVICE-DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS PREFERENCE

Pursuant to section 34.074, RSMo, the Division of Purchasing and Materials Management has a goal of awarding
three (3) percent of all contracts for the performance of any job or service to service-disabled veteran businesses
(see below for definitions included in section 34.074, RSMo) either doing business as Missouri firms,
corporations, or individuals; or which maintain Missouri offices or places of business.

Definitions:

Service-Disabled Veteran is defined as any individual who is disabled as certified by the appropriate
federal agency responsible for the administration of veterans’ affairs.

Service-Disabled Veteran Business is defined as a business concern:

a. not less than fifty-one (51) percent of which is owned by one or more service-disabled veterans or, in
the case of any publicly owned business, not less than fifty-one (51) percent of the stock of which is
owned by one or more service-disabled veterans; and

b. the management and daily business operations of which are controlled by one or more service-
disabled veterans.

If an offeror meets the definitions of a service-disabled veteran and a service-disabled veteran business as defined
in section 34.074, RSMo, and is either doing business as a Missouri firm, corporation, or individual, or maintains
a Missouri office or place of business, the offeror must provide the following with the proposal in order to receive
the Missouri service-disabled veteran business preference of a three-point bonus over a non-Missouri service-
disabled veteran business:

a. acopy of an award letter from the Department of Veterans Affairs (VA), or a copy of the offeror’s
discharge paper (DD Form 214, Certificate of Release or Discharge from Active Duty) from the
branch of service the offeror was in; and

b. acompleted copy of this exhibit

(NOTE: For ease of evaluation, please attach copy of the above-referenced letter from the VA or a copy of the
offeror’s discharge paper to this Exhibit. The above-referenced letter from the VA and a copy of the offeror’s
discharge paper shall be considered confidential pursuant to subsection 14 of section 610.021, RSMo.)

By signing below, | certify that I meet the definitions of a service-disabled veteran and a service-disabled veteran
business as defined in section 34.074, RSMo, and that I am either doing business as a Missouri firm, corporation,
or individual; or maintain Missouri offices or places of business at the location(s) listed below.

Service-Disabled Veteran’s Name (Please Print) Service-Disabled Veteran Business Name

Service-Disabled Veteran’s Signature

Missouri  Address of Service-Disabled Veteran
Business

| 79



B3ZI1185

EXHIBIT K, continued

BOX B - CURRENT BUSINESS ENTITY STATLUS

I certify that Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission MEETS the definition of a business entity as

defined in

section 285.525, RSMo pertaining to section 285.530.

Barry C. Mayer, Vice-President \7% 4 M"’

Authorized Business Entity Representative’s Authorizéd Business Entity
Name (Please Print) Representative’s Signature
Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission 8/15/2011

Business Entity Name Date

bmayer@kc-crime.org

E-Mail Address

As a business entity, the offeror must perform/provide the following. The offeror should check each to verify
completion/submission:

-

Enroll and participate in the E-Verify federal work authorization program (Website:
http://www.dhs_gov/files/programs/gc_1185221678150.shtm; Phone: §88-464-4218; Email: e-
verify@dhs.gov) with respect to the employees hired after enrollment in the program who are
proposed to work in connection with the services required herein; AND

Provide documentation affirming said company’s/individual’s enrollment and participation in the E-
Verify federal work authorization program. Documentation shall include EITHER the E-Verify
Employment Eligibility Verification page listing the offeror’s name and company ID OR a page from
the E-Verify Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) listing the offeror’s name and the MOU
signature page completed and signed, at minimum, by the offeror and the Department of Homeland
Security — Verification Division. If the signature page of the MOU lists the offeror’s name and
company 1D, then no additional pages of the MOU must be submitted; AND

Submit a completed, notarized Affidavit of Work Authorization provided on the next page of this
Exhibit.

[ O
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EXHIBIT K. cantinued

AFFIDAVIT OF WORK AUTHORIZATION:

The offeror who meets the section 285.525, RSMo, definition of a business entity must complete and return the
following Affidavit of Work Authorization.

Comes now Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission (Name of Business Entity Authorized Representative)
as Vice-President (Position/Title) first being duly sworn on my oath, affirm Kansas City Metropolitan Crime
Commission (Business Entity Name) is enrolled and will continue to participate in the E-Verify federal work
authorization program with respect to employees hired after enrollment in the program who are proposed to work
in connection with the services related to contract(s) with the State of Missouri for the duration of the contract(s),
if awarded in accordance with subsection 2 of section 285.530, RSMo. [ also affirm that Kansas City
Metropolitan Crime Commission (Business Entity Name) does not and will not knowingly employ a person who

is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services provided under the contract(s) for the duration
of the contract(s), if awarded.

In Affirmation thereof, the facts stated above are true and correct. (The undersigned understands that false
statements made in this filing are subject to the penalties provided under section 575.040, RSMo.)

oy € M

PBasny €. MAYER

Auwthorized Representative s Signature Printed Name

Vice-President 8/15/2011

Title Date

bmayer@kc-crime.org 355921

E-Mail Address E-Verify Company 1D Number

Subscribed and sworn to before me this fo{ of
A

/ﬂ . Iam

commissioned as a notary public within the County of. State of

—

0
t P .
ZEZL%Q% z , and my commission expires on /'~ 9/ -2/ .
[i ATE) {DATE)

L)

>S5 Ze

Signature of Notary

Date

SRV P ELLENC. STITT
@Nm% My Commission Expires

Tl i January 4, 2015 i
B SEALSST Jackson Counly S
CEOFMRRS Gommission #11131180

| &}
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Employer\fhzard

e

Page 1 of 1

8= Verify.

Employment Ellglblhty Verlflcatlon Barry Mayer BMAYD1B6  07:05 PM-08/11/2011  Log Out

e

of help
Home .
Company Information
My Cases o . o L _ o
New Case
View Cases } Company Name: Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission

Search Cases

Company D Number: 355921
My Profile : Doing Business As {DBA)
Edit Profile [ Name:
Change Password ' DUNS Numhber: 059080759
Change Security Questions
| Physical Location: Mailing Address:
My Company ! . .
Edit Cormpany Profile Address 1: 3100 Broadway, Suite 226 Address 1
Add Address 2: Address 2:
New User , City: Kansas City City:
Wew Existing Users State: MO State:
Close Company Account Zip Code: 64111 Zip Code:
My Reports County: JACKSON .
View Reports !

Additional Information:
Employer Identification Number:440540176
, Total Number of Employees: 20 to 99

My Resources

View Essential Resources

Take Tutorial | . .
Parent Organization: Kansas City Metropalitan Crime Commission
View User Manual .
Administrator:
Cortact Us Organization Designation:
. Employer Category: None of these categories apply

813 - RELIGIOUS, GRANTMAKING, CIVIC, PROFESSIONAL.

NAICS Code: AND SIMILAR ORGANIZATIONS

Total Hiring Sites: 1

Total Points of Contact:2

U.S. Depariment of Homeland Secyrity - www.dhs.gav  U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services - www.uscis.gov Accessibility Oownload Viewers

182
https://e-verify.uscis.gov/emp/EmployerWizard.aspx 8/12/2011
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EXHIBIT L
MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION
Outside United States

If any products and/or services offered under this RFP are being manufactured or performed at sites outside the
United States, the offeror MUST disclose such fact and provide details in the space below or on an attached page.

Are products and/or services being manufactured Yes No \ i
or performed at sites outside the United States? —_ :

Describe and provide details:

Employee Bidding/Conflict of Interest

Offerors who are employees of the State of Missouri, a member of the General Assembly or a statewide elected
official must comply with sections 105.450 to 105.458, RSMo, regarding conflict of interest. If the offeror and/or
any of the owners of the offeror’s organization are currently an employee of the State of Missouri, a member of
the General Assembly or a statewide elected official, please provide the following information.

Name of State Employee, General

Assembly Member, or Statewide Elected ]
Official; N l A

In what office/agency are they
employed?

Employment Title:

Percentage of ownership interest in
offeror’s organization: %
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